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MANAGING THE FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT
LOAN PROGRAM

THURSDAY, JUNE 10, 1993

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
HUMAN RESOURCES AND

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:30 a.m., in room

2247, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Edolphus Towns (chair-

man of the subcommittee) presiding.
Present: Representatives Edolphus Towns, Donald M. Payne,

Steven Schiff, Stephen Horn, John L. Mica, and Bernard Sanders.
Also present: Ronald A. Stroman, staff director; Allegra A.

Pacheco, professional staff member; Martine M. DiCroce, clerk; and

Martha Morgan, minority professional staff, Committee on Govern-

ment Operations.
OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN TOWNS

Mr. TOWNS. The Committee on *overnment Operations, Human

Resources and Intergovernmental Relations Subcommittee will con-

vene.
Our first panel of witnesses this morning, are the Honorable

Robert E. Andrews, Democrat, from the State of New Jersey, Rep-

resentative Goodling, from the great State of Pennsylvania, and

Representative Petri, from Wisconsin.
I would like to begin with you, Congressman Goodling.

Mr. SCHIFF. Mr. Chairman, one quick second. I want to go
straight to the Members because they have other commitments.

I just want to take 1 minute to say that I appreciate very much

you heming this hearing. I think that it is on a subject that is sen-

sitive because the administration is advocating this change. But I

think it is important that Congress closely scruti-nizes all proposals

from the administrEtion, whether the President is a Democrat or

Republican.
And speaking for myself, as a member of the opposite party, I

don't think that I should oppose automatically the President's

stand on this.
Mr. TOWNS. What I would like to do is give other Members an

opportunity for opening statements as well.
Mr. Horn.
Mr. HORN. Mr. Chairman, I would like to say that I think this

is a crucial piece of legislation. I think the suggestion of a loan pro-

gram and the possibility that it would be collected by the Internal
(1)
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Revenue Service is about three decades overdue if we are going tomeet the needs ofmany people, not just 17 to 22 year olds but indi-viduals on a lifetime basis who could acciuire new skills from edu-cation--public and private. I think we need to be supportive of thisapproach.
Mr. TOWNS. Mr. Mica.
Mr. MICA. Mr. Chairman, I am open and receptive to this typeof hearing. But I might tell you that my district is next to FantasyWorld in klorida, and I have a difficult time believing that the Fed-eral Government can undertake any kind of a program like thisbetter than the_private sector. Thank you.
Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much.
Let me apologize for starting late. We have to vote around hereand at the time when we were supposed to start, a vote was called.Before we go right to our witnesses, let me say that today thesubcommittee is examining the Department of Education's plan toimplement the Presidenes direct student loan proposal whichpassed the House as part of the Budget Reconciliation Act and iscurrently pending approval in the Senate.
I applaud the administration for its attempt to bring under con-trol one of the most badly managed programs in the Federal Gov-ernmentstudent lending. Numerous reports have documentedwidespread fraud, waste, abuse, and pervasive patterns of mis-management in the existing Guaranteed Student Loan Program.In Dlecember 1992, the Guaranteed Student Loan Program wasidentified by the GAO as 1 of 17 high-risk programs, especially vul-nerable te waste, fraud, abuse, and mismanagement. GAO has alsomade it clear that the existing loan program and the Department'smismanagement of it have contributed to $2.7 billion in loan de-faults last year. This year, more than half of the Federal cost ofrunning the student loan program will be spent repaying defaultedloans.
These extraordinarily high default rates mean that most of theFederal Government's funding for student loans is not going to ben-efit students. This has operated to the detriment of the education,training, and skill of our students, and ultimately, to America'sproductivity.
This morning we will begin to carefully review the Department'splans to correct these existing management problems and how itwill implement the additional responsibilities of managing a directlending loan program.
As GAO has pointed out, the inventory of known problems in theDepartment's administration of guaranteed student loans raisesquestions about its ability to adequately manage a direct lendingprogram.
A.s I indicated, we have with us this morning Congressman BillGoodling from the 19th Congressional District in Pennsylvania.Congressman Goodling is a ranking Republican member on theCommittee on Education and Labor and has been very active inthese kinds of issues. He is a ranking member on the Subcommit-tee on Elementary, Secondary and Vocational Education. Congress-man Goodling is also a member of the Foreign Affairs Committee.We welcome you to the subcommittee. You may proceed.[The opening statement of Mr. Towns follows:]

7
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OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN EDOLPHUS TOWNS

DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM

JUNE 10, 1993

Today this subcommittee will examine the Department of

Education's management planning to implement the President's direct

student loan proposal, which passed the House as part of the Budget

Reconciliation Act, and is currently pending approval in the Senate.

I applaud the Administration for its attempt to bring under control

one of the most badly managed programs in the Federal government,

student lending. Numerous reports have documented widespread fraud,

waste and abuse and pervasive patterns of mismanagement in the

existing Guaranteed Student Loan Program.

In December of 1992, the Guaranteed Student Loan Program was

identified by the GAO as one of 17 "high risk" programs, especially

vulnerable to waste, fraud, abuse and mismanagement. GAO has also

made it clear that the existing loan program and the Department's

mismanagement have contributed to $2.7 billion in loan defaults last

8
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year. This year more than half of the Federal cost of running the student

loan program will be spent repaying defaulted loans.

These extraordinarily high default rates mean that most of the

Federal government's funding for student loans is not going to benefiting

students. This has operated to the detriment of the education, training

and skill of our students, and ultimately to America's productivity.

This morning we will hegin to carefully review the Department's

plans to correct these existing management problems, and how it will

implement the additional responsibilities of managing a direct lending

loan program. As GAO has pointed out, the inventory of known

problems in the Department's administration of guaranteed student loans

raises questions about its ability to adequately manage a direct lending

program.
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STATEMENT OF HON. WILLIAM F. GOODLING, A REPRESENTA-
TIVE CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA

Mr. GOODLING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I, too, am pleased that you are having this hearing. Every time

we make policy decisions like this in reconciliation, we live to re-
gret what we have done. Whenever you legislate in reconciliation,
you can get into serious trouble.

I have observed and been a part of this program for 19 years.
After careful consideration in our committee, both the subcommit-
tee and the full committee, last year in the reauthorization of the
higher education program, we indicated that we better step softly
and by a pilot direct lending program before we end up throWing
the baby out with the bath water. I think that was very prudent
and continues to be the direction we should go.

Unfortunately, in reconciliation we have reversed this direction.
It is with some reluctance that I testify, 1-)ecause, of course, in testi-
fying on this subject you have to get into some negative issues be-
cause you have to discuss the Department's inability to manage
their programs up to this point. We have an awful lot of dedicated
people in the Department. Nevertheless, we do have to look at the
reports that we have received. The reports are not good. And I
don't have to tell you, that we all hear criticism on the floor of the
House almost daily about any program that the Federal Govern-
ment has tried to run and they have turned out to be a disaster.

You have many educational institutions, students, and others
knowledgeable about student loans that are concerned that if the
Department fails to administer a direct loan program properly, stu-
dents, their parents, and educational institutions will be hurt. Last
year the General Accounting Office directly addressed the issue of
the Department's administrative capabilities. They noted, "the in-
ventory of known problems in the Department's administration of
guaranteed student loans raises questions about its ability to ade-
quately manage a direct lending program."

The GAO raised questions about whether the Department is ade-
quately managing its existing multibillion dollar program and
noted that, one, the Department lacked controls to adequately
manage the existing multibillion dollar student assistance pro-
grams, and, two, problems erupting from these programs could
eventually overwhelm any potential reform measures.

To show you the magnitude, let me tell you about one of the pro-
grams that is known as a model program, the Pennsylvania Higher
Education Assistance Agency [PHEAA]. Just to show you what the
magnitude of this program is that we are talking about, last year
PHEAA handled approximately 519,000 applications. They paran-
teed $1.7 billion in GSL volume. They serviced 6.9 billion in GSL
volume. They had an administrative budget for GSL-related activi-
ties of $66.9 million. They employed 1,697 people. And they served
a7 the designated guarantor for Pennsylvania and West Virginia.

And I think everyone that I heve ever talked to would say that
they are a rather ideal model, and o one has any complaints about
the way they have run the program. But I just want to show you
the magnitude. This is one higher educational assistance agency
guaranteeing a certain number of loans, and the number of people
they employ, the cost involved, et cetera.

1 0
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In order to give you the kind of information used in evaluating
a move to direct lending, I asked myself six questions.

One: Is the Department prepared to manage the data processing
requirements inherent in a direct loan program?

The Department has suggested direct lending will seek to make
student loans simple to administer and use. This will entail estab-
lishing a data exchange system that will enable students and
schools to get and exchange information on student loans through
a single source. Unfortunately, the Department clearly does not
have the expertise or the means of operating such a system.

The Labor, HHS-Education Subcommittee on Appropriations has
notea, "slow progress of the Department in developing a computer
system authorized in 1986, the National Student Loan Data Base."

As you may know, this data system is necessary to enforce eligi-
bility rules. They can't, at the present time, tell us which schools
are eligible and which aren't and who is participating that is nnt
eligible. I'm referring to tlie national student loan data bases, as
you may know, a system that is necessary to enforcing eligibility
rules as w:.:11 as statutory loan limits and other student aid.

The Appropriations Committee also noted the systemic
vulnerabilities in the structure of the student aid programs and the
Secretary's administration of these programs.

These examples demonstrate that the record of the Department
in management data systems is not a good one. The last Secretary
and Mr. Carnes were trying to improveand this Secretary wants
to continue thatthe administrative capabilities of the Department
of Education. But we are a long way from there. That is why the
pilot progrums seem to be the direction that we should be moving
in.

Two other recent GAO studies suggest that the Department does
not have the experience necessary to manage its own system and
is not prepared to manage a third-party contractor of such a sys-
tem.

First, a 1990 GAO report noted the Department is running a
multibillion dollar commercial loan operation with a data system
that contains incomplete, inaccurate, unreliable information. It
does not have accurate systems of internal control to assure that
Federal assets are safeguarded against waste and loss.

In 1992, the GAO report noted the Department lacks proper sys-
tevis and controls to adequately manage its multimillion student
assistance programs. The Department's student loan information
systems contain data that are not always useful, timely, or accu-
rate, thereby limiting their use for compliance and evaluation pur-
poses.

A recent incident casts doubt on the Departm. nt's ability to man-
age a comprehensive data processing system.

The Department's central processor sent thousands of confiden-
tial financial aid forms to the wrong school. The Department said
this error resulted from a deci-ion to save money by not printing
a supplemental form that has -een routinely distributed with the
form in prior years. Apparently, the expertise did not exist at the
Department to foresee the possibility of problems created by not
using the form.

1'1
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My second question: Does' the Department have the financial
management expertise necessary to assure sound program manage-
ment of direct loans?

There is overwhelming evidence that the Department is not pre-
pared to administer these monthly accounting functions under the
direct loan program. These functions, however, fir, critical to the
program's viability. If adequate safeguards are nm in place from
the beginning, the program could be subject to considerable abuse.

Under the administration's proposal, institutions will either be
authorized to originate direct loans themselves, or they will work
with a designated third-party loan originator under contract to the
Department of Education.

If the school originates loans directly, requests for funding will
be sent electronically to the Department which will wire funds to
the school. The institution will, in turn, disburse funds to the stu-
dent pnly after receiving a completed loan application promissory
note.

Finally, the school will reconcile its escrow account 30 days after
the end of the month in which the loan was disbursed.

This is a very complicated program, and that is why I keep going
back to the same conclusionwe should first do the pilot program,
authorized last year in the committee.

A March 1993 GAO report noted that the Department did not
have reliable and timely data on which to base its estimate of the
future cost of outstanding guaranteed loans. The GAO estimated
that the cost could have exceeded $10 billion by September 30,
1991.

Education developed its estimate of $6.1 billion using a model
based on an analysis of data which were not reliable and a number
of other assumptions about the program and the economy, some of
which were not reasonable. In addition, significant unreconciled
differences existed between financial information recorded in the
Department's general ledger, subsidiary systems, and Treasury re-
ports.

More directly put, the GAO noted, education's internal account-
ing controls over the student loan program did not reasonably en-
sure that integrity and reliability of its financial management re-
ports were possible.

The third question I ask: Will the direct loan program be subject
to increased default and other losses resulting from poor oversight
over eligible institutions?

Under the current guaranteed loan program, a large proportion
of the audits and program review of schools are performed by guar-
antee agencies. This safeguard of Federal funds would be lost
under the direct loan program.

Under direct loans, any school determined to be eligible to par-
ticipate in the program would have virtually unlimited access to
student loan funds. While easier access to funds for needy students
attending quality schools is desirable, under direct loans, some
less-than-quality schools will find it easier to pick the Federal pock-
et.

Will the Department do a better job than it has in the past in
protecting students from the abusive schools? ,

t 2
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I certainly hope so. And I also believe that progresa is being
made. Unfortunately, however, the Department's past performance
in the area of institutional eligibility -Irtification and oversight is
horrendous.

The litigation against the Department has generally been
brought by schools who believe that their published default rate is
higher than actual experience at the school or that the Department
of Education included loans that had not been adequately serviced.
In some cases, millions of dollars of loans were made available to
a school that was subaequently discovered to have a default rate
well above the minimum level specified in the Higher Education
Act.

Perhaps the most damning assessment of the Department's abil-
ity came from the Department of Education's own inspector gen-
eral, James Thomas, Jr., who, before the Nunn committee, testified
that an audit issued in 1989 disclosed that the Department's finan-
cial analysis certification procedures were not adequate to protect
students or the interest of the Federal Government.

Let me quickly go on, and you can read
Mr. TOWNS. Your entire statement will be included in the record,

as you know.
Mr. GOODLING. I am emphasizing some of these things, because

I want to be sure that you understand the magnitude of what it
is that we are doing because I may be the only person here to tes-
tify about that. And so that is why I am trying to point out some
very specific possibilities where trouble can arise.

The fourth question was: Does the Department have the overall
management capability to run the program?

Well, the most dramatic example of problems in the proposed bill
is the claim that the administration would lower borrowing rates
by one-half of 1 percent starting in fiscal year 1997.

In 1997, the legislation calls for the borrower interest rate to be
based on a secunty with comparable maturity. A quick review of
the Wall Street Journal suggests that the last auction of U.S. secu-
rities shows an increase, not a decrease in borrower interest rates
would result. If the administration's proposed interest rates for-
mula were in place today, Stafford loan borrowers would be paying
three-fourths of 1 percent higher than under current law. Again,
another reason why we have to be careful.

The Perkins loan programs, currently administered by the De-
partment, most closely parallels many features proposed for direct
lending. And I invite you to review the record of that program.

The fifth question: Would shortcomings at the Department ad-
versely impact the default experience under the new program?

As you know, Mr. Chairman, the administration asserts that
there would be no increase in defaults under direct loans, notwith-
standing the fact that the government has a poor recordI empha-
size thatin collecting debts owed to it.

The Congressional Research Service has suggested that the de-
fault experience under the direct loan program could indeed in-
crease. CRS notes such a direct loan system has a high potential
to have a higher default rate even when compared to a guarantee
program.

13
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My final question: Would the Department be able to adequately
project necessary loan volume?

And I already touched on that and said they haven't been able
to do it with Pell. They haven't done it with student loans. And I
don't know how, all of a sudden, with a direct loan program, they
would be able io do that. I am concerned that the entitlement
funds from the direct loans would be threatened if the Department
does an equally poor job.

I would conclude by saying that I think it is very interesting that
the colleges and universities that support direct lending without
going through a pilot program to see whether it can be effective or
not, probably don't understand reconciliation in the House of Rep-
resentatives. I do. I know what we do in reconciliation, just as we
do here. We automatically say there will be x number of dollars
saved. What did we do in Medicare? We say we won't attack those
receiving; we will hit the providers. Who are we kidding? Somebody
has to pay what Medicare doesn't pay, and you know who that is.
You and. I pay.

So what will happen down the line when the Budget Committee
says, well, you are going to have to come up with x number of dol-
lars of savings; And we will say, let's look at the colleges and uni-
versities.

Then they a-e going to be down here screaming, hey, why didn't
you do the pilot program? So again, I think you are doing a great
disservice to the institution, first of allbecause it is this institu-
tion that will suffer if we don't do wellby having this hearing.

And again I just plead that we go the route of the pilot program
and make sure that we know what we are doing, because if we
aren't successful and we have eliminated all those who are respon-
sible for providing the existing program, then we have nothing.

So, again, thank you for having the hearing.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Goodling follows:]

1 4
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Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to testify today

on the Department of Education's ability to administer a direct

student loan program.

I must admit I accepted the Subcommittee's invitation to

testify today with some reluctance. The subject of the

administrative capability of the Department creates an

expectation that the testimony will be negative. I for one, am

reluctant to criticize the Department, where there are numerous

hard-working, competent and creative civil servants. I also know

that the new Secretary is continuing the commitment which began

under Secretary Alexander to raise the overall quality of the

management capability of the Department. I know we all will

support him in this effort.

Unfortunately, however, the Congress is now being asked to

dramatically expand the role of the Department in the single

largest student assistance program--student loans at a time-when

their management abilities are being seriously questioned.

Many educational institutions, students, and others
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knowledgeable about student loans are concerned that if the

Department fails to administer a direct loan program properly

students, their parents, and educational inotitutions will be

hurt.

I congratulate Chairman Towns, Ranking Member Schiff,

Congressman Payne, and Craig Washington who sit on the Education

and Labor Committee with me, and the other Members of the

Subcommittee for holding this hearing. I hope that the testimony

received will be used both to evaluate the Department's

administrative abilities as well as to help guide improvements at

the Department.

Late last year the General Accounting Office (GAO) directly

addressed the issue of the Department's administrative

capabilities. The GAO noted: "the inventory of known problems

in the Department's administration of guaranteed student loans

raises questions about its ability to adequately manage a direct

lending program." More importantly, the GAO raised questions

about whether the Department was properly managing its existiug

multi-billion dollar programs. The GAO observed that the

Department, "lacks proper systems end controls to adequately
.

manage its multibillion dollar student assistance programs, and

problems erupting from these programs could eventually overwhelm

any potential reform measures."

17
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The GAO findings choed those of the Senate Persanent

Subcommittee on Investigations chaired by Senator Sam Munn. In

its report on fraud and abuse in the federal student assistance

programs, the Subcommittee noted:

"The Subcommittee's investigation revealed that the

Department of Education has failed to efficiently or

effectively carry out it's [student loan] responsibilities.

Virtually every witness described instances of gross

mismanagement, ineptitude, and/or neglect in the

Department's performance of its [student loan]-related

regulatory and oversight functions."

It was partially on the basis of the GAO's and other assessments

of the Department's preparedness to run a direct lending program

that I oppose the Administration's proposal.

In reaching ny conclusion that the Department currently

lacks the administrative capability to administer a direct loan

program, I asked myself six basic questions, that I would like to

review:

1. Is the Department prepare to manage the data processing

requirements inherent in a direct Loan program?

s,
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The Department has suggested that it will seek to make

direct loans simple to administer and use. This will entail

establishing a data exchange system that will enable students and

schools to get and exchange information on student loans through

a singlet source. Unfortunately the Departaent clearly doss not

have the experience or the means of operating such a system.

The Labor, HHS -Education Subcommittee on Appropriations has

noted the "slow progress of the Department in developing a

computer system authorized in 1986--the National Student Loan

Data Base." As you nay know, this Data System is necessary to

enforce eligibility rules, as well as statutory loan limits and

prohibitions against defaulters receiving additional Federal

student aid. The Appropriations Committee also noted the

"systemic vulnerabilities" in the structure of student aid

programs and the Secretary's administration of these programs.

These examples demonstrate that the record of the Department

in management data systems is not a good one.

Two other recent GAO studios suggest that the Department

does not have the experience necessary to manage its own system

and is not prepared to manage a third-party contractor of such a
system.

First, a 1990 GAO report noted: "The Department is running

19
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a multibillion dollar commercial loan oparation with a data

system that contains incomplete, inaccurate, unreliable

information. It doss not have accurate systems of internal

control to assure that federal assets are safeguarded against

waste and loss . . ."

Second, a December 1992 GAO report noted, "The Department

lacks proper systems and controls to adequately manage its

multimillion student assistance programs . The

Department's student loan information systems contain data that

aro not always useful, timely or accurate, thereby limiting their

use for compliance and evaluation purposes."

A recent incident casts doubt on the Department's ability to

manage a comprehensive data pre-essing system. The Department's

central processor sent thousands of confidential financial aid

forms to the wrong school. The Department said this error

resulted from a decision to save money by not printing a

supplemental form that has been routinely'distributed with the

form in prior years. Apparently, the expertise did not exist et

the Department to foresee the possibility of problems creet by

not using the form.

2. My second question was, Does the Department have

the financial management expertise necessary to assure sound

program management of direct loans?

2 0
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Under the Administration's proposal, institutions will

either be authorized to originate direct loans themselves or will

work with a designated third party loan originator under contract

to the Department of Education. If the school originates loans

directly, requests for funding will be sent electronically to the

Department, which will wire funds to the school. The institution

will in turn disburse funds to the student only after receiving a

completed loan application/promissory note. Finally, the school

will reconcile its escrow account thirty days after the end of

.the month in the loan was disbursed.

There is overwhelming evidence that the Department is not

prepared to administer these monthly accounting functions under

the direct loan program. These functions, however, are critical

to the program's viability. If adequate safeguards against abuse

are not in place frow the beginning, the program could be subject

to considerable abuse.

Consider the following:

--A March, 1911 GAO report noted that "The Department did

not have reliable and timely data on which to base its estimate

of the future cost of outstanding guaranteed loans. The GAO

estimated that the cost could have exceeded $10 billion by

September 30, 1991. Education developed its estimate of $671

billion using a model based on an analysis of data which ware not

21
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reliable and on a number of other assumptions about the program

and economy some of which were not reasonable. . . . In

addition, significant unreconciled differences existed between

financial information recorded in the Department's general ,

ledger, subsidiary systems, and Treasury reports." More directly

put, the GAO noted, "Education's internal accounting controls

over the [student. loan 1 :ogram] did not reasonably ensure the

integrity and reliability of its financial management reports."

On the basis of this, I do not believe it is prudent to ask

the Department to assume loan administrative responsibility for a

$20 billion a year student loan program.

3. My third question was, Will the direct loan program be

subject to increased defaults and other losses resulting from

poor oversight over ligible institutions?

Under the current guaranteed.loan program, a large

proportion of the audits and program reviews of schools are

performed by guarantee agencies. This safeguard of federal funds

would be lost under the direct loan program.

Under direct loans any school determined to be eligible to

participate in the program would have virtually unlimited access

to student loan funds. While easier access to funds for heady

students attending oualitv schools j desirable, under direct

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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loans some less than quality schools vill find it easier to pick

the Federal pocket.

Will the Department do a better job than it has in the past

in protecting students from abusive schools? I certainly hope

so, and / also believe prociress is being made. Unfortunately,

however, the Department's past performance'in tho area of

institutional eligibility, certification and oversight is

horrendous.

The Department has been successfully sued.by several

institutions over faulty cohort default rates. Notwithstanding

the fact that the practice of calculating default rates to

eliminate high default rats schools from the pr-Igram is now in

its 5th year. The Department has yet to adequately assure the

quality of cohort default rate data so as to avoid such

litigation.

The li-zigation against the Department has generally been

orought by schooll who believe that their published default rate

is higher than actual experience at the school or that the

Department of Educttion included loans that had not been

adequately serviced. In some instances, however, the

Department's errors go in the other direction. In one well

publicized case, millions of dollars of loans were made available

to a school that was subsequently discovered to have a default

23
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rate well above the minimum level specified In the Higher

Education Act.

The Department of Education has delegated a major portion of

the responsibility for oversight of schools to guaranty agencies,

which now perform most of the program reviews and have been

involved in many of the limitation, suspension, and termination

procedures. When these entities are disbanded or are forced to

reduce their levels of activity, will the Department of Education

have to undertake these functions?

Perhaps the most damning assessment of the Department's

ability came from the Department of Education's Inspector General

James B. Thomas, Jr., who before the Nunn Committee testified

that "An audit issued in 1989 disclosed the Departmenz's

financial analysis certification procedures were not adequate to

protect students or the interest of the federal government."

There is no evidence convincing me that this basic

underlying problem regarding the Department's ability to oversee

the expenditure of federal monies has been solved or even

adequately addressed. The elimination of guaranty agencies that

have greatly assisted the Department in assuring that Federal

monies involved in the student loan program are spent for the

purposes for which they are intended gives me great hesitation.

2
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I seriously question whether the Department is prepared to

take on these new responsibilities, notwithstanding the very

substantial inc in authority in audit requirements included

in the 1992 amendments to the Higher Education Act.

4. My fourth question was, Does the Department have the

overall management capability to run the program?

Going beyond any particular programmatic expertise is the

question of whether the Department has the overall management

expertise necessary to design, implement, and operate a direct

loan program. The most tangible evidence of the Department's

record in this regard is the direct loan legislation submitted to

the Congress in April. A detailed critique of this legislation

is far beyond the scope of this hearipg. However, I must note

that the legislation submitted to Congress has very few operative

parameters, calls for a suspension of the General Education

Provisions Act (GEPA) so as to allow regulations to-be issued

without community review, and otherwise had several provisions

which, to my mind simply do not make sense.

The most dramatic example of problems in the proposed bill

is the claim that the Administration would lower borrower

interest rates by 1/2 of a percent starting in fiscal year 1997.

In 1997 the legislation calls for the borrower interest rate to

be based on a "security with comparable maturity". A quick

25
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review of the Wall Street Journal suggests that the last auction

of U.S. Treasury securities prior to June 1st shows an increase

not a decrease in borrower interest rates would result. If the

Administration's proposed interest rates formula were in place

today, Stafford loan borrowers would be paying the rate 3/4 of a

percent rate higher than under current law; SLS borrowers would

be paying a rate of more than 8/10 of a percent higher; and

parent borrowers would be paying 1.4 percent more.

It is unclear to me whether the Administration simply did

not understand what they were proposing or whether the economic

projections used by the Department suggest that somehow ifi FY

1997 the interest rate formula would indeed produce lower

borrower interest rates.

The Perkins Loan program is the student aid program

currently administered by the Department that most closely

parallels many features proposed for direct lending. While the

Department expects to improve its administrative.capabilities to

operate the direct loan program, its historical record in

administering the Perkins Loan program is far from stellar. The

Perkins program has been plagued by huge default rates,,which

required the government to purchase many bad loans, by delays in

getting funds to institutions, and by mismanagement of federal

capital contributions at the campus level.

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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5. My fifth question was, would shortcomings at tno

Department adversely impact the default experience under the new

program?

As you know Mr. Chairman, the Administration asserts that

there would be no increase in defaults under direct loans, not

withstanding the fact the government has a poor record ln

collecting debts owed to it. The Congressional Research Service

(CRS) has suggested that default experience under the direct loan

program could indeed increase. CRS notes "such a (direct loan

system has a high potential to have a higher default rate even

when compared to a guaranty program with no default gcoring."

This woUld result from the Department not managing loan servicing

and collection less effectively and efficiently from the

Department. Historically, the Department has collected loans

less effectively than the guaranty agencies even though they are

both used the same third party collectors.

6. My final question was, would the Department be able to

adequately project necessary loan volume?.

The direct loan program will entail the Departments of

Treasury and Education making available to education

institutions, directly and through alternative originators, a

sufficient amount of funds in a timely Ashion so as to allow

loans to be made to students. This will require adequate advance

planning in the sale of treasury securities amounting to more

27
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than $100 billion during the first 5 years of full implementation

of the program, and also accuratelY projecting loan volvases

demands. The Department of Education's recent experience in the

Pell Grant program it; telling. For each of the past 5 years the

Department has made major errors in assessing the necessary

volume of Pell grants for the coming academic year. This has

contributed to reductions in the maximum grant as called for in

the 1992 Higher Education Amendments and under prior law. As you

know Mr. Chairman, the Pell Grant Program currently suffers a

shortfall of approximately $2 billion. In face of this

shortfall, the maximum grant for this coming academic year, 1993-

94, had to be reduced from $2400 to $2300, well under the

authorized levol of $3,700.

I am very concerned that the entitlement to funds from

direet loans will be threatened if the Department does an equally

poor job in projecting the demand for direct loans.

Conclusion

Mr. Chairman, there is significant evidence that'suggests

that the Department is not running the current student financial

aid programs very well. The necessary increases in

administrative responsibilities inherent in direct loans suggests

that the Department will be overtaxed. I feer these new

responsibilities Will create a significant risk of an overall
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management breakdown. It must not be forgotten that the

Department will be asked to run two programs simultaneously --

the phase-down of the current Federal Family Education Loan

program and the pnase-in of the Federal Direct Student LOan

program.

The phase-down of the current program by itself may prove tc

be an insurmountable management task for the Department in that

it is very likely to involve the insolvencies of two dozen or

more guaranty agencies and the need for the Department to act in

assuring continued loan access to students who may find it

difficult to secure student loans during this transition period.

I believe it would be reckless for the Congress to proceed

with direct loans until some measurable improvement in the

Department's management ability is demonstrated. It makes far

more sense to first test the concept of direct lending. We

agreed to a significant sized pilot in last year's

reauthorization of the Higher Education Act, I hope that we can

give that pilot an opportunity to get started and learn from it

while giving the Department an opportunity to continue to address

its management deficiencies.

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to testify

beforeyou today, I would be pleased to respond to any questions

that you may 'have.
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Guaranteed 3tudant Loan proaria

In Academic Year 1991-92, PHEAA:

o processed 519,000 GSL applications.

o guaranteed $1.7 billion in GSL volume.

o serviced $6.9 billioa in GSL volume.'

o had an administrative budget for GSL related activities of
$66.9 million.

o employed 1,697 ,,sople.

o served as the designated guarantor for Pennsylvania and
West Virginia.
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Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much Congressman Good ling. I hope
that you will be able tc stay.

, Mr. GOODLING. Yes, if my chairman doesn't start screaming. I
am supposed to be in his office at 11 o'clock.

He is my chairman.
Mr. ANDREWS. I would be happy to defer so Mr. Good ling could

take questions.
Mr. TOWNS. I will yield to any questions for Congressman Good-

ling.
Mr. SCIIIFF. I just have one question.
You emphasized the need to test in a pilot program. I am not

quite clear. Do we have a pilot program now? I believe we do.
Mr. GOODLING. Yes, we authorized a rather large pilot program

in last year's reauthorization of the Higher Education Act so that
we coulcl get small institutions, medium, and larger institutions in-
volved.

Unfortunately, it won't move for another year and we are already
talking about just jumping in totally.

Mr. SCHIFF. So we have never actually implemented the pilot
program?

Mr. GOODLING. No. It is sitting there ready to go.
Mr. SCHIFF. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I yield back.
Mr. TOWNS. Any other members?
Mr. Horn.
Mr. FURN. In your idea of a pilot program, what time period do

you see to test that? How many institutions would you suggest be
involved?

Would they be on a regional basis?
Mr. GOODLING. As I indicated, we madebecause of the efforts

of the gentleman to my right, we made the pilot program quite
large so that we covered all regions, and all sizes of institutions.
We started out with 200 institutions.

If you are in the business of having all sorts of money coming
to your institution and you are dealing with that, you probably can
do some of this without too much trouble.

Most institutions are not in that position, and they don't have
that kind of endowment to support administrative functions.

Mr. HORN. Are you thinking of a 2-year program?
Mr. GOODLING. I think it is over in 1997.
Mr. HORN. A 5-year program.
Mr. GOODLING. Yes. This isn't anything new.
Mr. Petri has had this on the table for 10 years.
Mr. PETRI. Twelve.
Mr. GOODLING. Twelve. Excuse me.
And Mr. Andrews has had it on the table for 2 or 3 years. So

it isn't anything new. But we finally got to the pilot program,
which I think is the route we should go.

Because, as I said, our past history with the Federal Government
and direct lending from both sides of the aisle has been condemned.
You can read pages in the Congressional Record, the condemnation
of the direct lending by the Federal Government.

Mr. TOWNS. Congressman Mica.
Mr. MICA. Just thank you, Mr. Goodling. As a skeptic, you have

confirmed my worst suspicions. Thank you.
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Mr. GOODLING. Well these two gentlemen will take those terrible
suspicions away.

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you for coming and joining us. Thank you
very much.

Congressman Andrews.
STATEMENT OF HON. ROBERT E. ANDREWS, A REPRESENTA-

TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank you for this
opportunity to be here this morning.

And I think Mr. Good ling's testimony was offered in the spirit of
identifying real and legitimate administrative problems for this
idea. And I know this hearing is put forward in the same spirit.
I appreciate that, and I speak on behalf and in support of the ad-
ministration's bill and in support of the idea of direct lending.

There has been a great deal of testimony and a great deal of

speech making and a great deal of letter writing in opposition to

an immediate change in a student loan program nationalized and
run by the Federal Government. And well there should be, because
direct lending is not an immediate change. It is not the nationaliza-
tion of the student loan program, and it would not be run by the
Department of Education. If it was going to be like that, the bill
that was before us today, I would join those who are skeptics. But
that is not what is before us. I would like to talk about what direct
lending isn't and is and why we are having such a debate as we
are having over this in the Congress.

Direct lending is not the nationalization of student loan pro-
grams. Section 457 of the bill that several of us introduced that is
now part of reconciliation supported by the administration calls for
the Secretary of Education to. contract out, on a competitive basis,

the responsibility and obligation to collect and service the loans
that would be made to students around the country.

Who would collect the loans? The most competent, qualified, com-
petitive bidder would collect the loans under that system.

Who would originate the loans? Would they be originated by the
Department of Education? No, they would not. In the case of
schools that were judged to be competent to originate their own
loans and who were willing and volunteered to do so, the schools
themselves would originate the loans as they originate Pell grants
and Perkins loans.

The difference between direct lending- and guaranteed lending is

basically this: Instead of the taxpayer guaranteeing the loan, the
Federal Treasury is the original source of the loan. Are the tax-
payers bearing a greater risk of default? Marginally.

Under the present system, it is estimated that the taxpayer is
bearing 93 percent of the risk. And in this system, it would, be 100

percent. We believe it might be a lower default cost because of
some of the changes in approvals.

Is this an immediate overnight change? I listen to the critics of
direct lending, and sometimes you get the impression that the next
academic year every school in America will be radically changing
the way it does student loans. That is not the case. The bill phases
in over a gradual 5-year period. In the first year, only 4 percent
of the institutions in the country would be participating in the pro-
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gram. In the second year:29 percent; and in the third year, slightlyover half of the institutions would be participating in the program.Is it the nationalization of the program? No.
Would the Department of Education be collecting the loans? No.Would it be an overnight change away from a system that wehave now? No.
Is the system that we have now something that works with greatefficiency and productivity? Well, it depends upon your point ofview. I would suggest that some of the Members might want to goback to their districts and have some students who are paying theirloans tell them what they think of the vaunted efficiency and thelack of complication under the present system.
Students must deal with a multiplicity of banks, grant agencies,

collection agencies, lots of other players in the present system. Ifyou think the present system is streamlined, efficient, simple, andeasy to deal with, ask your students in your district; ask your stu-dents what they think about the present system.
What is direct lending? It is the very basic idea that taxpayersof this country have not been paying someone else 8 percent inter-est on money that we could borrow at 31/2 percent interest. Thatis the very basic idea there. It is a franchise granted by the presentsystem to banks and other lenders in the system that gives themthe right to collect cash-flow from the Federal Treasury on moneythat apparently is supposed to leverage their administrative exper-tise on money that we could borrow at a much, much lower rptethan they are presently borrowing under the system.The GAO said that we could save $1.3 bilhon per year or moreif we were to switch to the system of direct lending.
Does the administration count on a savings of $1.3 billion peryear? No, it does not. As a matter of fact, the savings that are con-tained in the reconciliation contain savings estimates that are con-siderably lower and more conservative and less optimistic aboutthe generation of savings than has been called for by the GAO.Is direct lending a perfect system that will work that we are ab-solutely sure of? Of course it is not. That is why it is being phasedin over a 5-year period. That is why no school would be compelledto be a part of it. And that is why the Department of Educationis not required to immediately initiate an overnight collection sys-tem. That is why the bill calls for a marriage of what we think isthe best of the public sector, the cheaper cost df acquiring capitalwith the best of the private sector, the efficiencies to be gained ona competitive basis.
Why is there such heat and furor over this issue? If it works, di-rect lending is a transfer of income, over $1 billion a year, from anindustry that has grown up around the program to students. It isa transfer of $1 billion a year from banks and secondary marketsand guarantee agencies that are siphoning off $1 billion a yearfrom the Federal Treasury to students. That is what the fury andsound is all about.
Gentlemen, ladies, we have seen this before. The Defense De-partment orders an airplane that won't fly or a ship we don't need,a vehicle that won't work; and as soon as someone criticizes it, allthe people that have vested interests in building it flock to CapitolHill. VThat do they say? They don't say, don't take away our Fed-
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eral subsidy; what they say is, the national security depends upon
building this plane or making this ship or making something go
forward.

This is the same argument. This is an airplane that does not fly.
Our program and the administration's program calls for this to be
phased in over a 5-year period. There will certainly be administra-
tive difficulties. The savings may not be as high as the GAO says,
although many of us believe that it will be. But anybody who wants
to defend the efficiency of the present system, the met savings of
the present system, in my opinion, must carry the burden of show-
ing_that this idea will not work.

We are prepared to carry the burden of showing that it will. And
we urge the members of the subcommittee to look carefully at the
idea and lend it their support.

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much, Congressman Andrews.
Congressman Petri.

STATEMENT OF HON. THOMAS E. PETRI, A REPRESENTATWE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

Mr. Pwriu. Thank you. I appreciate you allowing me to crash this
hearing at Rob's invitation, and I want to briefly state a few things.

First of all, I want to commend the President, Secretary Riley,
and Under Secretary Kunin for working on this program. I express
my strong support for what they are domg as the senior Republican
on the Higher Education Subcommittee, to illustrate that this is
one example of where the President is bringing us together and
getting support from both political parties for a major initiative to
try to make government work better, more efficiently, and serve
people who deserve to be served wellyoung people and students
and taxpayers at the same timeby d.eveloping a more efficient
program with the money focused on where it should be going, rath-
er than being dissipated in overhead.

I would just make a few brief points. A lot of the people who are
expressing the need for studying this and how we ought to look at
a pilot program, have been fighting for the last 12. years to have
a pilot program. They don't want any change. And if there is to be
a change, they want it to be as slow and grudging as possible. They
didn't fight to get a pilot program, but they are now clutching at
that as one means of possibly delaying it.

I want to commend you, Mr. Chairman, your subcommittee, for
having this hearing for focusing on the need to manage this pro-
gram well. And I hope that this will be a sustained interest and
that you will be working closely with the Education Department as
they move forward because it is important that they do manage
this well. And it certainly is something that I think they will be
able to do.

Some say the Education Department is ill equipped to contract
out and that banks should be relied on. They have the expertise
in this area. You know what banks do? They contract out. They are
not experts in data processing. They rely on specialized organiza-
tions, and they are the same organizations that the Education De-
partment will contract with.

We don't need to give the banks a subsidy to provide them with
the ability to contract out. Why not contract directly and save $500
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million in profit? This is something that our society has evolved
into. If it won't work, it won't work because the private sector can't
supply the expertise. I believe they can. They are doing it for all
sorts of organizations, public and private. And I believe that your
committee and others working closely with Secretary, Riley and his
team will be able to devise a good methodology for developing the
bidding process and making it work to everyone's interest.

And with that, I want to thank you for having this important
hearing.

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much, Congressman Petri.
I would like to yield to the ranking member, Congressman Schiff.
Mr. SCHIFF. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
First of all, I want to congratulate ...11 of our colleagues, all three,

for excellent testimony. I have not come to a conclusion in this mat-
ter, and I think all three witnesses have been excellent in pointing
out the issues.

Therefore, the questions I have may be a little bit like a devil's
advocate.

Congressman Andrews, your theoretical statement about why
should we pay 8 percent to a bank when we can borrow for 31/2 or
whatever it might be, is a good theoretical approach. But does it
not ignore the history of what happens when government bureauc-
racies get involved?

And what costs might be incurred there?
Mr. ANDREWS. No. It goes forward with that very much in mind.

That is why the bill does not call for the loans to be serviced and
collected by a government bureaucracy. It calls for the contracting
out of those services by the Department of Education.

The idea behind direct lending is to pass the savings of the Fed-
eral Government volume discount borrowing advantage on to stu-
dents families rather than to have that discount avoided and ig-
nored and wind up creating a needless and expensive subsidy.

I want to repeat that the administration's bill, our bill, does not
call for the Department of Education to service and collect the
loans. It requires them, directs them, empowers them, to call for
the best of the private sector to do that job.

Mr. SCHIFF. The universities I have talked with back in New
Mexico have expressed concern. I assume this to be a nationwide
concern.

Would this change impose any additional requirements on the
universities either in the awarding of student loans or collection of
student loans that would impose costs upon them?

Mr. ANDREWS. Yes, it would impose costs on them.
The second part of the answer is that the bill specifically re-

quires the school to allow an administrative allowance to cover
those costs as set forth in the bill.

Another clarification that I want ta give you, because it is a dis-
tortion that is running around, is that somehow the colleges and
universities will be required to originate these loans, and they will
be the recipient of new legal liability.

The way this bill is written, any institution or university that
wishes to originate a direct loan and which has been judged ta
have the capacity by the Department, will have the right to do so.
An institution which chooses not to originate the loan will be given
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the option of getting loans for their students originated by an alter-
native originating entity, whether that would be a higher education
assistance authority, an institute, or a consortium in their State,
or a bank.

The other point that I want to make clear is that the school is
not responsible for collecting the loan and is not liable if the loan
is not collected. There has been some information where some
schools are under the misperception that that is the case, and it
is not.

Mr. SCHIFF. Can I get into the immediate practical aspects of
where we are?

You have made several references to the Budget Reconciliation
Act. Is this self-executing in the act?

Mr. ANDREWS. It is self-executing in the Budget Reconciliation
Act. I regret that. I think there should have been separate legiila-
tion. I say that as an advocate of the idea.

But the administration chose to take advantage of the savings of
direct lending in the budget reconciliation.

Mr. SCHIFF. If we do get it out as a separate itemand I under-
stand Congressman Petri is questioning the advocacy of a pilot pro-
gram not being advocated in the past, wouldn't it make sense to
try a pilot program and see if there was savings in the program?

Mr. ANbREWS. Yes, it would. That is why we have a pilot pro-
gram in the system.

At the end of the third year, only slightly over half would have
participation in this program.

Mr. SCHWF. I thank you.
I yield back, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. TOWNS. Mr. Sanders.
Mr. Horn.
Mr. HORN. I would like to hear from each of the witnesses how

they feel about collection of the student loans being the responsibil-
ity of the Internal Revenue Service from the tax system that these
students would participate in through the rest of their lives.

And as I understand, it is not in the initial administration bill.
It. would have to be a separate action, either an amendment to that
bill or later on.

How do you both feel about it? And why are you for it? Or why
are you against it? As the case may be.

Mr. PETRI. I strongly support it. And we did get several amend-
ments adopted to the last higher education reauthorization to
allow, under certain circumstances, the IRS to collect student
leans, either those in default or at the option of a student.

I think having contingent repayment by the IRS makes very good
sense for all the parties involved. From the point of view of the bor-
rower, it means they are not in default if they are not earning
money right after school. The loan is automatically rescheduled,
and they can tell they aren't able to pay by the tax return filed.
Default is a bad thing. It is bad for the government and the de-
faulter because they get a bad credit rating. And later on, when
they want to buy a house or start a business, they are behind the
eight ball.
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And so I think contingent repayment by the IRS will save the
taxpayer money. If the money is there, it will be collected; and if
it is not there, the loan should be rescheduled.

So I am pushing hard, and we are continuing to work with the
new head of the IRS in this administration. She is favorably in-
clined toward the idea. The IRS is in the midst of a major national
effort, which has not been widely heralded, to radically upgrade
their computer processing capability. And by the time they are fin-
ished, they will be able to do the same as Master Charge and ev-
eryone else and keep individual accounts and figure out this sort
of thing electronically. And then it will be mechanically feasible as
well.

So it is something that should be phased in increasingly over the
next 4 or 5 years. And we are working in that direction.

Mr. ANDREWS. I agree with it, too. I think IRS collection is an
excellent idea. I wish the bill went further in that direction than
it does at present.

What I would like to see happen is to have specific authority for
the Secretary of Education, in concert with the IRS, to do this. My
prediction is that is where we will be in 5 years, and that is whywe should be

Mr. HORN. Would you accept an amendment on the floor to add
to the bill?

Mr. ANDREWS. Conditionally. I would with the proviso that the
administrative details be worked on. One of the problems with IRS
collection is that IRS collection in payroll withholding obviously
comes against wage income only. People have income in other cat-
egories, obviously, as well. And there are questions about the com-
plications of reporting and collecting it. But the idea of people mak-
ing repayment the same way they make their tax payment. is good
work. And I am sympathetic to such an amendment.

Mr. HORN. Is there any fear of some of the members of your com-
mittee that if they involve the IRS they will lose jurisdiction to the.
Ways and Means Committee.

Mr. ANDREWS. Our committee never fears losing jUrisdiction to
anyone else. There are some concerns about that, yes. And I sus-
pect that that may be part of the reason why the bill doesn't go
as far as some of us would like to see it go at this point.

Mr. TOWNS. Congressman Mica.
Mr. MICA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I have a copy of a CRS report from June 4. And just reading

something that says here, "real economic savings would be
achieved"this is from a direct government loan programonly if
the government serviced and administered the program more effi-
ciently than the private sector; a proposition subject to dispute.

That is the basis for a lot of my criticism, that the government
can mess up a two-car funeral and, historically, has accomplished
that on many occasions.

Mr. Goodling sat here and said you have no technical computer
base, you hare no financial structure, you have increased default,
less audit capability than the current system, you have no manage-
ment capability; and history says that the programs that they have
already been involved in have been a disaster.
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Mr. ANDREWS. Do I really think the government could run the
system better than the private sector? No, I do not. But the bill
does not call for that. The bill calls for the Department to go to the
private sector and go to the most competent bidder.

Mr. MICA. I have not been here long. I serve on another sub-
oommittee. We have been looking at EPA. EPA contracts out a
great deal of their operations. And the problems that EPA has with
administering their programs that they contract out is the same
things that Mr. Good ling just went over here. All those systems
just don't work. And when you rely on a government agency to im-
plement them, even to do the contractingwhich EPA is a perfect
example ofyou have a disaster; and EPA is a total disaster.

I would like to be optimistic also, as I started out when I came
here 5 months ago; but I cannot see, without these things first
being in placeand even if they were in place, I am still a skeptic.

W. ANDREWS. Here is the economic architecture of this idea. The
present system says that the taxpayers you and I represent, pay
to banks for in-school interest an interest rate that is 310 basis
points higher than the Treasury bill rate, 3.1 percent. If the admin-
istrative system that is contemplated by direct lending would cost
less than 310 basis points, this idea will save money. By definition.

It doesn't matter if the interest rate is 15 percent or whether it
is 4 percent or 6 percent because it floats.

To use your EPA example. It would be as if the EPA knew that
there was a set of engineering companies that could do a service
in cleaning up superfund sites for 30 percent less than the ones
they are presently using, but they still chose to go to the ones
cleaning up the superfund sites for the 30 percent.

I understand the argument that we shouldn't turn something
done well in the private sector over to the government. That is at
the first level of rhetoric in this debate. That is what people hear,
and they are attracted to oppose this idea.

That is not what this idea does. This is nothing more than a pub-
lic subsidy for an industry to do something in terms of a capital
acquisition that we could do cheaper and better. That is all this is.

And if the proposal said we are going to set up a huge bureauc-
racy in the Department of Education to set up and service loans,
that criticism would be valid. But because the bill does not call for
that, I think the facts are different than those which underlie the
question.

Mr. MICA. I hope your proposal and history show me wrong.
Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much.
We have been joined by Congressman Payne, who has been in-

volved in this issue over the years.
Congressman Payne from New Jersey.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I see my colleague from New Jerse:,. And, Mr. Andrews, I would

like to commend you for the effort you have put into this direct
loan program.

I also see our colleague here, Mr. Petri, who has worked hard in
the Education and Labor Committee.

I understand that it is a 5-year phase in program. And I wonder
if you could explain how it is phased in over the 5-year period.

33.



34

Mr. ANDREWS. The administration's bill calls for a phase-in by
percenta,ge of schools participating. In the first year, it is 4 percent
of the schools in the country. In the second year, I believe the num-
ber is 29 percent. And it escalates up toward 100 percent in 5years.

Mr. PAYNE. IS it the largest schools or smaller schools or a com-bination?
Mr. ANDREWS. The Secretary is directed to create a mix of the

phase-in to get a broader picture of how the different sizes of
schools would handle the idea.
, Mr. PAYNE. Have there been demonstration programs to date? I
understand there was a demonstration program a few years ago.

And if so, what were the results of that?
Mr. ANDREWS. There was a demonstration program authorized in

the 1992 reauthorization. And as you well know, having been a
supporter of it, the demonstration program has never gotten under-
way because it was scheduled to get underway July 1, 1993. So
there has never been a demonstration program of this idea.

Having said that, let me make the point that the Perkins loan
program calls for schools to do much more than they will do under
direct lending because schools do collection under Perkins. They
would not under direct lending.

Second is that many people believe that the paperwork involved
in processing a Pell grant .for a school is virtually the same as the
paperwork identified with processing a direct student loan. It is not
quite accurate to say that processing a Pell grant is the same thing
as processing a direct student loan, but it is very, very similar.

Mr. 7NYNE. Just a final question: As you know, the GAO had in-
dicated, I think in a report, that in their opinion the Department
does not have the capacity or personnel with the skills to handle
the accounting, the financing, the information systems.

Also, additional personnel would be needed and people with spe-
cific skills will be required. Have we examined whether the pro-
jected savings would be offset by additional spending in these otherareas?

If in fact there are overruns and the need to increase spending
in the Department arises, would that mitigate against the amount
of loan dollars available for students?

Mr. ANDREWS. Mr. Payne, I share that concern. And the best an-
swer that I can give you is this: The most optimistic assessment
of direct loan savings was $6.5 billion. The number that is plugged
in the bill is, I believe, $4.57 billion.

The idea being we would take a lower estimate of the savings so
as to avoid the problem about which you speak.

Mr. PAYNE. I think that we ought to move ahead and attempt to
streamline systems. Anything that saves money that would then go
to the student, I think is commendable. So I really support the con-
cept.

I do know that some of the small schools are concerned. It is al-
most like the founding of the constitution where the large States
wanted one sort of a system and the smaller States wanted a Sen-
ate-type system. The large States want to go by population. I use
that analogy because we see the same thing in a lot of instances;
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the smaller schools being concerned about their ability to operate
within the parameters of this system.

Mr. ANDREWS. Yes.
Mr. PAYNE. But I think that if the rate of change internally in

an agency or institution is not the same as that of the general com-
munity, then that operation becomes obsolete.

Mr. ANDREWS. I have also heard, as I think Tom has, from small
institutions that we are involved with and represent. And in an at-

, tempt to address their valid concerns, the administration's bill does
not require any institution te originate direct loans.

If an institution chooses not to take that obligation, students at
that school would still get direct loans. Those loans would be origi-
nated through another entity designated by the Department of
Education for that area.

The entity might be a guarantee agency. It might be a consor-
tium of colleges or schools that are formed for that purpose. The
way the bill is written, no college, career school, university, com-
munity college, would be required to originate direct loans if it
chose not to. And schools that were deemed to be inadequately pre-
pared to do so by the Department would not be permitted to. Their
students would be directed to the alternative entities.

Mr. PAYNE. That is an important point. It was suggested that
perhaps one of the larger schools in Illinois could handle all of the
schools from smaller institutions where the feeling was that they
couldn't handle direct lending.

The other problem also, though, is that some of the schools are
still in the dark ages regarding their computer systems. And many
even have little 5 by 7 cards in a little box. That is inefficient and
they should get into the 21st century.

But there is a question and a concern from some of the less en-
dowed institutions and some State-run schools that the costs for
upgrading their technology at the school or bringing on more capa-
ble people to administer this program will not be offset, nor would
there be any funds available from the Department of Education or
from some other public entity, State or Federal, to offset the addi-
tional costs that they are going to incur by trying to upgrade their
systems.

The upgrading is great, and everybody should be proficient and
really in the 21st century. But the fact is that they are not, and
they are wondering where this additional money will come from.

Mr. ANDREWS. I think the best way to respond is that the pro-
gram is analagous to the present transaction that schools operate
under with the Pell grants. It isn't as complicated as one would
originally think.

Second, this is being phased in. So the vast majority of schools
would have a 2, 3, or 4-year period to contemplate exactly how they
want to handle this.

Third, it won't be imposed upon anyone. A school which chooses
not to upgrade capacity and originate student loans, will have their
students directed to another originating entity.

And the bill expressly provides for the allocation of administra-
tive costs to cover the costs of the program.

Mr. TOWNS, Thank you very much.
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And let me thank you fer the time and energy that you have put
into this issue; and Congressman Petri, for your time and effort as
well. I thought your testimony was outstansling. We look forward
to working with you further.

Mr. ANDREWS. We appreciate the opportunity. Thank you.
Mr. TOWNS. Our next witness is Clarence Crawford, the Associ-

ate Director for Education and Employment Issues, U.S. General
Accounting Office.

Mr. Crawford, I am going to ask you to swear and affirm an
oath.

Would you raise your right hand.
[Witness sworn.)
Mr. TOWNS. Let the record reflect that the witness answered in

the affirmative.
Mr. Crawford, let me begin by saying it is a pleasure to have you

testify before the subcommittee. Your prepared statement will be
included in the record, you have 5 minutes to summarize your tes-
timony.

Before you do so, we would like for you to introduce your associ-
atpg.

STATEMENT OF CLARENCE C. CRAWFORD, ASSOCIATE DIREC-
TOR, EDUCATION AND EMPLOYMENT ISSUES, U.S. GENERAL
ACCOUNTING OFFICE, ACCOMPANIED BY GLORIA JARMON,
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, ACCOUNT AND FINANCIAL MANAGE-
MENT DIVISION, AND WAYNE UPSHAW, ASSISTANT DIREC-
TOR, HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION
Mr. CRAWFORD. I am happy to do so, Mr. Chairman. I am accom-

panied by, on my right, Gloria Jarmon and on my left, Wayne Up-
shaw.

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee. We arepleased
Mr. TOWNS. Pardon me.
Mr. SCHIFF. I assume both are from the same agency.
Mr. CRAWFORD. From the General Accounting Office. They are

involved in the financial aspects of the student loan program.
Mr. TOWNS. You may proceed.
Let me just say to the members, I have tried not to use the 5-

minute rule, but I think that we will have to start using it.
We will start it with you, Mr. Crawford.
Mr. CRAWFORD. That is fine, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, we are pleased to

be here today to discuss the Department of Education's implemen-
tation of the Federal direct student lending program. I will just
summarize my statement, and in doing so, I will focus on the De-
partment's experience in operating the current guaranteed loan
program and lessons learned for the implementation of a direct
lending program. We are aware of the administration's proposal to
set aside, in effect, the direct lending demonstration in favor of
phased in, full implementation.

While the guaranteed loan program has been very successful in
providing access to postsecondary education for millions of Ameri-
cans, the access has come at a cost with well documented abuses.
As a result of these abuses, the Comptroller General has des-
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ignated the guaranteed student loan program as a high-risk pro-
gram, and much of our testimony today will be based on our high-
risk report and other reports that we have issued.

As was mentioned by the other witnesses, the guaranteed pro-
gram is complex. In part due to the complexity, the program has
a number of problems, and the first problem is in the area of its
structure. The program lacks adequate performance incentives for
participating lenders, guaranty agencies, and schools. And the be-
havior of all participants, including students, is not always in the
best interests of the American taxpayer; and finally, the Depart-
ment lacks the resources and the enforcement tools to properly
monitor and oversee the program.

As was mentioned by the other witnesses, gatekeeping is another
area of concern where the Department's procedures governing the
schools that can participate in the program, have been weak. As a
result, the Department has not been very effective in weeding out
some of the abusive schools.

In the financial management and information systems arena, the
Department's systems are not adequate to provide the necessary
information to manage and oversee the program.

Because of the above kinds of problems we identified, continued
attention on the part of Congress and the administration will be
necessary, whether or not they choose to go with a direct lending
program phasein or continue the pilot. It is important to note, how-
ever, that Congress, the Department, and the Office of Manage-
ment and Budget have recognized these problems and have at-
tempted to correct. c!taffing inadequacies, controls over schools, and
oversight of lenders anti guaranty agencies.

In our December 1992 high-risk report, we recognized that a di-
rect lending demonstration was on its way to becoming reality. We
suggested that the Department proceed cautiously with a direct
lending demonstration program to ensure its proper implementa-
tion and subsequent evaluation. We wish to reaffirm that message
today.

You also asked us Mr. Chairman, to talk a little bit about some
of the key areas that the Department should focus on in imple-
menting a direct lending program. As discussed in rny written
statemlifit and mentioned by many of the other witnesses, poor
management of the program could be a problem, and the Depart-
ment needs to understand the risks and manage them as it imple-
ments direct lending. It needs to make sure that its management
and oversight iS adequate. In the human resources arena, it needs
to make sure that it has the right number and kinds of people on
board. It needs to make sure that the contracts for loan servicing
and support are adequate to meet the program's needs, and that
eligible students have full and complete access to the program. And
it needs to also manage the winddown of the guaranteed student
loan program.

In summary, the Department has many challenges. It must be
prepared to work out the kinks, to minimize the risks. It must
if limitations on access or increases in loan defaults occuridentify
and address these issues early.
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Mr. Chairman, this concludes my summary. My colleagues and
I would be happy to answer any questions that you or other mem-
bers of the subcommittee may have. Thank you.

(The prepared statement of Mr. Crawford follows:l
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

I am pleased to be here today to discuss the Department of
Education's implementation of the Federal Direct Student Loan
Program. You asked that we focus on the Department's experiences
operating the current guaranteed student loan program--the Federal
Family Education Loan Program--and the lessons learned from these
experiences as the Department begins to implement and transition to
direct lending.

As you know, we began reviewing the direct lending issue about 2
years ago as the Congress was preparing to reauthorize the Higher
Education Act of 1965, as amended. In November 1992, we reported
that significant cost savings could accrue to the government by
making loans directly to students and replacing the guaranteed
student loan program--whereby private lenders make loans that the
federal government ultimately guarantees against default. These
savings were mostly attributed to changes in the government's
income from the. net interest margin--the difference between the
interest rate charged to borrowers and the government's cost of
borrowing--and the elimination of interest subsidy payments to
lenders. Besides such cost savings, direct lending would require a
less complex loan delivery system, benefiting the government
through more efficient and cost-effective loan servicing and

t providing a simpler system for students and schools. But some of
the schools' student aid administrators and business officers with
whom we spoke shared with us their concerns about the Department's
ability to manage a direct lending. program. Poor management of a
direct lending program by the Department of Euucation could inhibit
access to loans by eligible borrowers and trigger more loan
defaults, which could substantially erode any potential cost
savings.

In our report, we cautioned that if the views of student aid
administrators and business officers are indicative of the views of
others, realizing the potential savings from direct lending will
require substantial effort on the part of both the schools and the
federal government. We suggested that for direct lending to
succeed, the Department of Education will need to (1) work with the
postsecondary education community and (2) provide strong program
leadership as it prepares to implement direct lending.

The Higher Education Amendments of 1992 authorized a direct loan
demonstration program to operate concurrently with the guaranteed
student loan program. The demonstration is to operate with loans

'Student Loans: Direct Loans Could Save Billions in First 5 Years a
with Proper Implementation (GAO/HRD-93-27, Nov. 25, 1992).
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made from July 1, 1994, through June 30, 1998. The Department is
selecting about 250 schools to operate with direct loans and a like

number of schools to serve as a control group by continuing with

guaranteed loans. We will evaluate the demonstration, reporting to
the Congress before January 1, 1997, on our interim results and
issuing a final report before May 1, 1998. The remaining schools
would continue participating in the guaranteed program, generally
unaffected by the demonstration.

Also, the administration is proposirg that the Student Loan Reform
Act of 1993, through H.R. 2264 (which passed the House on May 27,

1993) and S. 920, would replace the direct loan demonstration and

authorize the implementation of direct lending with a phased-in
program beginning in July 1994. Beginning in school year 1998, all
new student loans would be direct loans. The Department would
continue to operate a guaranteed loan program, servicing loans and

collecting funds from the outstanding loan portfolio.

STUDENT LOANS--A HIGH-RISK PROGRAM

The current guaranteed student loan program has been the subject of
great scrutiny during the last few years primarily because of the

rising costs related to defaulted loans. We, as well as the
Department's Office of the Inspector General, the Office of
Management and Budget, congressional Committees, and others, have

reported numerous inefficiencies in the Department's management and

administration of the program.

'The guaranteed loan program has provided billions ,f dollars of
financial aid to postsecondary students since its inception in

1965. It has been very successful in providino, access to a
postsecondary education for millions of students. But with this

access came a variety of abuses reported in the media, including
ineligible students receiving loans, schools (mostly for-profit
trade schools) focused more on making money than on providing their
students an education, and lenders making loans to fictitious
students and fraudulently collecting federal funds for defaulted

loans that were not properly made or serviced. These kinds of
abuzes have occurred, in part, because the Department of Education
has had difficulty appropriately balancing borrowers' easy access

to loans with proper controls to protect the federal government's

financial interest.

As you know, the Comptroller General has designated guaranteed
student loans a high-risk program.' We reported on the

'Programs were selected an high risk because they had weaknesses in

internal controls or in financial management systems, and
correcting these problems is essential to safeguarding scarce
government resources and ensuring their efficient and effective

use.
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vulnerabilities in the loan program in December 1992 in one of our
17 hign-risk reports. We discussed many of the problems, their
principal causes, and our suggestions for improving the guaranteed
loan program. Our high-risk report and others we issued during the
iast few years form the basis for our statement today. (See
attachment for list of related products.)

STUDENT LOANS--A HISTORY OF PROBLEMS

The loan program has been besieged with a variety of problems, the
causeu of which are many and the fixes for which are far from
simpl. The program is complex, which contributes to its
vulnerability to abuse. For example, there are over 7,500 schools,
7,800 lenders, and 46 guaranty agencies sharing responsibility for
annually making about 4 million loans--averaging less than $2,900
each--to millions of borrowers. The Department makes interest
subsidy payments and pays claims for defaulted loans without
adequate documentation, relying on billings submitted by lenders
and guaranty agencies. In addition, the program has an Inherent
risk built into it: most loans are made to borrowers who have
little or no credit history. This, not surprisingly, contributes
significantly to high default rates.

The Congress and others recognize that there is an inherent risk in
a program of this nature. But there are also known vulnerabilities
in how the program is being managed that can.and should be
addressed. We have reported on these kinds of vulnerabilities
several times,' and they include:

Program Structure

Within the current structure, the Department has struggled to
manage the numerous participants as it made 515 billion in new
loans in fiscal year 1992, and guaranteed a ioan portfolio totaling
$63 billion as of September 30, 1992. The oehavior of all
participants--schools, students, lenders, and guaranty agencies--
has not been in the best interest of the American taxpayer. This
has led to abuses, such as lenders making loans to fictitious
borrowers, guaranty agencies not adequately reviewing and paying
defaulted loan claims or maintaining accurate loan data on
borrowers, schools misrepresenting their academic capabilities, and

'High-Risk Series: Guaranteed Student Loans (GAO/HR-93-2, Dec.
1992).

'Including High-Risk Series: Guaranteed Student Loans (GAO/HR-93-
2, Dec. 1992); Financial Audit: Guaranteed Student Loan Program's
Internal Controls and Structure Need Improvement (GAO/AFMD-93-20,
Mar. 16, 1993); and Stafford Student Loans: Millions of Dollars in
Loans Awarded to Ineligible Borrowers (GAO/IMTEC-91-7, Dec. 12,
1990).
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students falsifying their loan applications. In addition, the
Department lacks the resources and enforcement tools to
appropriately monitor and oversee this large group of participants.

The program lacks adequate performance incentives for lenders,

guaranty agencies, and schools participating in the program. For

example, we reported that lenders and guaranty agencies are paid

for defaulted loans if certain servicing steps (called due

diligence) are taken. But guaranty agencies generally pay lenders
100 percent of loans that default, and the agencies generally

receive 100 percent from the Department if they are unsuccessful in

keeping a loan from defaulting. After the Department pays default
claims, the guaranty agencies retain the loan and continue trying

to collect it, retaining 30 percent of amounts that they may

subsequentially collect. According to Department data, during
fiscal year 1991, about 13 percent, or more than $200 million, of

guaranty agency revenues were from collections on defaulted loans.
Therefore, the agencies have more incentives to collect on loans
after they are defaulted than to work with borrowers and lenders to

prevent loans from becoming defaulted because (I) agencies can earn

additional revenue from default collections but not from performing

due diligence procedures and (2) default-prevention incentives have

not been as effective as intended.

Gatekeeping Procedures

The Department's gatekeepinq procedures for determining which

schools can participate--and continue to participate--in the

program have been weak. The Department's oversight has been
minimal, and lt must rely on others--accrediting organizations and

state licensing agencies--to ensure the quality of education that

schools provide. Such slack oversight practices have not been

successful in weeding out schools that exhibit abusive behavior,

such as collecting tuition payments for marginal instruction. For

example, the lure of plentiful financial aid for proprietary school

students, and abusive practices of some proprietary schools--

including fraud--has had a disproportionate impact on defaults. In

1990, students attending these schools represented 41 percent of
borrowers, but 77 percent of those who had defaulted loans.

Financial and Management Systems

The Department's fnancial and management systems are not adequate

to provide the information necessary to manage and oversee the

program and protect the federal interest. To illustrate:

Management information systems contain data that'are not always

accurate and timely, limiting the systems' use for compliance

and evaluation purposes. For example, in a sample of loan data
reported to the Department by guaranty agencies, 2 of 10

agencies that we reviewed did not send in their loan data

within 60 days of the end of fiscal year 1991. This late
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reporting resulted in these agencies receiving a higher than
appropriate reimbursement for delaults. Both of the agencies
we reviewed that submitted reports after the year-end cut-off
date would have been reimbursed by the Department at a lower
rate if they had reported on time.

A complete and accurate student loan data system was lacking,
which contributed to loans being made to borrowers in default
or otherwise ineligible for loans. This condition exists, in
part, because data submitted by guaranty agencies in many
instances are incomplete, inaccurate, and not timely, and the
Department has little means to ensure that accurate data are
submitted. For example, our analysis of Department data showed
that about $42 million of new loans were made to students in
fiscal year 1988 who had defaulted on earlier loans. Another
$5 million may have been loaned to students during the 12
months ending August 1988 in excess of annual statutory loan
limits. In addition to making these loans, the government paid
interest subsidies to lenders over the life of the loans.

A shortage of qualified staff plagues the management of the
guaranteed loan program. The program office has a shortage of
adequately trained staff, and some staff members lack the
appropriate skills, such as finance, information systems, data
analysis, planning, and policy making skills. For example,
there are few employees with financial or accounting
backgrounds to administer the $15 billion in new loans-made
annually.

Financial audits do not include in-depth examinations of the
accuracy and validity of lenders' and guaranty agencies claims
for interest subsidies, defaulted loans, and administrative
cost allowances. For example, at times, records supporting the
Department's payments to lenders and guaranty agencies have
been missing, incomplete, or inaccurate. Also, the Department
has relied heavily on an honor system in its financial
management activities. It pays over $5 billion annually to
lenders and guaranty agencies based on unaudited summary
billings.

American taxpayers, therefore, have been underwriting a program
that lacks the oversight and internal controls needed to properly
safeguard its substantial investment. The Department of Education,
schools, lenders, and guaranty agencies should do more to control
the program's risks.

FIXING KNOWN PROBLEMS IN
THE STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM a

Many of the problems we identified will require the continued
attention of the Congress and the Department of Education whether
student loans continue to be provided by private-sector lenders and
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guaranteed by the government or made directly by the government.

The Congress, the Department, and the Office of Management and
Budget have recognized these kinds of problems and attempted to

correct many of them. For example, the Department has worked to
correct staffing inadequacies, controls over schools, and oversight

of lenders and guaranty agencies. Nevertheless, the urgency of
resolving these kinds of problems is important because under either

the existing legislation in which the Department will operate the

direct lending demonstration program or the pnased-in program as

specified in H.R. 2264, the Department of Education will be

operating two student loan programs concurrently. Whether private

lenders or the government originate student loans makes fixing the

Department's underlying data collection and supporting systems as

soon as possible imperative.

What cAn be done to address the Department's management

efficiencies? One principal issue that deserves attention is the

structure of the guaranteed student loan program. There are more

participantslenders and guaranty agencies--than are needed to

effectively operate the program. With the automation and
electronic transfer capabilities in existence today, providing

borrowers access to loans can be ensured with fewer participants.

A program with fewer participants would also make the Department's

oversight and monitoring responsibilities more
manageable, as well

as streamlining the loan delivery system for both schools and

students.

We want to discuss several other issues that we believe should be

addressed, whether the current system is retained or direct lending

is implemented In some fashion.

The need to continue strengthening the Department's gatekeeping

procedures to more effectively determine the fiscal and

administrative capabilities of schools seeking to participate

in student aid programs, as well.as those wanting to continue.

Part of this effort should include the use of outcome measures,

such as school completion rates and job placement rates.

Strengthening the incentives for effective loan servicing and

default prevention by lenders, guaranty agencies, and

servicers, partly by establishing results-oriented default

prevention incentives, and partly by comparing the needs and

benefits of the current number of guaranty agencies with the

benefits of consolidating the guaranty agencies.

Exp,iiting efforts to levelop a comprehensive plan to identify

anc arrect longstanding problems in the Department's financial

and nformation management systems for its student loan

programs.

In our high-risk report, we recognized that direct lending (we were

referring to the demonstration program) was on the way to becoming
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a reality. We suggested that the Department proceed cautiously
with the direct lending demonstration program to ensure its proper
implementation and subsequ:nt evaluation. We wish to reaffirm that
message today, whether the Oepartment phases in full implementation
or operates the demonstration program as authorized by the 1992
amendments.

IMPLEMENTING DIRECT LENDING

You also asked that we comment on the key areas that the Department
should focus on as it prepares to implement direct lending. As we
discussed earlier, poor management by the Department of Education
could increase the risk of failure as direct lending is
implemented. The primary loser in such a scenario would be
students and schools if access was somehow compromised, and the
federal government and taxpayers if defaults were to increase. To
minimize these risks, the Department needs to keenly focus on
properly implementing direct lending. While we have not performed
an in-depth review of this subject, we believe a comprehensive
strategy is needed for the direct loan conversion effort. This
strategy should address the management and oversight of the
conversion, human resources and support requirements, loan
servicing and support to schools and students, and management and
the winding down of the guaranteed loan portfolio. Along these
lines some of our specific observations, on the basis of our past
work, include:

Management and Oversight Ensure that the Department's
management structure is adequately overseeing the design and
implementation of direct lending and the winding down of the
current guaranteed loan system. Among its responsibilities are
the development of specific project and acquisition plans and
timelines and the early identification and prompt management of
risks, along with the development of the information and
financial management systems to support direct lending, which
includes interaction with the existing guaranteed student loan
systems.

Human Resources and Support In determining and obtaining the
resources needed to implement direct lending, the Department
should ensure that it is identifying adequate technically
qualified staff, contract support, equipment, and space. For
example, it must address how it will manage the staffing needed
for the development and implementation period, as well as
articulate how it will handle winding down the guaranteed loan
program.

Loan Servicing and Support to Schools and Students Assuring
access to student financial assistance must continue to be a
principal objective. The Department must continue to develop
and execute contracts that will encourage the efficient
servicing of loans and provide proper incentives for default

5
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prevention. It must issue necessary rules and regulations in a

timely manner, develop a strategy for providing training a....
other assistance to schools as they assume new responsibiliti,1

unaer direct loans, and provide "on demand" assistance to
students and school financial aid administrators and business

officers.

Guaranteed Loan Proaram wind Down Develop a strategy for the
oraerly management and winding down of the current $63 billion

loan portfolio. The Department should explore alternative
strategies for winding down the current program and provide

back-up systems as lenders and guaranty agencies wind down or

stop participating in the guaranteed loan program.

In summary, implementing direct lending will be a challenge to the

Department of Education. It must be prepared to promptly work out

kinks in t.le program to minimize the risks. If limitations on
access or increases in loan defaults occur, the Department must
Identify ana address them early to ensure the integrity of direct

lending as the principal federal provider of financial aid to

postsecondary students.

Mr Chairman, that concludes my statement. My colleagues and I

would be happy to answer any question that you or the other

Committee members may have.

Attachment
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ATTACHMENT
'ATTACHMENT

RELATED GAO PRODUCTS

Department of Education: Long-Standing management Problems Hamper
Reform (GAO/HRD-93-47, May 28, 1993).

Financial Audit: Guaranteed Student Loan Program's Internal
Controls and Structure Need Improvement (GAWAFMD-93-20, mar. 16,
1993). 4

High-Risk Series: Guaranteed Student Loans (GAO/HR-93-2, Dec.
1992).

Transition Series: Education Issues (GAO/OCG-93-18TR, Dec. 1992).

Student Loans: Direct Loans Could Save Billions in First 5 Years
With Proper Implementation (GAO/HRD-93-27, Nov. 25, 1992).

Guaranty Agency Solvency: Can the Government Recover HEAF's First-
Year Liquidation Cost of $212 Million? (GAO/HRD-93-12BR, Nov. 13,
1992).

Guarahteed Student Loans: Prompt 1-ayment of Origination Fees Could
Reduce Costs (GAO/HRD-92-61, July 24, 1992).

Guaranteed Student Loans: Eliminating Interest Rate Floors Could
GeneraZe Substantial Savings (GAO/HRD-92-113, July 21, 1992).

Student Financial Aid: Education Can Do More to Screen Schoois
Betore Students Receive Aid (GAO/HRD-91-145, Sept. 27, 1991).

Student Loans: Direct Loans Could Save Money and Simplify Program
Administration (GAO/HRD-91-144BR, Sept. 27, 1991).

Student Loans: Characteristics of Defaulted Borrowers in the
Stafford Student Loan Program (GAO/HRD-91-82BR, Apr. 26, 1991).

Stafford Student Loans: Millions of Dollars Awarded to Ineligible
Borrowers (GAO/IMTEC-91-7, Dec. 12, 1990).

Defaulted Student Loans: Analysis of Defaulted Borrowers at
Schools Accredited by Seven Agencies (GAO/HRD-90-178FS, Sept. 12,
1990).
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Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much. And let me say to my col-
leagues that we are applying the 5-minute rule. However, if you
would need a second round, then we will agree to do so. But let's
try to adhere to the 5-minute rule as we move along.

Let me thank you very much, Mr. Crawford for your testimony.
Earlier Congressman Andrews testified that the GAO and the

administration estimate that a direct lending program could save
the Federal Government over $4 billion. I have a letter to this sub-
committee dated May 26, 1993, from the Congrressional Budget Of-
fice which reported that the real savings on direct lending would
be around $2 billion.

Mr. TOWNS. Have you seen the CBO letter?
Mr. CRAWFORD. Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. We have.
Mr. TOWNS. How do you reconcile the differences between your

cost savings and the CBO cost savings?
Mr. CRAWFORD. When we prepared our cost savings estimate last

year, we were assuming, for the purpose of the exercise, a full 5
years of implementation of direct. lending. We did not consider a
phasein. That is one aspect of it.

Second, there is a difference in the interest rate assumptions
that we used last year, based on the CBO estimates. CBO adjusted
its rates downward since we issued our report, and if we revised
our rates downwardly to be consistent with the current numbers,
CBO and GAO estimates are much closer.

In short, when you take into accountand also the treatment of
administrative costs under credit reform, certain administrative
costs are not present valued. When we did our model, we tried to
look at the full cost of direct lending.

When all of these differences are taken into account, and if we
were to essentially do a similar-type analysis as CBO, we would
tend to agree that a phasein would result in a lower cost savings.

Mr. TOWNS. So it is safe to say that both the GAO and CBO are
in general agreement about the cost savings?

Mr. CRAWFORD. That is correct.
Mr. TOWNS. Without objection I would like to place the CBO let-

ter of May 26, 1993, into the record.
[The information follows:]
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May 26, 1993

Honorable Edolphus Towns
Chairman
Subcommittee on Human Resources

and Intergovernmental Relations
Committee on Government Operations
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

Based on your May 14th request, the Congressional Budget Office has prepared the
enclosed cost comparison of the reconciliation recommendations (if the Commuee on
Education and Labor relating to direct student loans. You requested that 030 provide
estimates of the direct loan proposal using the estimating rules stated in the Credit Reform
Act of 1990 that requires federal administrative expenses to be estimated on a cash basis
and under an alternative technique in which all federal administrative expenses associated
with each year's loans are estimated on a net present value basis.

Under the proposed direct loan program, administrative expenses will increase v. he n
students begin tither to repay loans or to default on loans. When administrative expense,
are estimated on a cash basis, these higher administrative expenses are not included in the
estimate because they will generally occur after 1998. For this reason, when admirustrause
costs are estimated on a net present value ba;i3, the estimated costs of a direct student ;oar
program increase and the resulting savings from converting the current guaranteed Iimr
programs to direct loan programs fall.
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Honorable Edolphus Towns
May 26, 1993
Page 2

As shown in the enclosed table, vg: estimate that the five-year savings of S4.27 billion
from the Education and Labor Committees proposal to convert current guaranteed loan
programs to direct loans fall to S2.08 billion when federal administrative expenses are
estimated on a net present value basis.

If you wish further details on these estimates, we will be pleased to provide them The
C130 staff contact is Deborah Kalcevic. who can be reached at 226-2820.

Enclosure

cc: Honorable William D. Ford
Chairman
Committee on Education and Labor

Honorable William F. Good ling
Ranking Minority Member
Committee on Education and Labor

Robert D. Reischauer
Director
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COMPARISON OF COST ESTIMATES
OF

THE HaUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE
Reconciliation Recommendation for Direct Student Loans

Under a Proposed Subsidy-Basis Scoring Rule for Administrative Costs
Compared to the Current Cash-Basis Scoring Rule for Administrative Costs

(by fiscal years, in millions of dollars)

1994 1995 1946 1997 1998
1994-1998

Total

Direct Student Loans With Administrative Costs
Under Proposed Subsidy-Basis Scoring'

Estimated Budget Authority 85 5 -405 -945 -1,110 -2.3-0Estimated Outlays 130 40 -260 -85.; -1,135 -2.080

Direct Student Loans With Administrative Costs
Under Current Cash-Basis Scoring

Estimated Budget Authority 65 -180 -930 -1,895 -2.135 -5.075Estimated Outlays AL/ AV -1 610 -2 040

DIFFERENCE:
Estimated Budget Authority 20 185 525 950 1.025Estimated Outlays 15 125 390 755 905

a. Under credit reform. st the coas ol federal loan
mogramsenth the gumption of federal adentrustratrve ierestuneted on a subsidy bask Saadi, coats ars the eavnazed loneerm cos to the government on a na presentbasis amoczated with all the loam diebursed in any permitter fiscal year. It is them CMS whSCh &ft used for b..140scoring. However. under credit reform federal adrmustrarve coots ,Je eetimated on is cash-baad. Annual adrunati

<cats are measured in terms of net-caids erpendftures from Treasury in the year they are made and are auotI4Illlall loam outstanding dams that year. These cash costs are used for budge weivki.

Under amen( budget wont% rules foe the current guaranteed modem loan program, the coots asoctated ri e ,seregtag arid default caladium are included in the subudy coa calculation as one of the componenu of the lemur
reld. HOMOVIC (Nei sum ameadintrat for ths data student loan program are tacluded ut the catenated ...titwtaaal cmh beak The propmed sibiely-bem 'corms would include them loan esrvaang and default collection t -the same sibady boas aa thaw sambaed with the guaranteed low programa
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Mr. TOWNS. My understanding of your testimony and your pre-
vious reports on the student loan program is that it has been badly
mismanaged; is that correct?

Mr. CRAWFORD. There have been many problems, well docu-
mented in the news media, and in other places as well, including
the inspector general, the Office of Management and Budget, and
various committees here on the Hill. Correct.

Mr. TOWNS. It is also true that over the past several years the
political leadership at the Department has virtually ignored the
management needs of the student loan program?

Mr. CRAWFORD. I think that there have-been manapment prob-
lems at the Department. I don't think I am in a position to com-

. ment on what their thinking is. I can tell you that within the last
couple of years, the Department has been trying, and working pret-
ty hard in fixing things.

Mr. TOWNS. Let me put it this way: If these problems are not cor-
rected, what impact would they have on the effectiveness of a di-
rect lending proposal?

Mr. CRAWFORD. I think you have to recognize that the problems
that we and others have reported are large problems, and they
don't always lend themselves to very quick solutions.

When you move into the direct lending arena, in effect the De-
partment will be operating two programs, two relatively large pro-
grams. It will have the guaranteed student loan program that will
still have to be managed because of a portfolio of loans out there,
some $60 billion in loans that could perhaps be in existence for 10,
15, 20 years. At the same time, the Department faces the issue of
starting up a new program.

Some of the problems that are occurring now in the guaranteed
program would also impact the direct program. For example, in the
financial management and the information systems areas, there is
still a need to improve these systems as the Department builds the
direct lending program. If that is where it is going to head, into
some kind of implementation of direct lending, the Department still
has to be able to establish the interfaces needed between the direct
lending program and its information and data systems, and what
needs to be done with the guaranteed program as it is winding that
down. Also, some of the problems, such as gatekeeping concerns, in
terms of being able to do a better job of weed.ing out abusive
schools, is an issue that the Department must work on.

There are also issues of the qualifications of the staff that still
must be addressed. So these kinds of problems don't go away with
direct lending and the Department still has to, in many cases, ad-
dress them. Some of the problems that were identified with the
current problem just can't be ignored with direct lending, they can-
not be set aside.

Mr. TOWNS. Right, the words phasein and pilot program have
been used throughout the morning, which sound good, but I think
in order to correct the problems, wouldn't it be necessary for the
Department to have a comprehensive master plan defining what
the management problems are and how the Department intends to
correct these problems before moving forward?

Mr. CRAWFORD. Yes, I think it would be necessary for the De-
partment, embarking upon an effort of this magnitude, to develop
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an overall strategy, a plan as to how it is going to, one, develop the
direct lending program, two, continue to manage the guaranteed
loan program, three, wind down the guaranteed loan program, and
four, completely make the transition at some point in time to a di-
rect lending program.

Mr. Towfis. Well, I see the red light is on. Let me just ask one
more question. In your opinion, if the Department does not have
a master plan, what would your assessment be of its ability to
manage a direct lending program?

Mr. CRAWFORD. I think it needs a master plan to help it manage
the program. That is one way that it can manage the risk, to know
what are the risks. To move into the direct lending program with-
out having a master plan, or having plans to develop one in a rel-
atively short period of time, would not be a very good sign.

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much.
Congressman Schiff.
Mr. SCHIFF. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be brief.
To follow up, Mr. Crawford, on the chairman's askingyou to com-

pare GAO's view with the Congressional Budget Office, let me com-
plicate the matter a little further here and ask if you are familiar
with the Congressional Research Service report on this issue. I am
looking forI believe it is datedJune 4, 1993, is the date I have
on it.

Mr. CRAWFORD. Yes, sir, I have seen that.
Mr. SCHIFF. If I am reading them correctly, they arethey are

rather skeptical of how much savings and how you credit it. Is that
how you read it?

Mr. CRAWFORD. The CBOrather the CRS, has some different
assumptions, and we can talk about that. In fact, Mr. Upshaw can
give you highliglits of the assumptions.

Mr. UPSHAW. I think one of the principal reasons that CRS states
a lot of skepticism about the projected savings that we at GAO
have conducted, centers around their calculation of the prepayment
risk. While the prepayment risk is material, the likelihood of it
being a real showstopper or having a real material effect in terms
of eroding the cost is greatly mitigated by one, the Higher Edu-
cation Amendments of 1992 linking the mterest rate to market
rates, and two, the motivations for students to seek alternative fi-
nancing to lower their interest rates. Prepayment risks are greatly
reduced, and from a practical standpoint, pretty much eliminated.

Mr. SCHIFF. I thank you, Mr. Upshaw, for the answer.
Before I yield back, I want to make two observations. This whole

matter seems to me to be based upon the assumptions that are
being made, whether its for the Congress or our agencies.

The general theory goes like this: If we do it ourselves, we will
save the cost of the middleman, in this case the banks, and the
savings will be passed on to the students. I think it is a wonderful
theory, but you have to make certain assumptions that it will all
work that way in practice. And, you know, I am not sure we can
make all those assumptions.

I would further observe that some of the things I think we need,
such as getting the Internal Revenue Service perhaps further in-
volved in the collection of defaulted student loans, which has been
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referred to here, I think could be done today, without making any
other changes in the system.

Nevertheless, I again appreciate the testimony of this panel and
the information that they have provided.

I yield back to you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much.
Congressman Sanders.
Mr. SANDERS. No questions at this time.
Mr. TOWNS. Congressman Payne.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Is that time off of my 5

minutes? We are going to have to runbut let me mention one
thing, it seem to me, since we have the GAO report, the CBO re-
port, and the Library of Congress, the Congressional Research-CRS
report, it would appear that everyone is operating under a lot of
assumptions, and everything has been indicated as being an as-
sumption; and some people have a saying about assuming things.

You know, of course, this is a congressional hearing, but it would
appear to me that if these three agencies could somehow come to-
gether in a friendly, positive atmosphere to debate or to reconcile
the various assumptions and how each has come up withI think
we want to see something that is going to work, and save several
billion dollars, that means we have more resources for students
who are in dire need of them, then we support it.

It would appear to me, though, when you have agencies, all of
which are competent and respectedcome up with three different
views, that if necessary we would benefit by having those agencies
get together and have dialog about these different perspectives and
come up with some consensus report. I think this issue is too big
to go forward with such different assumptions and projected out-
comes.

And so I am sure that is not necessarily in your jurisdiction, but
maybe to you, Mr. Chairman, it might be a suggestion. I don't
know if Federal agencies can talk to one another. You know, I don't
want to start somethingI don't want to disrupt the government
flow. But it might be a suggestion that somehow

Mr. TOWNS. Maybe we can make an exception.
Mr. PAYNE. That is right. So that statementmy concern is

about the differences of views, and whether in some way, there
could be a reconciliation of those points of view. I would feel more
comfortable.

Thank you.
Mr. TOWNS. Thank you.
Mr. Mica.
Mr. MICA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The only question I had,

too, is from the CRS report.
One of the things that they had said in the report is that the

budget savings shift fiom direct lending are equally achievable by
adjusting lender returns in the current program. Was that looked
at as an option, adjusting lender returns in the current program;
or were you just looking at the direct loan-lending avenue?

Mr. CRAWFORD. We have looked atin the past, we had made
recommendations to adjust subsidies paid to lenders. I think also
that when we looked at direct lending and issued our report, we
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were lookingin addition to just the cost sayingswe were also
looking at, in some ways, a more simplified system.

The current guaranteed loan program system now has about
7,800 lenders, 47 guaranty agencies, and a number of secondary
markets. We were beginning to wonderlooking at our experience
with the problems that the Department was havingwhether in
addition to improved management, some kind of structural fix was
necessary. In today's environment, with electronic fund transfers
and other improvements in information, technology, and financial
management, we question whether there is really a need at present
to have a system with such a large number of participants.

So that was part of our motivation. Assuming that even if we did
improve the Department's management, it probably was a very
large sy_stem to manage.

Mr. MICA. Thank you.
Just finally, Mr. Chairman, the information you got: Was that

from the Congressional Budget Office and was that over a 5-year
period?

Mr. TOWNS. Yes.
Mr. MICA. So yours is about $400 million per year and yours was

$1 billion 1 year, 5 years, $5 billion?
Mr. CRAWFORD. Ours assumed a full 5 years of operation, not a

phasein, we also assumed a higher interest rate at the time. When
we use current CBO estimates for interest rates, CBO's scoring for
the budget more closely approximates ours.

Mr. MICA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. PAYNE. Mr. Chairman, if the gentleman would yield on that

point for a second. If you would merge the assumptions together,
from the other reports, then could there be a conciliation of their
respective conclusions? Maybe that is what we could do, to see if
everybody is on apples, rather than apples and oranges; and to see
how close they could come. Is that possible?

Mr. UPSHAW. With regard to CBO's projection, if you calibrate
the different conventions, then our bottom lines are approximately
the same.

Mr. CRAWFORD. Yes.
Mr. TOWNS. OK What I would like to do is break for 15 minutes,

come back at 12:10 and, maybe we can just finish with this before
we leave.

Do you have any other questions? Let me just ask two quick
questions.

The Department is currently developing the National Student
Loan Data System, which you have projected will not be ready
until December of this year at the earliest. What changes would
have to be made in the system in order to accommodate the data
necessary to implement a direct lending plan?

Mr. CRAWFORD. I would like Gloria Jarmon to respond.
Ms. JARMON. Currently, the first phase of the National Student

Loan Data System, from the latest estimate we have heard, would
be complete by mid-1994. Currently that system is planned to be
more of a data system, to maintain the data needed to determine
if students are receiving more loans than they should receive and
if defaulted students are receiving new loans they should not be re-
ceiving.
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It is our understanding that the system has not been designed
to include direct loan components. In order to include direct loan
components, I am sure there would have to be more financial and
accounting plans for the system to be able to be used as an ac-
counting information system. It is our understanding that the data
system is to be used as an information system, just to maintain
data, in the first phase. There are plans for future phases.

Mr. TOWNS. Let me thank all of you for your testimony. It was
very informative. As one of the members here stated, I think we
have some serious problems. Thank you, Mr. Cre'vford, Mr. Up-
shaw, and Ms. Jarmon; thank you very much.

When we return at 12:10, we will begin with Deputy Secretary
Kunin.

[Recess taken.]
Mr. TOWNS. Our next witness is the Deputy Secretary of the De-

partment of Education, Madeleine Kunin. As Deputy Secretary,
Ms. Kunin has taken the lead in implementing the "Reinventing
Government" initiatives in the Department. She is also 'the White
House and interagency liaison on such issues as national service,
education reform, and youth apprenticeship.

Ms. Kunin also served as the Governor of the State of Vermont
for three terms, from 1985 to 1991, where she became the first
woman ever elected to the position.

Let me at this point say to you that we appreciate the kind of
time that you have set aside for us this morning, and we apologize
for the delays, We thought we had one vote, but we actually had
two, and this took additional time.

In the interest of time, please summarize your statement. Your
entire statement will be included in the record. In terms of your
time constraints, I am certain that the members will cooperate
with you totally, because we know what it's like when you are sup-
posed to be somewhere else at a certain timewe all can relate to
that.

[Witnesses sworn.]
Mr. TOWNS. Ms. Kunin.

STATEMENT OF MADELEINE KUNIN, DEPUTY SECRETARY OF
EDUCATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, ACCOM-
PANIED BY MAUREEN McLAUGHLIN, ACTING ASSISTANT
SECRETARY, OFFICE OF POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION, AND
THOMAS P. SKELLY, DIRECTOR OF BUDGET SYSTEMS
MS. KUNIN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and members

of the subcommittee. And let me say, first off, that we very much
appreciate this chance for the new Department of Education, under
new management, to testify before th subcommittee and respond
also to some of the testimony that you have just heard. As you indi-
cated, I am happy to make my formal testimony part of the overall
record.

Of course, the reason we are here at all is because this is a
unique and, frankly, very exciting and important opportunity to
change the way government does business to better serve students
and their families, to save the taxpayers a considerable amount of
money and to pros ide the kind of access to higher education that
we all know is almost a necessity in today's economy.
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I think, just as an overall observation of the development of the
student loan program, there has always been a tension! if you look
back historically, between opening up access and providing every-
one a chance to get a loan or a grant who qualifies, so you can have
a college education, and simultaneously providing accountability
within that system to make sure the system is not abused. And
some of the long history, I think, has been a conflict between full
accountability and full access.

Our total policy is not to do one at the expense of the other. We
want to have full accountability in the student loan program as we
move toward direct lending, and we want to maintain the integrity
of the student loan system in the sense of providing that access to
students, providing a stable system that will not result in glitches
that interrupt the flow of capital, that interrupt the reliability of
the system. Because we take very, very seriously the great respon-
sibility placed on the Department of Education; the President of
the United States takes that responsibility very seriously, and so
does Secretary of Education Riley because, you know, there are 5
million students a year who depend on these loans for their edu-
cation, but the taxpayers also deserve to get the best deal.

When we are doing this, we obviously want to be sure that we
don't waste money, that we use it prudently.

Now, there are a couple of questions that came up this morning
that I would just like to respond to. One is the assumption that
there are a lot of estimates floating around that contradict one an-
other in terms of the savings. The answer is if you use the same
rulesand that is the Credit Reform Act of 1991if you use the
same rules, the estimates do not differ. In fact, the Department of
Education, the Congressional Budget Office, and OMB worked in
the past several months to reach a similar consensus that the over-
all saving is $4.3 billion over 5 years and that the annual steady
stream savings are $2 billion.

The recent CBO letter was a response to a "what if' question
what if you use different rules? If you went back to the old rules,
would there be a difference? Yes. But the whole financial syStem
of the government, the way everything is scored has to have certain
consistencies, so we are using the rules as they exist, as the law
'was passed, to score the savings. And I think that is an important
point that there is not as much diversity in the estimates as one
might assume on initial questioning.

Now, second, as far as the CRS report is concerned, without
going into a detailed analysis of that, the CRS report, one, assumes
that the present system is competitive. The present system, for all
intents and purposes, is not competitive; even though you have pri-
vate providers of some of the services, they are guaranteed a fixed
rate of return regardless of the quality of services that they pro-
vide.

I think that is a very, very important point. And it is one that
Congressman Andrews made as well. We are not taking a free en-
terprise system and federalizing it. We are, in fact, improving the
entrepreneurial and competitive possibilities by going toward and
finally implementing full direct lending, because people are going
to have to compete for the business in order to achieve a govern-
ment contract. They are going to have to compete on the basis of
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price and on the basis of quality, and the beneficiary will be the
taxpayer.

Right now, the benefits of competition never come to the Federal
Government because, regardless of performance, the same rate of
return is guaranteed. In fact, there are even some incentives to en-
courage defaults in the present system when guaranty agencies are
given 30 percent of the defaults that they collect.

One might even argue that it is moving the wrong way. The Fed-
eral Government, under the present system, has all the risk. The
Federal Government has to deal with a system that is so complex
that the GAO concluded thatin this report that you have heard
further comment onthat the structure of the system dooms it to
inefficiency.

The first thing that I did and that the Secretary did was to get
briefed on this GAO report, and the first thing we realized was
that the present structure would never enable us to run and man-
age an efficient student loan system and that the only alternative
was to move toward direct lending where you have greater simplic-
ity and, therefore, greater accountability. When you have 7,800
lenders, when you have 46 guaranty agencies, when you have other
secondary markets, you can imagine the complexity of the system.

Now, there have been legitimate questions raised about the ca-
pacity of the Department to manage this system. I think the most
forthright answer to give you is that regardless of whether we go
to direct lending, we have begun the process and will go full speed
ahead to improve the management, not only of direct lending, not
only of guaranteed student loans, but the overall Department. And
the Secretary has asked me personally to take the responsibility for
management, and I've happily assumed that responsibility.

He has also asked, and we have asked every Assistant Secretary
to assume management responsibilities because we are deter-
minedand I make this commitment to you for the recordto
make the Department of Education a model Department in the
Federal Government. And some steps have already been taken. The
designated Assistant Secretary for Postsecondary Education, who is
about to be fully confirmed, is a person who probably knows more
than anybody else in the country about student loans.

We are in the process of getting a top-rate CFO for the Depart-
ment. We are in the midst of developing a strategic plan. We are
developing and have on line management systems and the tech-
nology to carry out this program; and I know that time is limited,
and probably that means another vote, but I want to convey to you
the bottom line that we are aware of the problem. We have started
to fix it, and we are determined to fix it and to make this program,
as well as the overall Department, work.

We don't say this lightly. We know it will take people. We know
it will take a change in the culture. We know it will take the sup-
port of the Congress to g:ve us the people and the technology to
make it happen. But we are very confident that we can deliver; and
we have begun that process, and we are going to continue that
process and pay attention every inch of the way in terms of regula-
tions, in terms of deadlines, in terms of commitments.

We are taking some giant steps.
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Let me also tal, this belated opportunity to introduce to you
Maureen McLaughlin, who has been the Acting Assistant Secretary
of Postsecondary Education, and Torn Skelly from the Budget De-
partment. At either side of me, I have two of the most competent
people in the Education Department, but they are not alone. We
have some terrific career people in the Education Department, andthere is now a great opportunity to use their talents, combined
with the new political appointees, and really build a team.

I think that is the way you make government work. You make
it responsive. You see the public as a customer, you build a cohe-
sive spirit within, you bring in the best talent from without; and
you take your responsibilities seriously, and deliver results.

So we feel very pleased about this opportunity to improve the
system. We look forward to reporting to you regularly on progress
that has been made. We expect some glitches to occur. We will try
to notify you as early as possible about them, but I think the time
has come to seize this opportunity to move toward a new system
that really serves the people in the way that they deserve to be
served and to provide access and accountability when it comes tohigher education.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Kunin follows:1
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Statement by

Deputy Secretary of Education

Madeleine Kunin

before the

Subcommittee on Human Resources and Intergovernmental Relations

House Committee on Government Operations

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

I am pleased to be here today to share with you the Department's

plans for implementing the Student Loan Reform Act of 1993, an

important companion piece to the national service initiative.

President Clinton's bold new student loan proposal will meet

three important goals:

- Make college more affordable for students, through flexible

loan repayment teimis and lower interest rates,

- Save taxpayers substantial suMs of money, and

Streamline the student loan system.

The Student Loan Reform Act of 1993 is a milestone in the

Administration's effcrts to reinvent government. It calls for a

major revamping and simplification of the Federal student loan

system and offc:rs new repayment options to students. By

eliminating the middlemen and che excess profits they now

receive, the President's proposal ill simplify the system,

benefit students, and reduce costs for taxpayers.
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You may ask, as others have, why we need to revamp the current

student loan system. The anSwer, simply put, is that the program

has become too complex and too costly. In the current program,

billions of taxpayers' dollars go, not to students, but to 7,800

lenders, 46 guaranty agencies, and numerous servicers and

secondary markets. To its credit, this complex array of

participants provides millions of loans to students and their

families each year. But they also are paid exceedingly well to
do so.

One might well ask when we have such an opportunity to make

gcrvernment work better, who could argue with a plan to provide

better benefits to students, while significantly reducing Fedetal

costs, and creating more efficiency? The answer is obvious:

those who enjoy substantial benefits from the present systemlhe

banks, guaranty agencies, Sallie Mae, 'State secondary markets,

and others. These groups have hired some of the highest paid

lobbyists in town to help them convince you and the public that

the President's proposal will not work. What they have been

saying is, at best, misleading and often just plain wrong. I

have attached to my testimony a list of myths and realities on

direct lending that responds to this misinformation.

BUDGET SAVINGS

Direct lending saves taxpayers money. Implementation of the

Student Loan Reform Act will reduce the deficit by $4.3 billion

over five years and save $2 billior. in each subsequent year.

Reports from the General Accounting Office and the Congressional

Budget Office document the savings to be achieved, even after
transition costs. This allows us not only to reduce the deficit

but to ultimately pass on savings to students by lowering

interest rates for borrowers.

6 7
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MANAGEMENT IS A TOP PRIORITY

While many have questioned the ability of the Department to

manage a Direct 4oan program, it will be a far simpler, less

complicated system to oversee than the current program. As

recently pointed out by the General Accounting Office, the

current system's complexity--involving thousands of interactions

between schools, lenders, secondary markets, guaranty agencies,

and the Department--makes it error-prone and extremely difficult

to monitor. The GAO concluded that the "program's structure is

not conducive to good financial management."

We at the Department of Education are keenly aware that we must

strengthen our management capacity and are working assiduously to

improve that capacity. We must do this regardless of whether we

move to direct lending or continue the current program.

Taxpayers deserve nothing less.

The Secretary and I are bringing together a strong team to manage

Direct Loans. David Longanecker, who has been nominated to be

Assistant Secretary for Postsecondary Education, is recognized as

one of the top experts on student loans in the country and brings

with him extensive management experience running state higher

education agencies in Minnesota and Colorado. Secretary Riley

has asked me to oversee the Department's overall management--a

task that I take very seriously. My goal, the Department's goal,

is to make Education the model Department in the Federal

government. We have asked for the staff resources and technical

capacity to make that a reality.

REINVENTING GOVERNMENT

In developing the legislation for the Direct Loan program, we

made certain that each key player in the delivery system will

3
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perform those functions that it does best. Schools will deal
with individual students; alternative originators and loan
servicers will be selected competitively to provide services on
the basis of price and quality; and the Department will monitor
and oversee the system.

Our proposal will create a new public-private partnership and a
simpler system that is more conducive to gOod management and that
is truly competitive. Some critics contend that we are moving

away from a public-private partnership to more bureaucracy. This
is not accurate. The Department will create a truly

entrepreneurial system through competitive contracts for loan
originators and servicers. These contractual arrangements will

more effectively use the private sector to provide high quality

service for a more competitive price. In the current system, we
rely on private sector participants who are paid a uniform rate
set in statute (T-bill plus 3.1 percentage points) regardless of
the quality of their services, rather than a price determined by
market competition.

PROMPT DELIVERY OF FUNDS

Under direct lending, the Department will promptly and
efficiently deliver loan proceeds to borrowers. Our experience
with Pell Grants and the three "campus-based" student aid

programs demonstrates that we can deliver funds properly and on
time. This year, our system determined the Pell Grant
eligibility for over 7 million student applicants and delivered
more than $6 billion tc 4.2 million students at 6,600

participating institutions. Also, the Department has made
available to postsecondary institutions an extensive array of
electiaic data processing options, including "Stage Zero", which
allows a student to use a computer to complete an application
with immediate edits for errors. Such advances have saved

millions of dollars and thousands of hours of labor, and
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eliminated much frustration on the part of our student clients.

Building upon this time-tested Pell grant delivery system, we can

duplicate this success with the Direct Loan program.

Additionally, our plan for the Direct Loan program will enhance

the Federal student aid delivery system by fully integrating the

Direct Loan program computer system with the systems that

currently deliver Pell Grants and campus-based aid to students

and.institutions. Students will apply for Direct Loans on the

same form--the Free Application for Federal Student Aid--they now

use to apply for all other Federal student aid programs,

eliminating the burden of separate student loan applications

under the current guaranteed student loan system. The student's

information will be processed through the Central Processing

System. Schools will have access to the Pederal funds through

the Payment Management System. This same system is the conduit

for the other Federal student aid funds that are delivered,

through postsecondary institutions, to students. c'urrently,

this system cannot be used for the Federal Family Education Loan

programs because of the involvement of guaranty agencies and

private lenders.

PUBLIC/PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

New Contracts for Alternative Originators and Loan Servicers

The contracting strategy for the Direct Loan program calls for

awarding several new contracts to support alternative loan

origination .functions and servicing activities. Alternative loan

origination is important because we will not force any unwilling

institution to originate loans neither will we permit

institutions to make direct loans if they are determined by the

Secretary to be incapable of doing so. Loan servicing includes

labor-intensive activities such as generating bills and letters,

processing borigwer payments, reporting to credit bureaus, and

5
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granting deferments and forbearances. To help provide for a
"seamless" Direct Loan system, each customer service contractor
will be connected to the single loan servicing system database to
facilitate establishing loan records, reconciling borrower
accounts, and providing a system for servicing loans.

Our plan anticipates the program's growth. It will be necessary
to award additional loan origination and servicing system
contracts in fiscal year 1995 to support the planned expansion.
These contracts will be awarded through full and open competition
and contractors will be compensated on a fee-for-service basis.
Thus, the marketplace will ensure that we receive the highest
quality product at a competitive price.

Our contracting strategy for the Direct Loan program will build
on the Department's successful record of managing systems
contracts. Por example, we implemented on January 15, 1993, as

scheduled, the central processing system for the 1993-94 student
aid programs. This system implemented many of the statutory

changes required by the Higher Education Amendments of 1992 that
were enacted July 23, 1992.

Modifications toExistir,q Contracts

In addition to awarding new contracts to support new activities
related to direct lending, five existing Departmental contracts
require modifications in order to integrate fully Direct Loans
intc the current student aid delivery system. These contracts
include the--

Central Processing System to provide software to

postsecondary institutions enabling schools to package and
originate Direct Loans; additionally, this software will

generate borrower-specific loan records for transmission to

71
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the direct student loan servicing system;

Payment Management System to enable schools to draw down

Direct Loan funds for disbursement to students;

National Student Loan Data System to record bcrrower-

specific data for eligibility screening and for research and

analysis activities that can further improve our management

of the program; also, when additional loan servicing systems

are procured, the NSLDS will perform centralized accounting

functions for the Direct Loan program by receiving

accounting data from all servicing systems and summarizing

it for reconciliation with the Department's primary

accounting system;

General Electronic Support System to provide network

services that institutions need to communicate with the

Servicing System; and

Stafford/Perkins Debt Collection System to collect defaulted

Direct Loans using more rigorous collection measures

including federal income tax refund offset, use of private

collection agencies, and wage garnishment.

REQUEST FOR WAIVER AUTHORITY IN EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES

The Department has requested an exemption until 1998 from certain

contracting and acquisition requirements. We have done so to

ensure our flexibility to respond to emergencies that may

threaten smooth student aid delivery or access durina the

transition. For example, if a guaranty agency were to cease

processing without notice, we would need immediate contract

support to assist in the phase-out of the agency's loan

portfolio. While we plan to fully exercise the normal

7
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competitive process in issuing the contracts that will support

Federal Direct Loan delivery, any unforeseen delay could

jeopardize our ability to provide financial assistance to

seudents. I must emphasize that we request this exceptional

authority only for exceptional circumstances--not for routine

circumstances.

The Department also has requested the authority to administer

the program during its first year of operation through issuance

of Federal Register notices, while notice and comment rulemaking

is developed for the long term. These notices would contain

standards, criteria, and procedures that the Secretary determines

to be reasonable and necessary to successfully implement the

program on July 1, 1994 as spcified by the Congress in the

demonstration program. Again, we would hope cur need to exercise

this exemption would be minimal.

We have made substantial progress in developing the reaulations

necessitated by the Higher Education Amendments of 1992 such as

those concerning el.igibility and othe.r general provisions that we

will need for all our programs, including the Direct Loan program
when enacted. The Amendments require that we propose most of

these through the negotiated rulemaking process, and we have

developed these regulations under this very open process.

We fully recognize that in requesting these exemptions, we are
requesting your trust. We expect to earn that trust and to b.

held fully accountable for our actions. Indeed, reinventing

government requires that we reconsider our traditional

relationships, and we urge you to help us do so in the most

productive and efficient manner possible. Our constituents, like

yours, are the students, their families, and the taxpayers. Our
mission is to serve them well by creating a system that is

reliable and provides access to higher education, while demanding

accountability.
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STAFFING

Our plan for staffing direct loans and the transition from the

Federal Family Education Loan programs relies on the trained

staff we have in the Department and resources that we will seek

through new staff and contractor support. I believe that our

plan is realistic and prudent: its foundation is our current

staff, who would be augmented over time by new staff with skills

and special capabilities not presently available. We will draw

on our contractors for any additional support we need,

particularly in the labor-intensive data processing and customer

service areas. Historically, we have had very positive

experiences with contract support in these areas.

Staffing estimates and planned hiring include sufficient numbers

of qualified personnel for the Department to manage Direct Loan

implementation as well as the transition from the guaranteed loan

program. It is important to recognize that the critical period

will be the transition when we are phasing in the Direct Loan

program and simultaneously maintaining the guaranteed student

loan program. In 1994, we plan a staff of 69 for the Direct Loan

program, the same number we have already projected for 1994 for

the demonstration pilot.

We estimate that a staff of 198 would be necessary for transition

activities, some of whom will be Federal employees, some

contractor staff. Difficult as it will be, the Department is

committed to the President's plans to reduce staff government-

wide and we plan to reallocate 30 FTE from other Department

programs to the Direct Loan transition effort.

We will use Department staff to monitor and manage contracts, do

contract development, perform legal work, and manage the

guaranteed loan defaulted debt portfolio. Our plan calls for

9
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contracting for the special capabilities needed to help develop
procedures, and manage the phase-out. Thus, Department w_aff
would retain policy and management functions.

The recently implemented reorganization of che Student Financial
Assistance Programs, which, among other changes, resulted in

centralizing program gatekeeping functions in one unit, makes
this possible. All system design and development functions that

previously were scattered among several divisions are now
consolidated in one service. With this new structure, we have

measurably improved the accounting and financial controls over
the student financial aid programs.

ENSURING A SMOOTH TRANSITION

Our plan has a number of features designed to ensure a smooth

transition from the current guaranteed loan structure to the new
Direct Loan program. Our purpose is clear: to assure access to
loans for all students who qualify; and to maintain total

stability in the student loan system. While retaining a system

of financial incentives and payments, we ha.,.,e added new

provisions designed to protect the Federal investment in the
student loan program. All current benefits to lenders and

guarantors are retained with respect to outstanding loans.

Lenders that make new loans during the transition will continue
to receive interest subsidies and 100 percent insurance against
borrower default. Payments to guarantors for their

administrative costs are continued, but the new allowance is
based on the size of their loan portfolios and will support
continued operations as new loan volume diminishes. The

Department is authorized to pay guarantors a fee to find lenders
for students who cannot find a lender on their own.

Additionally, the Secretar7 may require Sal,lie Mae to make
"lender of last resort" loans.

10
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The Department is empowered to intervene quickly if a guarantor

fails or withdraws from the program. The public interest in

guarantor reserves is protected by codifying court decisions that

these rese7ves are under strict Federal control and are to be

used only for Federal student loan purposes. The plan would also

prevent gulrantors from seeking bankruptcy protection or trying

to interfere With proper control of Federal assets through the

State courts.

We have carefully considered the transition needs for this

effort, and we feel confident that our plan addresses these

needs. We will take any additional steps that may be necessary

to ensure an orderly transition from the Federal Family Education

Loan Program to the Federal Direct Student Loan Program.

RELATIONSHIP TO THE DEMONSTRATION PROGRAM

Opponents have suggested that we wait for the Federal Direct Loan

Demonstration program, authorized last year, to show results

before we move toward full implementation. There are a number of

reasons why we have decided to view the first year of the program

as the first phase of full implementation rather than a

demonstration. It would take up to ten years or more to obtain

results from the demonstration program. Even then, we would not

have the accurate results needed to determine whether direct

lending can succeed because, with such a small number of schools

participating it will be impossible to achieve economies of

scale. Most importantly, given that we know that direct lending

will result in savings, it would be wasteful to use a

demonstration program to test this principle. Instead of testing

whether savings are achieved under the demonstration program,

phase one of direct lending will allow us to test implementation

Issues on a reasonable time schedule. We will start small, with

only four percent of new loan volume in the first year. This

11
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number is manageable but large enough to give us initial feedback
on implementation issues. We will move to 100 percent only in
the fourth year. Each year, we will conduct an evaluation and

provide a full report to Congress. We will watch our progress
carefully, and if things need to be altered we will do so. We
assure you that we will notify you promptly of obstacles, as they
arise.

CONCLUSION

In concluding this testimony, I would like to reiterate my firm

commitment to strong and effective management of the new Direct
Loan program. Many of the well-tested systems for delivering

funds are already in place and will be used to ensure efficiency.
We have a plan that includes all the elements essential to

success: strong over-all management, contractor and systems

support, additional employees, and a Department-wide commitment

to provide this support. A transition plan has been carefully

developed that is sensitive to the needs of our students and our
institutions.

I hope this dialogue is a step toward earning your confidence
that the Direct Loan program will be in capable hands. This
proposal is the product of many months of intense debate,

deliberation, and careful planning which included the President's
Domestic Policy Council, the Office of Management and Budget, the
Treasury Department, and the Internal Revenue Service. Hundreds
of individuals and associations were consulted in extensive
outreach efforts. we believe strongly that the proposal will
benefit students and taxpayers.

We are very aware of the heavy responsibility we are assuming and
of the legacy of poor management we must shed. We are determined
to carry the public trust in such a manner that will make you
proud of the Department of Education.
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
WASHINC,ION DC 20102

DIRECT LENDING

MYTHS vs. REALITIES

MYTH: Direct lending saves money by shifting costs to colleges and

universities. Institutions will face substantial costs for
originating, servicing, and collecting student loans.

REALITY: Direct lending saves money in two ways:
cutting out excess profits
using Federal borrowing

The only new activities required under direct lending will be

origination of loans and reconciliation of the amounts
disbursed.

institutions will receive a fee from the Department of
Education if they originate loans and,
an alternative originator will be available at no cost
for institutions who do not originate loans

MYTH: Institutions do not have the capacity to administer direct
lending.

REALITY: Many institutions can easily administer direct lending system.
Schools participating in current loan programs already
determine eligibility, counsel students, and disburse

loan funds.
Schools participating in the Pell Grant program already
draw down funds electronically from the Education
Department to the students.
Schools participating in the Perkins Loan program already
administer loans to students through the financial aid

office.
Direct lending will be easier than Perkins Loans because
schools will not be responsible for servicing or

collecting loans.
Those institutions which do not have the capacity to

administer loans will use the services of alternative
originators at no cost.

MYTH: Direct lending substitutes a federal bureaucracy for the

efficiency of the private sector.
REALITY: This proposal will build a new public/private partnership to

select contractors, who will compete on the basis of price and

quality, to act as alternative originators and to service

loans.

MYTH: Loan availability will be delayed if the debt ceiling is not

raised.
REALITY: When total federal debt reaches the debt ceiling, Congress

must raise the ceiling to finance any and all government

operations. If the debt ceiling is not raised, all government
operations--not just student loans--will be at risk.

7
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MYTH: Entitlement to loans for students will be lost.
REALITY: Students will continue to have access to the same amount of

loan capital as they have now. They will also enjoy more
flexible repayment options and lower interest rates.

MYTH: Department of Education cannot manage the current system. A
new, untried western will be even more difficult.

REALITY: The Department must strengthen its management capacities and
we are investing heavily in management improvement. We will
improve management regardless of whether we move to direct
lending. But, this new streamlined program will be easier to
manage. We have experience with a direct loan program, the
Federal Perkins Loan program, and we know it works and that
institutions can run it.

MYTH: The savings attached to direct lending are overestimated
because 3stimates do not accurately account for administrative
costs.

REALITY: We have included generous allowances for administrative costs
in our budget estimates. We have included costs for direct
loans as well as estimates of costs associated with the
transition from guaranteed loans to direct loans. We save
money because the government has a lower cost of funds and we
eliminate excess profits.

MYTH: It is irresponsible for the Administration to abandon the
demonstration program in favor of full implementation of
direct loans.

REALITY: We are phasing direct lending in over four years so that we
can watch the process carefully and make changes as necessary.
We will start with four percent of volume the first year,
roughly the size of the demonstration program. Lach year we
will evaluate our progress and report to Congress.

MYTH: Federal borrowing will skyrocket and push borrowing rates way
up.

REALITY: Although national debt will increase as federal borrowing
replaces private capital, overall debt in the economy will not
increase and the national deficit will decline by $4.3 billion
over the next five years. In the future, the government's
need to borrow for direct lending will be less than it would
be if the current program continued.

MYTH: Direct lending will allow unscrupulous schools greater access
to federal funds and drive up default costs.

REALITY: The Department of Education will monitor schools closely and
will develop strict criteria measuring financial and
administrative capacity to determine which schools can
originate and which will be required to use the services of
alternative originators. The Department is also beginning the
new state review process to improve institutional oversight.

'7 3

2



75

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much. Your testimony was very in-
formative; and let me add that we know of your great work prior
to coming to this position, and we have always held you in high es-
teem and have a lot of respect for you.

One bright factor over at the Department is the fact that you are
there. We hope that as a result of your presenceeven though
there are very difficult problems, we hope that you will be able to
make it work.

Let me ask you this. Do you agree with the GAO that it is imper-
ative that the Department have a master plan before it proceeds?

Ms. KUIDN. Absolutely, and we are in the process of developing
an overall strategic plan.

The Departinent held a retreat about 3 weeks ago. We are now
putting the pieces in place for an overall strategic plan for the De-
partment. At the same time, we are developing a master plan for
the implementation of direct lending.

I would ask your consideration in light of the fact that the legis-
lation has not yet passed, so that it is impossible to construct the
kind of detailed line-by-line, moment-by-moment master plan that
will be necessary. But once the legislation is adopted, David
Loganacre, this team that is with me, the Secretary himself, will
oversee that master plan. We are not going to leave anything to
chance. We are thinking this process out step by step and day by
day.

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you.
The ranking member, Mr. Schiff, has yielded to Mr. Sanders

from Vermont. I guess he did it because he recognizes that you
have some connections and some ties with Vermont.

Mr. SANDERS. Sur?. She beat me in 1986. We are delighted to
welcome Governor Kunin here, who has long been active in edu-
cation in the State of Vermont; and we are very confident she is
going to continue her excellent efforts here in Washington.

The point I would like to make, Mr. Chairman, is that what we
are really talking about today should be put in a broader perspec-
tive. The perspective that should be discussed is that it is a na-
tional disgrace that in the United States of America and in our own
StateI go around to a lot of high schools in Vermontyou have
millions of young people in this country who want a college edu-
cation, who have so much to offer this country, but who are, simply
because of the financial circumstances of their families, uhrable to
get that college education. I am sure you would agree with me that
there is something lacking in our Nation when every young person
or every person of any age does not have all of the educational op-
portunity that he or she needs, both for the good of the Nation as
well as the individual.

That is the context in which I think we should be discussing this
issue.

Within that context, I think, Governor Kunin has indicated this
country has a huge deficit. We have problems of access to higher
education. And some of us do not believe that the limited amounts
of money that we have for education should go into bureaucracy,
should go into bank profits, rather than into the needs of our young
people and into the protection of our taxpayer.
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I think the point that Governor Kunin made is, this is a simpler
program. It is a less complex program, which means there are
going to be more savings for the taxpayer and also, I think, make
it easier for the student. Maybe G-overnor Kunin can say a word
something I find as somebody at the end of sending four kids to
college, getting access and learning what kind of opportunities are
available is very complex; and many young people go out there, and
they really don't know what is available. And my guess is, if we
simplify the system, the young people of America and their parents
will learn more about loans and grants and so forth and so on than
is presently the case.

Would you agree with that, Governor?
MS. KUNIN. Yes, I would, Congressman; and in a number of

ways, I think it would make life easier for the student, for those
colleges that thoose to do direct lendingand as Congressman An-
drews pointed out they don't have to do direct lending if they don't
feel equipped to. They can obviously deal directly with the loan offi-
cer at the school who can handle their whole lending portfolio if
that is the route they choose to go. They will have an easier pay-
back period by choosing the income contingency route, if they wish
to do so. And that also would avoid some students going into de-
fault if they go through a rough period. Income contingency also
makes it possible to take lower paying or public spirited jobs. There
will be a financial savings for the student. There will be a half per-
cent reduction in the interest rate. There will also be an initial re-
duction in the initiation fees to the student.

As much as possible, we see this as a way to simplify the process
for the students, as well as for the institutions, and save some
money and put it both in deficit reduction and, hopefully, to a
greater extent as the program moves along, into higher education.

Mr. SANDERS. Thank you.
Mr. TOWNS. Mr. Horn, if it is brief, we can probably do it.
Mr. HORN. One brief question and one brief insert into the

record.
Thank you very much for your testimony. I have noted your work

with high regard over the years. We are delighted to see you in
Washington.

Does t'he Department of Education favor collection of direct loans
through the IRS income tax system?

Ms. KUNIN. What we have in the bill right now is for the IRS
to share income information to verify the income contingency plan.
Then there is a study that says after 6 months the Secretary of the
Treasury and the Secretary of Education shall produce a report
that says how they will do it. I think the understanding is, and the
implication is, yes, the IRS will be involved, and we do favor it; but
the reason for the study is, we want to make sure that it is done
right. The IRS has to gear up its computer system, its capacity.

But we certainly think it, is very appropriate; as you improve ac-
cess, you also have to improve responsibility. If you get a loan, if
you can pay it back slowly, you should be sure that you do, in fact,
pay it back. This is taxpayers' monv.

Mr. HORN. I agree with you, and, I hope you all pursue. In the
meantime, Mr. Chairman, with your permission, I would like to in-
clude in the record a statement and analysis which the Association
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of Governing Boards of Universities and Colleges has made. I think
it is very interesting. It is a very responsible analysis. We just
might have the whole picture that way.

Mr. TOWNS. Without objection.
(The information follows:)
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Airendixt Will Direct Loans Save the Federal GOINIMUMOnt !Loner

A number of the groups who profit from the current guaranteed
student loan structure not surprisingly have led the charge of
describing the savings estimates associated with direct lending as
dubious. This appendix explains why there is nothing dubious about
the savings'from direct loans and reviews several of the studies
which have been distributed to dispute these savings estimates.

To understand the debate over the potential for savings from
direct loans, it is important first to understand the credit reform
rules that wore passed as part of the 1990 Budget Enforcement Act.
Prior to credit reform, all federal spending for loans was
accounted for on a cash and current basis; revenues and spending
were recorded on the federal books on the basis of the year in

which they occurred.

This traditional federal accounting procedure tended to bias
federal decision making in the direction of guaranteed loans since
one year's worth of interest payments were the only spending that
would show up on the federal books in the year the loan was made.
All of the federal payments for interest and potential defaults
which that loan would require in the future thus were not shown in
the federal budget when the decision was made to make the loan.

By contrast, the capital required to make direct loans
appeared in the year it was made under the old accounting rules,
while the repayments that would come back to the government from
having made that loan would be.hidden in future year budgets. This
accounting procedure helps to explain why guaranteed loans
mushroomed over the past quarter century to become the principal
source of college student finance in this country, while Perkins
Loans have languished as a relatively small federal aid program.

Credit reform seeks to remove this traditional bias by putting
direct loans and guaranteed loans on a more equal budgetary
footing. Under credit reform rules, all federal loan costs are
accounted for on the basis of the present value of the payments or
subsidies that the government provides over the life of the loan.
In the case of guaranteed loans, this means that the interest and
default payments that occur over the life of the loan are estimated
and discounted to a single sum at the time the loan is made. For
direct loans, the federal cost under the credit reform rules is the
present value of the difference betweeL what the government earns
on a direct loan compared to its costs.

It seems fair to say that without credit reform the recent
debace over direct loans would not have occurred because the old
accounting rules would have always shown direct loans to be more
expensive than privately financed student loans. With credit
reform, direct loans became a much more attractive option to

federal policy makers.

A-1
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Under credit reform, the federal savings from direct lendingaccrue in two forms. While a borrower is in school, the savings
are the difference between what the government currently pays to
borrowers (r-bill plus 3.1 percent for new borrowers) and the
government's cost of money (F-bill), times the number of years inschool. This comes to about 6 cents per dollar loaned, assuming
that borrowers remain in school an average of two years. For the
many borrowers who remain in school for more than two years, the
potential federal savings from direct loans aro much larger.

The other component of federal savings on direct loans comes
during the repayment period in that the government in essence will
make a profit under direct lending. The amount of these profits/
savings equals the difference between what the borrower repays
(T-bill plus 3.1 percent), and the cost to the government of T-LUl
plus the costs related to servicing (which under any reasonable
reimbursement scheme would not exceed two percent of the face value
of the loan). Thus, the federal savings during repayment should
equal at least one percent of the outstanding value of the loan
times the number of years in repayment, again discounted back to
present value. This comes to about 4 cents per dollar loaned.

When the federal savings during the in-school period are
combined with savings that occur in repayment, the total savings
from direct loans thus equal roughly 10 cents per dollar loaned.
The total federal costs of guaranteed loans at current interest
rate levels are roughly 20 cents per dollar loaned, so that direct
loans are estimated to save roughly half of the current costs. The
largest remaining cost would be for the federal costs of defaults.

A number of recent studies have disputed these estimates of
the federal cost savings from direct loans. The most prominent of
these studies was published by the Congressional Research Servicein February 1993. Entitled federal Family EdzIational Loans:
fsjuggeLcosts. Direct Lending. and W.itional Income, this study has
been widely distributed and quoted by opponents of direct lending
in large part because it argues the direct lending will not save
the federal government any m ,ey. It also is the case, however,
that the basic conclusion of the CRS report agrees with the
proponents of direct lending, namely, that there are excess profits
in the existing federal student loan programs.

The argument 4.1.1 the CRs paper is based on several curious
assumptions and findings. The first curious assumption is that the
federal student loan programs provide a competitive rate of return
to the banks and others who participate in the program. The history
of the federal student loan programs runs directly contrary to this
assumption: rather than let the market determine the price,
virtually all features of the programs art set through statutory
and regulatory provisions. If the terms and conditions in these
programs had been set by market forces, it is possible that muchof the current controversy over direct loans would not beoccurring.

A-2
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A second assumption underlying the CRS report is that any
shift in reliance from the private sector-based current structure
to one in which the federal government provides the capital would
result in no net increase in national income. That is, in the
roport*s words, uany increased funding available for public
spending would be exactly offset by reduced private sector income*.
While this is most likely true, it is not clear why the fact that
national income would not increase should deter policy makers from
squeezing excess profits out of the current system to the benefit
of the taxpayer or the student. If this criterion of net national
income gain were used in the analysis of other public policy
issues, many worthwhile reforms would be judged ineffective,
including health care refotm and federal housing program changes.

The CRS assumption that has received the most discuseion is
the notion that a squeezed down current structure could produce as
much savings as the proposed shift to direct lending. It certainly
is the case that some level of reduction in the rate of return on
privately financed student loans would equal the savings generated
by direct lending. What the CRS report seems to ignore, however,
is that the current participants the student loan program's always
have resisted changes that would have,netted far loss in federal
budget savings that what could result from direct lending. The
banks and others are now coming forward with proposals that would
yield substantial savings, but they aro only doing so because of
the throat presented by direct lending.

A number of private studies, which have been commissioned or
conducted by organizations that profit !math* current system, not
surprisingly suggest that direct lending will not result in the
level of federal savings indicated by the Administration and
suppozted by estimates of the General Accounting Office and the
Congressional Budget Office. One such study was conducted by
Rudolph Penner, former director of the Congressional Budget Office,

now an economist with RPHG Peat Marwick. This study was prepared
for the Coalition for Student Loan Reform, a misnamod ad hoc group
of guaranty agencies and others with a clear stake in maintaining

the status quo.

The principal contention of the Penner study is that direct
lending will not save the government money because the government's
cost of borrowing will increase from the additional debt it will
need to incur in order to provide the capital for student loans.
But the capital markets for public and private capital have Ilecome
increasingly homogeneous over time, with the result that interest
rate differentials reflect risk variances rather than changes in
the mix of public and private debt. There is an active debate now
underway about whether increases in government debt lead to a
narrowing in the interest rates paid on public and private debt
issues, with reputable economists on both sides of this issue.

A-3
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Moreover, in the absence of direct loans, the government will
still need to borrow money to subsidize the banks and others who
make privately financed loans. Currently, the federal government
borrows about $5 billion a year to make interest and default
payments in the current student loan programs. Unlike direct
loans, which become self financing once repayments equal the volume
of new lending; the borrowing that the government needs to make
subsidy payments for privately financed loans are never repaid.

Thus, at some time in the future, the amount the government
borrows to finance the payments to lenders of privately financed
loans will exceed the amount of borrowing needed to provide the
capital for direct loans. The Penner study estimates that the
amount of accumulated government borrowing to pay for privately
financed loans will exceed the borrowing needed to finance direct
loans by the year 2004, although the interest on this accumulated
government debt through subsidies paid to private lenders does not
appear to be included in the cost analysis. It appears that within
ten years of implementing direct loans, even critics agree that the
government's need to borrow under direct lending will be less than
it would be if the current program ware to continue as it is.

Another issue raised by Penner is the current difference
between short-term and long-term Treasury rates and the impact it
could have on the cost estimates associated with direct lending.
Currently there is roughly a two percentage point rate difference
between the 91-day Treasury bills and the 10-year Treasury bonds.
Penner and others hall pointed out that if the 10-year bond rate
wore used as the estimate of the government's cost of money under
direct loans, rather than the 91-day Treasury bill rate, then most
of the government's savings would be eaten up by this difference.

This assertion is correct if the Treasury were to use 10-year
bonds to finance direct loans and if the difference between short-
term and long-term rates remains at two percentage points in the

future. But the Treasury would try to avoid such a disadvantageous
spread situation just as private lenders do now. Also, two
percentage points is a very high differential between short-term
and long-term rates by historical standards, and this differential
is more likely to narrow than expand over time. With such a
narrowing tn market interest rates, the cost consequences for
direct lancing would sharply diminish as well.

Penner in a separate study for the Coalition complains of the
difficulty in estimating federal costs under credit reform,
pointing particularly to the fact that interest rates will change
over time in unpredictable ways. This argument about estimating
difficulties is ironic since Penner was supportive of credit reform
while at CBO, and most other reputable economists believe that the
shift toward credit reform represents a substantial improvement in
federal budget procedures.
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Another recent study, entitled The Bottom Line, suggests four

reasons that no federal savings result from direct loans. Perry

Quick, an economist with the national accounting firm of Ernst and

Young, directed the study, which was commissioned by USA Funds, a

national guarantor and servicer of federal student loans which

stands to have sharply diminished revenues under direct lending.

First, the Quick study cites the decline in market interest

rates since GAO and CHO did their analysis. But if anything, lower

interest rates should lead to greater savings since the discount

rate will be lower yet the dollar differential between direct

lending and privately financed student loans will remain the same.

Second, Quick asserts that the CBO and GAO cost estimates of

servicing and administration in their anal''sis of direct lending

are too low because they use the costs faced by Sallie Mae. But

the market-based costs of contracting for servicing now run about

$40 par year, which is roughly the figure used by CBO and GAO.

Quick also includes a cost of approximately $25 per loan during the

in-school period when all the lender has to do is bill the
government four times a year for its interest payments. In short,

the stimates of servicing costs used in this and other studies

seen wildly high and seem to reflect more the bias of the sponsors

than the actual costs of doing business.

How to account for the costs of administration has been a
particularly contentious issue in the direct lending debate. The

credit reform accounting rules require that administrative costs
(including those for servicing) be accounted for on a current year

basis, rather than the discounted present value of a stream of
payments calculation that is used to estimate other program costs.

CBO, in response to a request by Senator Pell, more recently

has indicated that if administrative and servicing costs were
included in the calculation of a discounted stream of payments, the

five year savings from direct loans would be much lower than

previously indicated. Opponents of direct lending will argue that

this more recent CBO analysis confirms their longstanding

contention that direct lending will not save the federal government

nearly as much money as what its proponents have argued.

What this argument over administrative costs most confirms,

however, is the importance of focusing on the long term savings

from direct loans rather than looking only at the annual savings

over the next five years, a figure which can be manipulated in a

number of ways by proponents on both sides of the issue. On a long

term basis,.administrative costs, including paying institutions and

others for loan origination, offsets only a small portion of the

savings from direct loans. When administrative and servicing costs

are subtracted from the savings related to interest rate
differentials, the total federal savings from direct loans still

amount to about 8 cents per collar loaned.

A-5

88



84

A third assumption included in the Quick Study is that default
costs vill increase under direct lending. This may or Say not be
true but none of the government's coat estimates for direct
lending assume any change in default costs in order to maintain an
apples-and-apples comparison between direct and privmte lending.
Nor do the government's estimates of direct loan cost savings
include any savings risulting from income-contingent repayment
options, again for reasons of keeping the estimates comparable.

The final Quick assumption is the same as that of Penner,
namely, that the government's cost of borrowing will increase under
direct loans. While this argument has-the truest ring of any of
the points in the Quick analysis, the realities of current day
capital markets mentioned marlier in response to the Penner study
raise doubts about the "validity of arguin4 that additional
government borrowing increases its cost of capital. As vas also
mentioned previously, reasonable economists differ on this point.
Perhaps the most persuasive argument in this regard is that, in the
1980s, the amount of federal borrowing increased considerably
relative to private debt, yet the interest rate differential
between public and private debt issues did not narrow appreciably.
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Mr. TOWNS. All right. Let me thank you, Mr. Horn, our in-house
expert. He is a former college president, so he has been involved
with these issues for many, many years.

Madam Secretary, let me thank you very much for your testi-
mony this morning; we are not going to hold you any longer, we
are going to run over to vote. We are looking forward to working
very closely with you and trying to bring about some real changes.

Mr. Sanders mentioned the fact that what we really want to do
is to get as much money out there for the students to enable them
to get an education, rather than have the money be used up in ad-
ministrative ways; so that is a real, real concern.

I have some concerns on this side that we are going in such an
expedited manner that some people feel that direct lending should
be phased in. We are not sure what we are dealing with and we
could have a tiger by the tail.

Thank you.
Ms. KUNIN. Hopefully, you won't have a tiger by the tail; we will

phase it in prudently. But if you have questions as we proceed,
please call upon us at any time. If you need more information, we
will be delighted to supply it.

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very, very much.
Ten-minute recess.
[Recess taken.]
Mr. TOWNS. Our final witnesses today will be Ms. Sturtevant, Dr.

Forbes, Mr. Butts, and Ms. Bloomingdale. Ms. Sturtevant is direc-
tor of financial aid at Emory University and is representing the
National Association of Student Financial Aid AdministraOrs. Dr.
Forbes is the vice president for student affairs for the University
of New Mexico. Mr. Butts is associate vice president of government
relations for the University of Michigan, representing the National
Association of State Universities and Land Grant Colleges. Ms.
Bloomingdale is representing the U.S. Students Association, a very
important group.

This is an investigative subcommittee. So I am going to ask each
of you to swear to or affirm an oath. So if all four of you would
now stand.

[Witnesses sworn.]
Mr. TOWNS. Let the record indicate that each of the witnesses

has answered in the affirmative.
I would like to thank you for testifying today. We have your pre-

pared statements, and we will enter them into the record. We ap-
preciat,e very much if you will summarize your statements within
a 5-minute period. This will leave the members time for questions.

So why don't we start with you, Ms. Sturtevant.
Mr. SCHIFF. Mr. Chairman, excuse me.
I want to express a special appreciation to you regarding the fact

that at least two of the witnesses, Dr. Forbes, University of New
Mexico, and Mr. Butts from the State of Michigan, were proposed
by myself or other minority members.

And I just want to expresssince you have the final say, as we
all knowI want to express a special appreciation for your willing-
ness to include suggestions and witnesses from our side of the
aisle.
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Mr. TOWNS. Let me thank you for your involvement. We try to
bring strong witnesses. And of course, when you know that some-
body is out there who has information, we definitely want to hear
from them. Thank you for recommending them.

Ms. Sturtevant.

STATEMENT OF ANNE STURTEVANT, DIRECTOR OF
FINANCIAL AID, EMORY UNIVERSITY

MS. STURTEVANT. My name is Anne Sturtevant. I am the director
of financial aid at Emory University in Atlanta, and I am rep-
resenting the National Association of Student Financial Aid Ad-
ministrators [NASFAA]. I appreciate the opportunity to be invited
today. This is a very important hearing, and we are pleased that
you have called us together.

As you know, the Federal family education loan programs pro-
vide the single largest source available to help students and par-
ents pay for postsecondary education.

The fact that it is so large, I think, is why when suggestions are
made to change it, even slightlybut particularly significant
changesthat aid officers tend to become uneasy because so many
families are dependent on these programs.

It is that uneasiness that I believe has caused widely differing
vievvs on what we should do now: Improve the current delivery sys-
tem of student loans or get rid of it and go into direct lending.

This uneasiness is why NASFAA adapted a position in 1991 and
reaffirmed it recently in favor of implementing a parallel direct
loan program that would be of sufficient scope to truly analyze side
by side the advantages and disadvantages of the current delivery
system of student loans, compared to direct lending.

One of the things I think you should be aware of is that. many
State financial aid associations, as well as regional financial aid as-
sociations, strongly oppose full implementation of direct lending
without thorough testing. And they are on record as doing so.

I was interested in what Mr. Andrews said earlier this morning
about, well, we are phasing it in. It is not full implementation, and
the importance of a pilot.

And I wanted to share with you a quote from a colleague, Tom
Rutter, who is the director of financial aid at the University of
California, San Diego: "We Gppose dismantling a system that works
until we are confident that an alternative system is both better for
students and less expensive for taxpayers. We seek the same goals
as the President, but we oppose rushing into this untested and
unproven solution."

Somebody mentioned facts versus assumptions, and I think this
plays into it the same way.

Another thing that I th;nk about is that most of us have been
in situations where we have done something manually and then
there is an opportunity to automate. But I don't think many of us
would totally abandon a manual system for an automated system
without running it parallel. There are too many systems to work
out. If you abandoned your manual system, you would be left with
no alternatives and no way to support your students.

If direct lending is the choice that our government makes,
NASFAA wants to make it work. We are in the business of serving
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students. And the last thing we would want to do is put an obstacle
in front of that.

We have met with the Department of Education and have indi-
cated our full support of the Department and will cooperate in any
way that NASFAA and its members can, so that if direct lending
is the decision that is made, we can ensure its success.

We have shared some of the concerns that member institutions
have about the Department's capability to administer this program.
I personally did not agree with Mr. Andrews's statement that the
Department of Education would not be running this, that, in fact,
it would be contractors and servicers and a partnership between
private and public.

Speaking from a school perspective, to us it feels like total gov-
ernment control. We don't have a lot of influence with the Depart-
ment of Eflucation or with Congress. Right now we have quite a
bit of influence with our guarantee agencies and our lenders.

From our perspective, it still seems like full government control.
And to entrust the financial well-being of our students to some-
thing that hasn't been tested feels very risky to us.

Just as an aside, NASFAA has a survey network that it exercises
occasionally. It is a statistically based cross sample of the entire
membership. And when survey results are needed, this rapid sur-
vey response network is used to ask members how they feel about
the issues. NASFAA's position on direct lending is a result of a sur-
vey that was conducted.

Most of the members that were surveyed in a recent poll feel the
same way, that direct lending ought to be fully tested.. As a per-
sonal observation, the best reason to test before going full phase is
that there is bad faith among the community of aid administrators
and the Department.

If there were not bad faith, then we would have jumped on the
bandw4gon long ago. This is a great opportunity for students and
a great opportunity for the country. But the fact that there has
been this history of unfulfilled expectations, has made the aid com-
munity very concerned about giving even more control over to the
Department of Education when it again puts at risk the lives and
well-being of our students.

We have some specific concerns that are outlined in our written
statement having to do with the planning process and ensuring
that the aid community is fully involved. And I mean sincerely in-
volved.

I would be happy to answer any questions, and I thank you very
much for this opportunity to speak with you.

Mr. TOWNS. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Sturtevant follows d
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Mr. Chairman. Members of the Subcommittee: On behalf of the more than 3.100
institutional members of the National Association of Student Financial Aid
Administrators (NASFAA). thank you for inviting us to appear before you today. My

name is Anne Sturtevant and I am the Director of Financial Aid at Emory University

in Atlanta, Georgia. I am here today to represent the National Association of Student

Financial Aid Administrators (NASFAAL

We appreciate the opportunity to provide you with our perspective on issues related to

fede:al direct lending. At the outset, let me say that most financial aid administrators

clearly recognize that the existing Part B student loan structure is unnecessarily

cumbersome, besieged with unnecessary regulations. and difficult to manage.

However, in spite of these deficiencies, the Federal Family Education Loan Programs

t.FFELP) are still the single largest source of funds available to assist students and/or

their parents to help pay for postsecondary education. As such, when suggestions are

made which would cause significant changes to the operation or structure of the

programs, many financial aid administrators become uneasy about the programs'
stability. Aid administrators question whether or not the proposed replacement would

provide the same levels of funding and levels of service that exist under the current

scheme.

En large part. this is why, when discussions of direct lending arise in meetings of
financial aid administrators, there are such widely differing views on how to best

improve the current system or whether to adopt and implement a completely new

approach to delivering and financing student loans. These differences of opinion

weighed heavily in the discussions undertaken by NASFAA's Board of Directors in

formulating its position on the issue of direct lending.

Clearly. most financial aid administrators believe that there are many positive aspects

in the direct lending concept, while at the same time, they are concerned that moving

too quickly with full implementation without time to plan. implement, evaluate, and

assess the direct lending model could result in disruption and delays in delivering loan

proceeds to students and in loan servicing and collections.

That is why NASFAA. as well as many other organizations. established a list of

principles that must be considered and achieved in order for a direct lending program

to succeed. It is also why NASFAA reaffirmed the position it adopted in November

of 1991 in support of developing and implementing a parallel direct loan program of

sufficient scope to allow for a complete evaluation that would complement rather than

supplant other forms of student aid.

Further. the Association also has called for special attention to the need to assure

adequate capital as an essential underpinning of any federal student loan program, to

insure that educational opportunity for all qualified students will not be thwarted. At

the same time. NASFAA understands the difficult decisions that needed to be made to

achieve the mandated reconciliation reductions to the federal student loan programs

and its members support delivery of loan funds to students through the most efficient
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and cost-effective means possible. As noted, opinions differ as to whether
modifications to the current system or a new system of direct lending would
accomplish that goal.

Still, if direct lending is the choice, we want to see it work. We have informed the
Department of Education that we will cooperate with them, and lend our full support
in insuring that direct lending is successful if this is the legislative approach that is
approved by the Congress. At the same time, we have shared with Department
officials the deep concerns that a majority of financial aid administrators have
expressed involving a lack of confidence in the Department's ability to satisfactorily
carry out its responsibilities in a timely and efficient manner.

The basis for these concerns is, in large part, the Education Department's past failures
to produce reasonable regulations and to distribute them in a timely manner. In
implementing other major policy initiatives, the Department has all too often failed to
factor in assurances to meet student and institutional needs, and has shown a rigidity
in approaches to problem solving that fail to consider differences in schools, academic
calendars and course offerings, and levels of administrative support and capacity.

These concerns were most r zently substantiated by the results from NASFAA's
survey on direct lending. The Association's Rapid Survey Network is composed of a
statistically representative sample of NASFAA member institutions. NASFAA
recently utilized it to gather information on a number of questions about direct
lending. A copy of the survey instrument is attached to my statement and relevant
points are included in the remainder of my testimony. The majority of responses
obtained align with the Association position to proceed with the demonstration
program before moving to full-scale direct lending. 'Further, of the numerous issues
offered for comment, survey respondents expressed the most concern about two items
directly related to the Department's administrative ability. These included: the
Department's ability to issue regulations on direct lending in a timely manner; and the
Department's ability to provide needed training and support Of only slightly less
concern to NASFAA members was the Department's ability to adequately perform
loan collections and servicing with contractors, followed by concern that current levels
of service provided by lenders would be reduced under the Department's
administration of the program.

As these results clearly show, many NASFAA members art apprehensive about
phasing out the current Part B loan programs and replacing them so quickly with an
untested full-scale direct lending program. Part of their anxiety is due to the fact that
many aspects of the new program are unclear. Institutions are unsure how the new
program will work, what will be required of schools, whether or not adequate levels of
needed capital will be assured and delivered promptly. and what kind of financial
liability institutions will face. In fact, the Administration's bill and the reconciliation
legislation approved by the House, grant the Secretary of Education wide authority to
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define the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. This broad. undefined Secretarial

discretion, particularly in light of the recent GAO management report (titled Long-

Standing Management Problems Hamper Reforms and issued in May 1993 1. does

little to ease campus aid administrators'
anxiety concerning how the new program will

work and what witl be required of schools. On the other hand. this GAO report was

based on a review conducted between December 1990 and September 1992. Clearly.

this was prior to the installation of the current management team and thus, is largely

based on chief administrators no longer employed at the Department. Even so, given

the state of affairs within the Department that Secretary Riley and Deputy Secretary

Kunin inherited, one might question whether problems of this magnitude can be

overcome in such a short timeframe as to permit smooth implementation of a direct

loan program.

If it is to be accomplished however, then we believe that special attention must be

given to the following functions.

Planning and Testing. First of all, we must emphasize the critical importance of

adequate planning and testing. Some events relative to the 1992-93 delivery system

may have relevance. Pursuant to the Higher Education Amendments of 1992, the

Department was required to implement a modified delivery system structure. While

preparation began prior to enactment of the law, this process began in earnest in mid-

July of 1992, and was operational in early 1993. We commend the Department staff

for their diligent efforts to accomplish major revisions in a relatively short timeframe

and acknowledge that much of the community's displeasure with the 1992-93 delivery

system was due to disagreement with legislative requirements and was unrelated to the

Department's administrative abilities.

Nonetheless, for whatever reason, the Department made several unii,formed or hasty

decisions that caused processing d( lays for substantial numbers of students at

postsecondary institutions across t. e country. This year. application records of

thousands of students were inappr priately routed because the system implemented by

the Department did not provide adequate safeguards for identifying and designating

institutions to which information was to be sent. While this procedure is expected to

be improved for next year, one can still speculate about whether the problem could

have been avoided if thoughtful preparation and more community input had been

sought before proceeding with the whole process.

Given this latest experience, we believe that it is imperative that the Department

obtain input from the financial aid community to develop procedures and regulations

to guide a direct lending program. Although the Department has received comments

on the proposed rules for the demonstration program, those rules were issued when the

Department was still in the "preliminary stages of developing the FDSLP [Federal

BEST an' ""
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Direct Student Loan Program] systems and procedures" which were neither "complete
nor in final form." Institutional administrators must have an opportunity to evaluate
fully executed plans, not just sketches.

Therefore, we would encourage the Department to appoint an ad hoc representative
group of institutional administrators to work closely with the Department to thoroughly
explore and develop both the operational and policy issues to be utilized with any
direct ioan program.

Developing the Process. The actual beginning of the process varies depending on
one's perspective. For schools, an understanding of the participation criteria is
essential to making the determination about whether to take pact in the program.
Withuut a clear delineation of institutional responsibilities, it is difficult if not
impossible to assess the potential risk for institutional liabilities. Schools' potential
liability was a major issue of concern to our survey respondents. Therefore, we would
encourage the Department to spell out in specific detail who will be responsible for
which operational requirements, and the criteria by which participating schools will be
evaluated to assess non-performance and the likelihood of any financial liability.

Another process issue is how schools are allowed to participate. Seventy-three percent
of our survey responients preferred to participate in both a direct loan program and
the Part B programs until such time as the Part B programs would be phased out.
Further, more than 50 percent believe that new borrowers should be phased into the
program, thereby allowing current FFELP borrowerQ to continue under existing
programs.

We believe both of these issues should be carefully considered before proceeding with
the current plan which would require participating schools and all of their students to
just receive loans under the new direct loan program. Clearly some schools would
prefer to just operate one set of programs. But others might be more willing to agree
to initially participate in direct lending, if they can still have access to the existing
FFELP for some of their students.

Another process issue is to insure an appropriate interface with the current student aid
delivery system. For the statutorily-authorized demonstration program, the Der...iment
planned to utilize the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) and the
existing Central Processing System (CPS). This mechanism seems reasonable, but,
again, how records will be transferred from the CPS to institutions must be carefully
considered. The Department must remember that schools operate differently and have
differing informational and operational needs. As such, the interface of the new direct
loan system must be designed to accommodate these differences or at least to allow
adequate time for schools to adjust to new requirements.
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Loon Origination. In spite of charges by some that institutions cannot properly

perform loan origination functions, most of NASFAA's members have indicated that

they can manage this task if it remains reasonable and is not unnecessarily

encumbered with overly complex and burdensome requirements. Schools understand

that under a direct loan program they will have additional responsibility and
requirements for transmitting needed data to the Department and its contractors.

However, promised institutional efficiencies will not be realized if fmancial aid

administrators arc required to input and transmit the equivalent of the current lender

AND school sections of the Federal Stafford Loan application. Our members believe

that only data essential to the making of the loan should be included: data needed by

the Department of Education for research and analysis should be obtained through

other means.

Again, I wouid simply note that information is unclear or lacking on this issue to the

extent that 53 percent of NASFAA's survey respondents indicated that they had

insufficient information to make a decision about originating loans.

Computer Support. The majority of NASFAA's survey respondents indicated that

they have the basic computer equipment necessary for participation in the

demonstration program. The larger unknown is whether the Department will be able

to supply appropriate computer software. At least for purposes of the demonstration

program, the Department planned to develop software to assist participating

institutions in communicating with the Department. This is a critical need, and we

presume that it would also be provided under any phase-in. As we mentioned earlier.

it is essential that adequate planning and testing occur prior to implementation.

Precise and timely communication throughout the process is integral to the

Department's ability to manage a direct loan program. Development and testing of

computer software must include sufficient tiMe to accommodate necessary

modifications and ensure that problems can be resolved prior to system start-up. This

testing is essential for a program of this magnitude and importance.

Several examples of the Department's attempts to initiate software programs come to

mind.

Several years ago, the Department phased in an electronic application and reporting

process for campus-based program funds (FISAP). This process was developed and

refined over a number of years. Although it now works well, in the early years there

were many problems that had to bc worked out through time, testing, and numerous

adjustments.

Also, beginning in the 1993-94 award year. the Department initiated EDExpress. a

new integrated software package free to Electronic Data Exchange (EDE) participants.

This was designed to enable participants to enter, report. and manage all EDE services
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for Title IV student aid application information. Notwithstanding good intentions. I
have been told by several colleagues that the software is not efficient and there have
been numerous complications with it. including unfortunate service problems.
Participants are having difficulty getting their phone calls returned from the
Departrnent's contractors or from the Department, and one upgrade has aiready had to
be distributed to remedy some of the problems.

If the Department expects a direct loan program to operate efficiently, then the
software it provides must be carefully developed and tested before it is sent out to
large numbers of schools. If this is not done carefully, then major disruptions will
CCur.

Training and Support. Training is also a crucial to the success of any program of
federal direct lending. Financial aid administrators must receive instruction on
numerous aspects of the process, particularly (for loan-originating schools) those
formerly performed by lenders or guarantors.

If many of the current loan requirements that are performed by lenders are transferred
to schools then training on these requirements will be essential to insure school
compliance. For example, numerous concerns have also been raised regarding the
adverse credit history criterion for FPLUS borrowers. The proposed regulations on the
demonstration program do not specify whose responsibility it is to obtain and evaluate
a credit history; also, the term "adverse" is very narrowly defined.

Credit reports have not previously been in the purview of financial aid administrators.
Financial aid administrators are not currently familiar with these tasks; it is not part of
their routine to deny loans on the basis of information on credit reports or to explain
which loans are delinquent. To ensure competence in the various ways .to assess and
score individuals' credit histories, the Department must provide precise training and
support in this area. Guidelines on appropriate ways to communicate resulting
decisions are also critical.

It is also essential that the Department receive adequate resources and time to
thoroughly train its own personnel and associated contractors. The Department must
familiarize the substantial number of new staff with an abundance of procedures as
well as ensure that current staff continue to have adequate training support. If this
requires separate direthed appropriations, we believe it is incumbent upon the
Department management to request such funds.

Reconciliation. Another area thm will require specific and focused effort is
reconciliation. Very little detail is available for this critical function area. This
process has been described as an almost amazingly simple records-matching process.
at .1 we hope it will be. However, it will be at least partially a new process, both for

99

4



95

the Department and for participating schools, therefore, we believe that careful thought
and school input is necessary to make it work.

Servicing and Collection Contracts. The Department must let contracts for servicing
and collection of federal direct loans. The entities performing these services must be

in place and operational when the program begins, but not later than six months from

the time the first loan is made. It has been suggested by some that the Department
has "more, time" to develop and finalize these aspects of the program, because they

wili occur later in the process. This is not ti case. It is entirely possible that a
student may drop out soon after receiving an initial disbursement and begin repayment
after th six month grace period has expired. Also, during that grace period, certain
notifications are required to comply with due diligence requirements.

As such. we: would strongly suggest that the Department be given maximum flexibility
in selecting and contracting with servicers. Government procurement procedures are

designed to in3ure competitive pricing, but pricing in and of itself is not necessarily

the most important matter, when it comes to letting these contracts. Proven experience

in servicing student loans and in performing collections must be very strongly factored

into the letting of these contracts. Proven experience and familiarity with the student

loan programs. in our opinion should receive more consideration than who submits the

lowest bid. If the program is to work, then the Department needs the ability and the
necessary resources to select the best contractors.

I also .vish to mention that 58 percent of NASFAA survey respondents would prefer

to select the servicer for their students. Schools have.been held accountable for loan
repayment outcomes, and therefore, they would like to be able to choose the servicer

that best meets their students' needs.

NASFAA recognizes that this may not be practical given the structure of the new
direct loan program. However, at a minimum, if a school finds that an assigned
servicer is not measuring up to its requirements, or is otherwise dissatisfied. then the

institution should be able to request that the Department transfer its students' records
to another servicer.

Further, the Department should build in its system, a "customer-satisfaction"
evaluation to insure on-going and regular assessment of the work and quality of
service being provided by all of its contractors. Such an approach will help to
maintain quality and responsive service that often begins to fade with long-term
government contractors.

Transition. The Department must also continue its support for the Part B loan
programs. Whatever the outcome of this budget reconciliation, the Part B programs

will continue for the next several years. therefore, they must be supported and
maintained so as not to jeopardize their viability and integrity.
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In closing, let me make one final point. If a direct loan program is to be adopted and
it appears that it will, then, we believe it to be essential that there be assurance of
needed capital. While we understmd the commitment that has beeA made to direct
lending, mention has also been made of the poss;bility of entitlemew caps on the
program. Funding limitations of any sort are pottitially problematic, however, it is
important to distinguish how caps might affect the Fart B program vs. a direct loan
program. For the current Part B programs, an entitlement cap would limit the amount
of loan subsidies; for a direct loan program, an entitlement cap would affect loan
volumeiwo widely different levels.

Given the dependency of students and parents upon the existing federal student loan
programs, it ;s essential that adequate levels of needed capital be maintained under
either stru lure. While we understand the need for deficit reduction and program
reforM, they cannot occur at the expense of limiting or denying educational
opportunity for our citizens.

Thank you for inviting me to appear before you. I would be happy to answer any
questions you may have.
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NASFAA Rapid Survey Network 1992-93 RSN Survey 43

Direct Lending Issues &Joy 18, 1993

Please indicate your response to each question in the space provided and return the
cornpItted survey within 43 hours via FAX 4202-785-1487 (Attn: Fred Franko) or In the
encioseo envelope. Thank you for your participation.

1. Gwen the xtructure and procedures outlined Kt the
412)93 Federal Direct Student Loan Program (Federal
Direct Loan) No:ice of Proposed Rulemaiting (NPRM1,
which of the toll° ving best describes your schoors
current plans' lc:Mack one)

My school vill apply to participate in tho
demonstratem program.

My cchool is considering application to
Participate in the demonstration program

My school will not apply to participate in the
demonstration proaram.

We do not have onaugh information to
make this decision as this time.

2. The 4/223 Federal Direct Lc.an NPRM staled that
the following would be required for participation in the
demonstration program. A) IBM compatible PC. 512
RAM, DOS version 3 3 or later, 4 MB space available
on a hard disk, a floppy drive, and 1200, 2400, or
9600 baud Hayes compatible asynchronous modem: or
B) a mainframe computer supporting IBM 3780 RJE
protocol and HASP using binary synchronous
communications at 2400 and 4000 besisecond: and :.1)
a printer that prints on 8.12 by 11 inch paper.

a Do you have this equipment available ror yot

Yes No

b If no can you acquire th s equipment by July 1.
1994/

Yes No

c If no, can you acquire this equipment by July 1.
19957

Yes No

3. The Administration's direct loan proposal would
permit institutions to origrnate loans or other canoes to
originate loans on behalf of eligible instautions. Given
this option, if your school was selected for participation
in a direct loan program, which of the following best
describes your current plans regarding direct loan
origination/ (chin). one)

My school would originate loans

My school would not orginate loans.

We do not have enough Information to make
this decision at this time.

Note for questions 4-6, please just prowde your best
estimates; there is no need to consul( your records or
perform any calculations.

4. Please estimate the approximate number of Federal
Perkins Loans your school makes annually.

Number of Peikins Loans:

5. Please estimate the approximate number of FFELP
(Federal Stafford, FSLS. and FPLUS) loans your
school certifies annually.

Number of FFELP loans:

6. The Administration's direct loan proposal authorizes
a loan origination les averaging $10 per borrower per
year for loan originators. Given your understanding of
the administrative responsibilities of institutions as
outlined in the 4223 Federal piled Loan NPRM,
which of the following amounts most closely
approximates the costs that your school would Incur in
originating a direct loan to a student/ (check one)

Less than $5 $5 to $10

$11 to 515 $16 to 520

$21 to 525 S28 to $30

More than $30

insufficient information to estimate at this time

7. During any'implemenlation or transition period, both
the Federal Direct Loan Program and the FFEL
programs would continue to operate. Under both the
4/2193 Federal Direct Loan NPRM and the
Administration's proposal, schools selected for
participation in a direct loan program would no longer
be allowed to make FFEL loans to their students. If

the FFEL program is phased out as proposed by the
Administrabon, which of the following options would
you favor' (chock one)

Schools t.liould be limited to either a direct loan
program or the FFEL program.

Schools should be allowed to participate in both
programs until such lime as the FFEL program is
phased oul

(Please continuo an side 2)
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1992-93 RSN Survey #3
Page 2

9. if schools were allowed to participate in both
programs at the same time, which of the following
would you favor? (check one)

First year students be awarded Federal Direct
Loans; all other students stay in FFELP.

New borrowers be awarded Federal Direct Loans;
old borrowers stay in FFELP.

Undergraduate students be awarded Federal
Direct Loans: graduate students stay in FFELP.

Schools aro allowed to make this determination.

9. The Department of Education plans to issue a
contract (or contracts) for servicing and collecting
Federal Direct Loans. One goal is for each student to
have only one servicer lor all hisMer loans. This may
mean that schools will deal with more than one
servicer. II possnble, would you like to choose Me
servicer for your school, even if that choice may mean
a servIelit change for some transfer students?

Yes No Not sure

10. The following are some of the issues that have
been raised relative to direct lending. Please indicate
your school's reaction to these issues, using a scale of
1.5 where 1 . unconcerned, 2 . somewhat concerned,

11. Gwen all of the discussion su«ounding direct
lending, which of the following most accurately
represents your feelings on this issue? (check one)

I would favor a phased-in direct lending program
to replace FFELP.

I would favor a parallel direct lending
demonstration program to evaluate rts effectiveness
before phasing out FFELP.

I would favor retailing the existing FFELP, but
working to improve rt and make it more cost 4ffective.

3 - concerned. 4
concerned.

very concerned, and 5 greatly

2 3 4 5 Timing of funds delivery to schools

2 3 4 5 Assurance of program funding

I 2 3 4 5 Schools' administrat.ve ability to
original* loans

2 3 4 5 Schools' administrative ability to
disburse loans

1 2 3 4 5 Schools' administrative ability to
reconcile loans

1 2 3 4 5 Schools' potential liability

2 3 4 5 Abikty of ED to issue regulations in a
timely manner

1 2 3 4 5 Abilrty of ED to provide training and
support

AFFIX SISN ID LABEL HERE

2 3 4 5 Loan collections and servlang by ED
contractor

2 3 4 5 Loss of services currently provided
by lenders
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Mr. Tow Ns. Mr. Butts.
STATEMENT OF THOMAS A. Burrs, ASSOCIATE VICE PRESI-

DENT OF GOVERNMENT RELATIONS, UNWERSITY OF MICHI-
GAN, ON BEHALF OF THE AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDU-
CATION, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION.OF STATE COLLEGES AND
UNIVERSFI1ES, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY
COLLEGES, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COLLEGE AND UNI-
VERSITY BUSINESS OFFICERS, AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
OF STATE UNIVERSITIES AND LAND GRANT COLLEGES
Mr. Burrs. Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I

am pleased to have the opportunity to speak with you today on be-
half of five national associations principally representing presidents
of universities, including the American Council on Education, the
National Association of State Colleges and Universities, the Amer-
ican Association of State Colleges and Universities, and the Amer-
ican Association of Community and Junior Colleges, as well as. the
National Association of College and University Business Officers.

I have served as a director of financial aid at the University of
Michigan for a number of years. I was the Deputy Assistant Sec-
retary in the Department of Education for part of the Carter ad-
ministration. Most recently I have served as a member of the Na-
tional Commission on Responsibilities for Financing Postsecondary
Education. That Commission recommended moving to full direct
lending.

Our associations would not support direct lending if we didn't
think it was the best of the possible alternatives that are out there.
We are keenly aware that the budget process this year requires
$4.3 billion in savings in accordance with the way in which the
budget rules have been written. And the choice between direct
lending and taking $4.3 billion out of the current system is an easy
one. Direct lending wins hands down.

We are very concerned about the possible disruption legislation
that would take that amount of money out of the current system,
would have on students and access to capital and everything else.

The students attending our institutions have too much at stake
for direct lending to fail. We could not and would not support a
complete change in the financing and delivery of loan programs if
we didn't believe the Education Department was capable of meet-
ing its management responsibilities.

The issue is not staffing at the Education Department. The issue
is the structure of the student loan program. The best staff in the
world can't administer a program that is structurally unsound as
is the case with the guaranteed loan program. The GAO lists that
program as a high-risk program.

You will note that it doesn't list the Perkins loan program as a
high-risk program, the campus-based programs, or the Pell grant
programs as high risk.

The Department has been able to manage those programs under
very difficult circumstances over the last 12 years in a reasonable
way.

Charles Kolb, the former Deputy Under Secretary of Education
and Deputy Assistant for Policy fbr President Bush pointed out in
a recent interview: "If the Department could not handle a less com-
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plex direct loan program, how could it be expected to operate the
current guaranteed system which is vastly more complicated?"

Dr. Lloyd Hack ley at the recent Senate hearing on direct lending,
who is the president of Fayetteville State University, stated: "This
committee is on the threshold of an enormous opportunity to re-
form student aid, a reform that is long overdue. . . . The Depart-
ment cf Education is capable of administering direct lending.' At
the hearing, Marshal Witten from Vermont, a member of the Com-
mission, made the same point.

The current student loan system includes the Education Depart-
ment, but the Education Department is only one of the players.
The existing system has so many players and the financial webs
are so complex that accountability is simply not possible. Direct
lending eliminates the middlemen and simplifies the program oper-
ation. Simplicity makes accountability possible.

We believe that direct lending will be easier and, as I said, a
more accountable program with many of the existing serven; and
agencies working under contract to the Department. A major blow
will be struck for simplicity and accountability.

Further, salary and expense money for direct lending is included
in the legislation as a mandatory expense. It is there on the entitle-
ment side of the budget. Pulling that money out so that the pro-
gram can fail isn't possible as has been the case in recent years
with the provision of necessary management money.

Mr. Joe McCormick, the former director of the Texas Guarantee
ency and a past president of NASFAA said recently in a letter:

"The government has been in the direct student loan business since
1958 with what is now called the Perkins Loan Program, so there
is nothing 'experimental' about the direct lending proposal."

Finally, the phase in. Nothing in 1993, 2 or 300 schools in 1994
and 1995; 25 percent of the volume in 1995; 1996, 60 percent, the
following year; and then everybody.

Give me a break. That is a phasein program? That is a dem-
onstration program in those years. This program can be fine tuned.
The Department can run it, and it will be a far superior product
than the current system.

Thank you very much. I will be happy to answer any questions.
Mr. TOWNS. Thank you, Mr. Butts.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Butts follows:I
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee, I am Thomas A.
Butts, Associate Vice President for Government Relations at the
University of Michigan. am pleased to have the opportunity to
appear before you today on behalf of five national higher education
associations to discuss the management of the Federal Direct
Student Loan Program.

By way of background, I was the Director of Financial Aid at the
University of Michigan from 1971-77. From 1977-81, I served in the
U.S. Office of Education and later the Education Department as a
policy advisor on student aid and for two years as the Deputy
Assistant SecretarY for Student Financial Assistance. Most
recently, I have served as a member of the bipartisan National
Commission of Responsibilities for Financing Postsecondary
Education (NCRFPE). The Commission's report, Making College
Affordable Again, was re'eased last February and has received
considerable attention.

After substaotial discussion and analysis. the associations I speak
for today support the Administration's phase-in plan for direct
lending. None of the alternatives under discussion compares
favorably with direct lending. We are pleasea with the
improvements made by the House when direct lending was includea
as part of the budget reconciliation bill. Central to our support is
the assumption that the Education Department can and will be able
to fulfill its management responsibilities for the program.

We are keenly aware that the budget process this year requires
savings of $4.3 billion over the next five years from the student !oar:
programs. While there has been much attention on the Education
Department's ability to manage direct loans, little attention haG
been given to the sudden administrative burden that will be forcea
upon the department if alternatives are enacted. Alternative
proposals to generate $4.3 billion in savings would also impose a
substantial burden an the Department of Education. Indeed, the
burden may be higher than direct lending because the effective date
for these proposals is usually much sooner than for direct lending
We are very concerned about the possible disruption 'egislation
this sort may cause. Given the choice between the two alternatives
we believe the direct loan option is the better.
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We would not put $18 billion of loan capital for our students at risk
if we did not believe that the problems with the current loan
guarantee system are so pervasive that fundamental change is
required. We could only support a replacement program that we
believe would work for all institutions. We believ i;-.at the
simplified delivery system options available to ii stitutions
contained in the House passed bill will make it possible for small
and large institutions to participate in direct lending in a cost
effective way.

The students attending our institutions have too much at stake for
direct lending to fail. We could not and would not support a
complete change in the financing and delivery of the loan programs
if we did not believe that the Education Department was capable of
meeting its management responsibilities. The issue is not staffing
at the Education Department; the issue is the structure of tne
student loan program. The best ztaff in the world can't aorninister a
program that is structurally unsound.

It is important to note that the House Education .and Labor
Committee was prepared to approve a full direct lending
program in the House.reauthorization of the Higher Education Act
last year. It was only after a threatened veto by the previous
administration the House agreed to a demonstration program.
Indeed, a number of key former members of the Bush Administration
support the Clinton Administration plan for direct lending. A copy of
their letter of support is attached to my 'statement.

Charles Kolb, former Deputy Undersecretary of Education and Deputy
Assistant to the President for Domestic Policy for President Bush.
pointed out in a recent interview in Department of Education
Reports: "...if the Department could not handle a less-complex direct
loan program, how could it be expected to operate the curre.nt
guarantee loan system, which is 'vastly more complicated'."

Dr. Lloyd V. Hackley, Chancellor, Fayetteville State University, in
testimony before the May 26, 1993, Senate Labor and Human
Resources Committee on behalf of the Office for the Advancement of
Public Black Colleges, NASULGC and AASCU stated: "This Committee
is on the threshold of an enormous opportunity to reform student aid
-- a reform that is long overdue... The Department of Education is
capable of administering direct lending." A copy of Dr. Hackley's
statement is attached.
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At the same hearing, NCRFPE member R. Marshal Witten, a trustee of
the .Vermont State Colleges, point-o out that "...In the face of fiscal
realities, direct lending provides a unique opportunity to simplify
the entire student aid system..." One of the Commission's major
recommendations was to replace guaranteed loans with direct
lending.

The current student loan system includes the Education Department
but the Department is only one of many players. The existing system
has so many players and the finandal webs are so complex that
accountability is not possible. Direct lending eliminates
"middlemen" and simplifies program operation. Simplicity makes
accountability possible.

The Education Department is responsible for the management of the
current program of loan guarantees yet its hands are, for all
practical purposes, tied, when it comes to having the authority and
resources to manage the program. The 7,800 lenders, 44 guarantee
agencies and 35 or so secondary markets don't work for ED. Any and
all of the players complain to the Congress at *the slightest call for
coordination, common data systems and accountability. For many
years, current participants in .the loan program blocked any efforts
to improve the delivery of services under the program. For example.
each of the guarantee agenies has always insisted on having its
own application to participate in the federal student loan program.
This means there are 46 separate applications, all requesting
slightly different applications. This greatly complicates the
administrative burden facing schools.

In addition to a common application --- which will soon beLome a
reality thanks to an act of Congress --- there are plenty of (-ter
examples. A single lender claim form, student confirmation report
and a rational data base of student borrowers have all been blocked
because current participants in the loan program did not want them

We believe that direct lending will be an easier, more accountable
program. With many of the existing servicers and agencies working
under contract to the department. a major blow will be struck
simplicity and accountability. Further, the inclusion of salary and
expense funding in the legislation as a mandatory expenditure will
ensure that the resources necessary for management will be
available when needed.
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Mr. Chairman, I believe that Joe L. McCormick. a former CEO of the
Texas Guarantee Agency and past president of the National
Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators, summed it up
well in a May 25, 1993 letter to Senator Paul Simon:

The Federal government has been in the direct student loan
business since 1958 with what is now called the Perkins
Loan Program, so there is nothing "experimenter about the
direct lending proposal. I agree that the Department of
Education cannot administer a complex, multi-layered loan
program made up of 7,800 lenders, 35 state secondary
markets plus Sallie Mae, and 44 guarantee agencies.
However, ED can administer a direct loan program that uses
schools to originate the loans and contracts with the
private sector to service those loans, thus greatly reducing
the administrative burden of the Department of Education.
A direct loan program that is fully integrated with the
existing federal student aid delivery system offers the
greatest opportunity in over thirty years to simplify and
streamline the student loan process.

Mr. Chairman, I have read the report on the Senate Permanent
Committee on Investigations (Nunn) hearings on the loan programs
and sat through most of them. I have read the GAO reports and
observed what has happened to the Education Department over the
past 12 years. I might say that it was with some personal pain that

.watched the career service carry out its responsibilities for the
student aid programs with leadership that was unable or unwilling
to command the resources necessary to do a proper job.

I am impressed that the programs, with all of their documented
problems, continued to operate as well as they did during that
period. It has been clear that the guaranteed loan program was
destined for trouble in the best of circumstances because of its
structure. However, the Pell Grant and campus-based programs
(including Perkins) have continued to work well.

We have oeen impressed with the leadership Secretary Riley and
Deputy Secretary Kunin have brought to the department. They are
committed to making things work right. I have had the opportunity

,watch the plans for direct lending develop and believe that it will
work. I am confident that, with the authority to manage the
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transition contained in the House passed legislation, the switchover
will procead satisfactorily and loan capital will continue to be
available tb students during the phase-in. period.

The time allocated for the direct loan phase-in is reasonable.
Roughly 250 out of more than 7.000 institutions will participate in
the 1994-95 school year. It will grow to an estimated 25% of the
loan volume in 1995-96, 60% in 1996-97 and not until 1997-98 will
everyone participate. Obviously, there will be time to fine-tune
things along the way and the bill gives the Secretary of Education
specific authority to slow down this schedule if necessary. This is
hardly a plan to rush headlong into direct lending.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we believe that direct lending will provide
better service and benefits to students, will be easier for
institutions to manage than the current system and will be a better
deal for taxpayers.

Thank you for your consideration of our views. I would be happy to
answer any questions you might have.

1 It
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May 25, 1993

Honorable Edward M. Kennedy
Chair, Senate Labor and Human Resources

Committee
Senate Russell Office Building
Room SR-315
Washington. D.C. 20510

Honorable Nancy Kassebaum
Ranking Minority Member, Senate Labor

and Human Resources Committee
Dirksen Senate Office Building
Room SD-428
Washington, D.C. 20510

Charles Kolb
1227 Michigan Court
Alexandria, VA 22314
(703) 836-6199

Honorable William Ford
Chair, House Education and Labor

Committee
Raybutn House Office Building, Room 2107
Washington, D.C. 20515

Honorable William Good ling
Ranking Minority Member, House Education

and Labor Committee
Rayburn House Office Building, Room 2181
Washington. D.C. 20515

Dear Members of Congress:

As Republicans who served under Presidents Ronald Reagan or George Bush. we
believe that the rime has come to restructure the federal guaranteed student loan ("GSL")
program -- a program that has become overly complex, lacks accountability, and wastes
taxpayers' dollars through needlessly high loan default rates.

We are writing to express our support for reforming the GSL program by replacing the
existing system with a new direct loan program.

According to estimates prepared by the Department of Education (under both
Presidents hush and Clinton), the Congressional Budget Office, and the General
Accounting Office, the new direct loan program will also result in significant annual budget
savings that could be used for deficit reduction. Direct borrowing by the federal
government to capitalize the direct loan program as a revolving fund will save on the
current interest and special allowance subsidies now paid to banks and others while
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Honorable Edward M. Kennedy
Honorable Nancy Kassebaum

. Honorable William Ford
Honorable William Good ling
May 25, 1993
Page 2 of 3

ensuring a more streamlined, efficient, and workable program that melts the needs of
America's students. As such, a direct loan program offers a more cost-effective delivery
system far providing student financial assistance.

Over the years, the guaranteed student loan program has deveioped a dezree of
rezulatory and administrative complexity that now undermines ns fundamental inteznty anti
effectiveness. Replacing the GSL structure with a streamlined structure will mean not only
enhanced accountability and budget savings, but also a more ranonal delivery system that
will particularly benefit students and educational institutions. In particular, we believe
direct loans will also ensure greater responsibility and accountability by parncinaung
educaliolal institutions.

A direct loan program will mean replacing the role currently played by many banks.
guarantee agencies, and secondary markets with a much more competitive approach. The
intent is not to harm these participants in the existing program but rather to recognize that
more competitive, efficient, and practical ways exist to provide student loans. We hope
that as the Congress considers direct loans it will look beyond the misleading information
that is being spread by representatives of those entities who have a direct financial stake in
preserving the status quo.

We believe that the Clinton administration has taken the correct position on this
issue and urge the Congress to consider this much-needel reform of the student loan
program. In fact, much of the initial work that led to the direct loan program currently
under consideration was undertaken during the Bush aiiministration. While a valuaole
direct loan pilot program was authorized last year, we regret that this work was not pursued
more seriously and vigorously during last year's reauthorization of the Higher Education
Act. Nonetheless, we hope that the Congress will act in a true bipartisan fashion to
approve direct loans in order to bring sweeping and needed reform to the student aid
delivery system.

Should bipartisanship not be possible, we call upon our fellow Republicans to unite
behind the direct loan proposal and to show leadership in this and other efforts to reform
government We favor reforms that will ensure real value for the taxpayers' dollar. witn
government activity targeml to ensure more effective efforts delivered in ways that are
accountable to the Amerioin people.

cn Bona
Fortor Ctaircan. Reoutli.lan
National Ccmaitta.

113

Sincerely yours. A

Diana Culp Boric r
Tcncar ;:enct7 General :zunse:.
U.S. Zepartment ot
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Honorable Edward M. Kennedy
Honorable Nancy Kassebaum
Honorable William Ford
Honorable William Good line
May 25. 1993
Page 3 of 3

lif"r etCk 1'4,3

James P. Pirmerton
Former Deputy Assist'ailt the

President for Po/icy Planning

Caroiynn'Oid-Wallacel
Former Assistant Secretary for
Postsecondary Education
U.S. Depar-=ent of Educatizr.

Nancy Moiaz Kennedy
Forser Aigistant Secretary
for 1:eg1siatIon and Congressicnal AffaIrs

U.S. Department of Education

Miccael J. HorowYtc
Former General Counsel
Office of Management and Budget

14'ke 429'
Charles E.M. Kolb
Former Deputy Assistant to the
President ftr Domestio F lIcy

George A. Pieier
Former AczIng Deputy cer Secretary
ftr ?lantlr.t. Sudaet and EvaivatItn
U.S. Department of Education

cc: Senate Cornrnmee on Laoor ana Human Resources
Comminee on Education and Ltoor

114

BEST COPY AVAILABLE



AmodatIon ;

OrfrP.''
State :7=

"04feitit'ilLit
weremac I;,3=9:-

ietiagfflier,"A

011111$01:4
'4,!1Ark,*Vi

:70&11teeeisitk.s
; 4-5FttAtea;agioN ":

iViirS

. IN*4144.
1171010

1416401.

115

110

TEST/MONY

OF

DR. ILOYD V. HACKLEY, CHANCELLOR

FAYETTEV/LLE STATE UNIVERSITY

TESTIFYING ON BEHALF OF THE

OFFICE FOR THE ADVANCEMENT

OF PUBLIC BLACK COLLEGES (OAPBC)

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE UNIVERSITIES

AND LAND-GRANT COLLEGES (NASULGC)

AND THE

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE COLLEGES

AND UNIVERSITIES (AASCU)

BEFORE THE

COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES

MAY 26, 1993



111

Mr. Chairman, members of this distinguished Committee, I am

Lloyd Hack ley, Chancellor, Fayeteville State University. I am

pleased to have the opportunity to testify on behalfof the Office for

the Advancement of Public Black Colleges (OAPBC), the National

Association of State Universities and Land-Grant Colleges

(NASULGC) and the American Association of State Colleges and

Universities (AASC"..'). These two associations represent over 5.6

million students and constitute the largest volume of student loans

and other forms of student financial assistance in the nation.

America's state-assisted institutions of higher education are bound

by a democratic philosophy that is envied and respected worldwide--

a philosophy that boldly asserts that men and women of talent and

ability, regardless of their economic and social condition, can

achieve the "American Dream" with hard work and a helping hand

from higher education and the nation.
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These institutions serve an enormous range of students in terms of

economic, social and ethnic background. They are students from

wealthy and welfare families. They come from rural communities

in Lorman, Mississippi, ravished neighborhoods in East St. Louis

and the urban populous of Los Angeles, California. They.are from

blue-collar, white-collar, and no-collar familiesbut they all come

to the "people's universities" believing in the power of education to

make a difference in their social and economic condition.

Today, American higher education is challenged as never before to

bring academic and nonacademic functions closer together while

improving our nation's ability to become more responsive- to the

educational, social and economic imperatives of a highly diverse

student body. At a time when the nation is coming face-to-face with

the dire consequences of massive human casualties in a $6 trillion

economy, our institutions are looking for new ways to be more

2
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productive, more competitive, more fiscally-conscious and at the

same time more responsive to human needs for the common good

of the state and the nation. Sharing a sense of responsibility for

revitalizing our national economy, we in higher education are doir,

a better job of clarifying our missions and redefining our priorities

while contributing co the larger national goal of restraining rising

costs.

The higher education community is committed to providing insight,

vision and leadership in moving forward to implement the Student

Loan Reform Act. We can speak with pride about the willingness

and the capacity of out instituti mis to use this extraordinary

opportunity to better serve uur students. As Chancellor of

Fayetteville State University, I commend the Committee for

engaging the higher education community in helping to shape the

Student Loan Reform Act. As instruments of the state and the

3
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nation, public colleges and universities should be front and center

in reforming federal student aid programs, thus, insuring that direct

lending is designed to serve the interest of our students and at the

same time the national interest of our economy.

M. Chairman, we believe the President's proposal satisfies the

essential criteria for a simplified, efficient direct loan program with

tremendous savings for students, institutions of higher education and

the nation. We have long advocated a system of student loans that

is user-friendly, easily accessible, and fiscally responsible. As

stated in a recent article by Thomas Butts and PlizPbeth Hicks,

"Direct lending offers the best of both centralization and

decentralization...it eliminates the current system's confusing

negotiations between the borrower and the university...funds go

directly to students' billing accounts without compromising

standards of integrity and accountability." This Committee is on the

113
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threshold of an enormous opportunity to reform student aid--a

reform that is long overdue.

The Department of Education is capable of administering direct

lending. Educational institutions possess the efficiency, technical

expertise, staffing, administration, physical plant, instrumentation

and fiscal management capacity to meet this challenge. Our

institutions have managed Work-study, Perkins and its predecessor,

the National Defense Student Loan (NDSL), .Supplemental Grants,

and campus-based financial aid programs. The General Accounting

Office found that the current system is "unauditable and not

conducive to good financial management...and that a direct loan

program would be easier to manage and greatly reduce the

opportunities for error and abuse." Tht radical simplification that

would ensue under direct lending would allow for better oversight

and accountability and turn the current polygonthat includes the

5
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Department of Education, the school, the student, the lender, the

guarantee agency, the secondary market, the servicer, the collect(

and the Internal Revenue Serviceinto a triangular relationship that

is more effective, sensible and integrated in the management and

delivery of serviceswith the Department, the school, and the

student in control.

From where I sit at a small, under-funded university in Fayetteville,

North Carolina, I strongly believe that direct lending is in the best

interest of the most important consumers-14 million students in the

nation's colleges and universities.

From the public college perspective, the direct lending program has

many key advantages:

121
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It will make loan capital available to all students.

It will assure availability of loans to all students during

the transition period to full direct lending.

It will better serve students and parents by making the

process of getting and repaying loans ea-der to

understand.

It will generate considerable savings which can be used

to provide additional funding in the future for other

federal student aid programs and reduce the national

deficit.

It will provide institutions of higher education with the

option of originating loans. No institution will be

7
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required to originate loans. Institutions will receive a

small administrative fee established by the Secretary of

Education.

It will provide borrowers with various repayment options

including income contingent repayment and borrowers are

allowed to change their choice of repayment options.

There is no question about our support for this bill.

Understandably, in legislation this complex, inevitably there are

items that require perfecting. For example, the proposed 6.5

percent origination fee exacts too much from students and should be

reduced below 5 percent or eliminated.

There have been those, even in the higher education community,,

who have expressed concern with parts of the legislation. Serving

123
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at a small historically black public university, we are willing and

ready to take on this new opportunity. The higher education

community must get busy preparing to meet the challenge, to

smooth the way for our students and to take on some short-term

adjustments and problems for long-term advancements and profit.

It is chtar that sacrifices are required by all of us as we struggle

with the overwhelming national debt. The higher education

community is prepared to contribute to that effort. The $4.2 billion

savings in the lending program contained in the budget resolution,

if simply taken as a cut in student aid programs, would bit

devastating. Reducing the deficit is the wellspring of a more vibrant

economy, a better standard of living, and ultimately, increased

federal resources for our students. The Student Loan Reform Act

protects our students, while contributing to the national interest.

9
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At the same time, -we recognize thit some of our smaller, black

colleges are concerned about any additional administrative

responsibilities. The Act provides assistance for administrative costs

and allows schools that do not wish to originate loans other

alternatives. The higher education community will be prepared to

address these and other concerns peculiar to small and limited-

resource institutions in negotiated rulemaking with the Department

of Education.

However, there is a major concern that must be addressed in the

legislative process in all Title IV programs. In the Act, institutions

with default rates of 25 percent or more in at least one of the two

most recent years for which default rates have been calculated will

not be allowed to originate loans. As you know, HECU's enroll a

disproportionate share of low-income students who bring to our

125
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campuses all the inequities of our larger society. Thus, 1988-1990

data show that of 40 public black colleges 10 have an average

default late gmter than 25 percent and 22 reported increases in

1990 compared to 1988. This alarming trend compels the Congress

to extend the current law exemption for black colleges through 1997

or permanently exempt institutions that serve disproportionate

numbers of low-income students and have low-volume defaults in

terms of aggregate dollars.

The unique needs and circumstances of black colleges must be

thoroughly examined given our commitment to serve growing

numbers of dependent and impoverished students who find equality

of opportunity profoundly difficult to obtain. With substantially

limited resources, few political options and marginal state support,

black colleges continue to face competing fiscal priorities while

11
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maintaining the integrity of federal financial aid programs. More

than 50 percent of the 4,000 students on my campus come from

families with incomes of less than $20,000 annually and over 50

percent receive some form of financial assistance. Our loan volume

in 1992-93 was over $1.4 million. In 1988 we had a default rate of

13 percent and in 1990 the rate increased to 14 percent. At a

number of black colleges more than 75 percent of the entire student

body receives financial assistance.

Given the realities of the economy compounded by the realities of

inequality:

We can't ignore the fact that between 1972 and 1990, median

family income rose 8 percent compared with 89 percent

between 1950 and 1970.

I '2 7
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We can't ignore the fact that the richest fifth of American

families control about 43.7 percent of all income while 33

million people, with a disproportionate number being black

Americans, remain locked in the wicked cycle of poverty.

We can't ignore the fact that far too many low-income students

are forced to make loans in the absence of state and federal

grants.

The condition of black America is a major indictment of our

nation's unwillingness to come to grips with the pervasive economic

problems that are crippling the ability of our children to have valid

reasons to hope and to prosper. If the nation's black colleges are

to pave the way for future generations, we must use this opportunity

to redefine and restructure federal student financial aid programs for

13
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ALL colleges and universities and particularly those confronted with

a host of social and economic barriers. Given the role of ritS and

the simplicity of the program, direct lending may be the first step

toward reducing defaults at black colleges.

As noted in Let's Take Back Student Aid. Direct Lending Issues

and Myths, authored by G. Kay Jacks and Jerry Sullivan, fmancial

aid directors at Colorado State University and the University of

Colorado respectively, "We must remember why we have student

loans...educational credit is first and foremost to make higher

education a reality for those who cannot afford it. It is a social

program, intended to promote society's goals through education.

Any discussion about a change in federal policy must be measured

using students as the touchstone. Direct lending has been referred

to "...as a Pell Grant with a promissory note. Others have called

it a Perkins without a funding cap with no responsibility to service

129
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and collect loans...It allows institutions to focus on the individual

students, not the unpredictable characteristics of an unexplainable

loan program." By the way, copies of Let's Take Back Student

Aid:... were sent to every U.S. Senator.

I say it is time to reverse the skepticism about direct lending and

turn it into a national priority, a commitment, a mandate that

propels out institutions into the 21st Century, providing the full

range of financial assistance to our students while making a deep

and sustained difference in advancing equality of opportunity for all.

Direct lending--

(1) Streamlines and simplifies the loan process.

(2) Lowers the net cost to students and to the federal

government.

15
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(3) May reduce default rates and provides better repayment

terms with income-contingent arrangements.

(4) Eliminates the existing profit-driven incentive structure

and places student

loan programs where they should bein the hands and

hearts of the higher

education community.

For these reasonsit is the right time and the right thing to do for

all the right reasonsand these reasons are students, students,

students.

I sincerely appreciate this opportunity to testify before this august

body on behalf of 35 historically black public colleges and

universities and nearly 600 state and land-gnint universities in the

nation.

16 4
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Mr. TOWNS. Dr. Forbes.

STATEMENT OF ORCILIA ZUSTIGA FORBES, Ph.D., VICE PRESI-
DENT FOR STUDENT AFFAIRS, UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO
Dr. FORBES. I would like to acknowledge Representative Schiff

who is our Representative, our institution is in his district.
I am Orcilia Züniga Forbes, vice president for student affairs at

the University of New Mexico. I am honored to appear before you
this morning to testify on behalf of the University of New Mexico
in support of the proposed Federal direct student loan initiative.

Prior to coming to the University of New Mexico, I might add,
I was at Portland State University in Oregon. So I have had almost
30 years of experience in higher education, and 15 of those are in
direct supervision of financial aid operations.

We have followed the developments of Federal direct lending
both in the Department of Education and in the Congress. We have
determined that the direct lending program is in the best interest
of the University of New Mexico, New Mexico, and the Nation. We
do not see significant problems with the existing language and,
therefore, endorse the bill. We are prepared to administer t'he pro-
gram as a service to students.

New Mexico has a diversity of institutions. Therefore, it is very
importantand we appreciate the flexibility that would be built
into that programto give institutions a choice as to whether they
want to originate loans. We can foresee that there will be some in
New Mexico who may not wish to originate them.

We also believe that it is important for the institutions to receive
the part that is suggested for cost of administration. The university
has a diverse student population of 25,000 students on our main
campus, and we have an additional 5,000 in three branches. Our
financial aid office, administers, on behalf of 13,500 students, ap-
proximately $60 million in funding from Federal, State, and insti-
tutional sources.

We have developed the personnel and other resources to provide
the best service to students and accountability to the Federal,
State, and university officials who monitor all of the programs.

I will add that coordination between UNM and the Department
of Education has been excellent. 'We have taken advantage of all
opportunities to automate the transfer of information between the
Department and our univei sity. So our experience leads us to ex-
pect that the Department will be prepared to implement direct
lending through a phased program, either directly or by contracting
out portions of the process.

And I speak about contracting out because in New Mexico, the
New Mexico Educational Assistance Corp. serves in collections. We
also give them a contract to collect tuition and other past due bills.
So we have a good system for collection.

I will not repeat any of the advantages that have been listed for
students, among them the simplification for the institutions who
are able and feel competent in handling the program. We believe
the Department, through working with fewer organizations and
agencies, again, will be better equipped to handle the existing and
the proposed program.
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In summary, we at the university look forward to participating
in the Federal direct student lending program and expect that the
Department will provide the leadership under congressional direc-
tion for a successffil program.

Thank you, and I am prepared to respond to questions.
M. TOWNS. Thank you very much Dr. Forbes.
[The prepared statement of Dr. Forbes follows:]

133
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Orcilia Zahiga Forbes, PhD
Vice President for Student Affairs

THE UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, I am Orcilia Zuniga Forbes,
Vice President for Student Affairs at The University of New Mexico.
I am honored to appeared before you this morning to testify on
behalf of The University of New Mexico in support of the proposed
Federal Direct Student Loan initiative.

After following the developments on Federal Direct Student Lending
in the Department of Education and Congress, The University of New
Mexico has determined that direct lending is in the best interest
of UNM, New Mexico, and the Nation. We do not see significant
problems with the existing language of the Act. We thernfore
endorse the bill, and we are prepared to administer the program as
a service to students.

New Mexico has a diversity of institutions, therefore we appreciate
the flexibility that would be built into the program to give
institutions a choice in whether they wish to originate loans. We
also believe that it is important to maintain the fee that
institutions would receive as part of the cost of administration.

The University of New Mexico has a diverse student population of
25,000 on main campus and an additional 5,000 in three branches.
Our student Financial Aid Office administers on behalf of 13,500
students, approximately 60 million dollars in funding from federal,
state and institutional sources. We have developed the personnel
and other resources to provide the best service to students and
accountability to the federal, state and university officials who
monitor all of the programs.

Both our staff and computer capabilities reflect the most
professional up to date operation. Our resources are adequate to
expand to direct lending in the Stafford program. We definitely
plan to apply to participate early in the program should this act
become law.
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Coordination between UNM and the Department of Education has been
excellent. We have taken advantage of all opportunities to
automate the transfer of information between the Department and the
University. Our experience, leads us to expect that the Department
will be prepared to implement direct lending through a phase in
strategy either directly or by contracting out portions of the
process.

From an institutional perspective, the advantages in direct lending
are:

Advantages to Students

Simplifies the application process for students and families.

Provides for timely access to loan funds by students.

Provides-to.: more flexible repayment options.

Provides for long term access to funds.

Advantages to Institutions

Simplifies the student loan application process for
institutions through the elimination of a separate
application.

Data and funds more conducive to electronic transmission.

Simplifies tr:e reporting process for institutions.

Substantially reduces the labor intensive tasks related to
processing of individual's applications.

Provides for administrative options in loan origination
function.

The Department of Education is most competent to administer this
program. Direct lending appears to provide a more manageable
process of student loans for the Department of Education. The
program reduces to a select group the agencies with whom the
Department of Education works. There will also be better
utilization of their existing data and financial systems.

In summary, we at the University of hew Mexico, look forward to
participating in the Federal Direct Student Lending program and
expect that the Department of Education will provide the leadership
under Congressional direction for a successful program.
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Mr. TOWNS. Ms. Bloomingdale. -
STATEMENT OF STEPHANIE BLOOMINGDALE, ON BEHALF OF

US. STUDENTS ASSOCIATION
Ms. BLOOMINGDALE. Thank you. I would like to thank the sub-

committee for giving us this opportunity to testify.
I am a recent graduate of the University of Wisconsin, Milwau-

kee, and am here on behalf of the U.S. Student Association.
The availability of student loans have g,iven many citizens, in-

cluding myself, the opportunity to better themselves and in turn to
better their society. If I had not received student loans, I can safely
say that I would not be sitting here today.

After high school, when I was making the decision of whether or
not to pursue a college education, I was unsure that myself or my
mother would be able to afford it. Fortunately, my mother was fa-
miliar with the financial aid process as she had recently returned
to school to finish her nursing degree. She was not only there to
explain the process but helped navigate me through the arduous
task of applying for financial aid.

I might add that had I known that the tuition at the University
of Wisconsin Milwaukee would more than double during my tenure
and I would be saddled with $18,000 in debt upon graduation, I
don't know if I would have chosen college at that time. But I did
get a college degree; I do have loans; and I am here to speak with
you today about the role of the Department of Education in provid-
ing loans to students.

Students experience many difficulties with the current system,
both when taking on a loan and when in repayment. With campus-
based aid and with Pell grants, a student only needs to deal with
their financial aid office.

With loan§, a student must deal with a bank and a guarantee
agency. Even when the financial aid office deals with these other
entities, students often experience delays and mistakes as a result
of this complex process. While I was in college a common problem
I faced was the delayed disbursement of my loan check. My Pell
grant and campus-based aid was always on time. However, it was
not enough to cover the cost of my tuition. Therefore, I often in-
curred late fees and penalties while I waited for thu loan check to
arrive.

Students in repayment face similar problems due to the complex-
ity of the current system. Often individuals are not informed of
their options for repayment. Students are sometimes even mis-
informed about their obligations. For example, many students call
us at the office who have been incorrectly told that they cannot
consolidate their loans.

And individuals often do not know who owns their loans or
where to send the payments. These mistakes often result in unnec-
essary defaults due to misinformation rather than an unwillingness
of the student to pay back his or her loans. These mistakes can de-
stroy students' credit ratings and their futures.

Because of the problems with the current system, I strongly sup-
port direct lending. The Federal Government has shown that it can
adequately disburse other forms of financial aid such as Pell grants
and campus-based aid. Direct lending will allow the Department of
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Education to exert more direct control over all the entities in the
system.

Financial aid administrators will either directly give out loans or
will only deal with one alternative originator as opposed to a mul-
titude of entities.

I recognize that the Department has faced many problems during
the past 12 years, primarily due to neglect from the Department's
leadership and past lministrations. However, the new Depart-
ment of Education, under Secretary Riley seems to have been rein-
vigorated and is ready to face the challenges that direct lending
poses.

However, to ensure that direct lending will meet the needs of
students, I feel that there are a number of areas that the Depart-
ment does need to address.

First of all, the Department must go through some form of public
consultative rulemaking with the higher education community and
students so that the implementation of the program is problem
free. The direct lending legislation that the House passed would
allew for the Department to impose these regulations without a for-
mal consultation process. If there is not enough time for a full rule-
making process, it is necessary that the Department create a mech-
anism for formal consultation with all affected groups.

Second, students should not be forced to deal with confusion and
delays when taking out their loan. When schools choose alternative
originators, the Department should ensure that the financial aid of-
fice is familiar with a clear process for remedying mistakes. This
requires training and information.

Additionally, the speed and the quality of service should be a cri-
terion in the selection of alternative originators. Students should
understand the rules and the regulations of the process, and they
should also know that they can appeal anything. Too many stu-
dents see the institution as impenetrable and, therefore, give up on
applying for financial aid and, thus, oftentimes, their futures.

Third, the Department of Education must take on the task of
providing easily understood information to students and must
strictly enforce its own rules.

The Department currently has a 1-800 phone number, but many
students don't know it exists. The phone line is understaffed; and
even when the Department takes the side of the student, they do
not directly intervene. The Department should publicly advertise
how borrowers can contact them and must create a student serv-
ices department that would field the calls in a manner that conveys
that the Department is interested in individual student's problems.
The Department must also utilize its power to directly intervene
when a student faces a problem with a collection agency.

Fourth, the students must be informed of the terms of the repay-
ment options. I know provisions under the 1992 amendments to the
Higher Education Act now require lenders and guarantee agencies
to inform borrowers of their repayment options beginning in July
1993. I am happy that there is some language to this effect in the
Student Loan Reform Act of 1993. But I feel it needs to be
strength ened.

I understand that under the Student Loan Reform Act, students
will have multiple repayment options, including income contingent
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loans. This type of loan payback would help someone like me who

worked for a nonprofit organization that is not very well-paying.

And I know other students who also want to work for nonprofit or-
ganizations or as teachers or other community sensitive jobs but

they cannot because of their massive dabt that they incurred while
in college and they would also be interested in this type of repay-
ment. These students would benefit from this program. Yet those

that choose this option must be informed that they will face a
longer repayment period and will be forced to pay back much more

interest than they would under standard repayment.
I would like to see regulations requiring the Secretary to inform

borrowers of the amortization schedule, length of repayment,
amount of interest, and total amount to be repaid for each repay-

ment option. Additionally, language given for contingent repayment
must include such information for a range of income levels.'

And the Department must strictly enforce its regulations and
allow only those with exemplary service to originate and collect

student loans. Often, today, students and other entities do not
abide by the Department's rules and regulations. For example, cur-

rently, schools are supposed to give every student an exit inter-
view. I not only never received such an interview, I had never even
heard of one until just recently. Under a system of direct lending;

the institutions must provide a comprehensive exit interview so

that the student is informed of its responsibilities, rights, and re-

payment options.
In all steps of the process, students should have an institutional-

ized role in judging the quality of service of those involved with the

student loanz, and the Department should deny contracts to those

entities who vilitite its regulation.
I would like to thank you very much for allowing me to testify

today.
Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Bloomingdale follows:1
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t4w.tret womb Biouninsdale. I am a tecont 'radiate of the University ti Wiseman
sad I week like to Math the Committee for rens me this opportunity to testify.

The meltability el modems loans hes given manydims, Mufti lora dtcrodoldrecelvieod
beast themselves sad in tom to better thek commultity and their society. If I not
student WIWI Miladely say that I woad not be Suing here spearing with yoe soder. Atter
high school, aim I was =rides the decision of wheelies moot so purane a college °decoke, I
was amen thst myself eal my mother weld be able to afford it. ormnately. my mother was
familia with the ftweal aid process as she had recently returned to mama to Beak las nursing
deem She was not oily thorn so espial& dm Wm= to me but dko Woo hid* navigate roo
throe* the arduous task of applying foe finsacial ski Not everyone is foremasts enough to have a
poem who fs familiar with &Meal aid. These young people must depend uponhigh school
= counselors who are often oweworted Sod W*.immW about the subtle nuances of

I also might add, that hed I known that whim at the University of Milwaukee Wisconsin would
MOM than double daring my tenure end that I would he saddled with more dee $111,000 la kens
upon redualion I dOlet know IfI =Old bve &Nen Ofilcte Bd. born* ofall dine Ifs" I did
gel a coUege degrrmIddcon have loas, and I ant here today to tak to you Smut the role oldie

of in proedin kens to students. I we also speaking on behalf of the
uasod Stases Student Amociation, eich represents 3.5 million modems at over 350 colleges and
naiveniiies tiwourtoot the commy.

Studems @spoken many difficulties in the over* system both when take' oot elan and when
in repayment. WA campus-bused aid said with Pell Gantt, a midget only nook to deal with their
fineecial aid dike. With loom, a student must deal also with a beak and a guerantee agency.
Even whoa the financial aid office deals with then other made& students anon opulencedelays
sed mistakes as a remit of this complex process. While I wit kt college a common praline I
faced was the delayed disbursemeet of my loan check My Pal Grant and campus-based aid was
always on thee, however. it was not enough to covet the cost of my tuition. theatca I cam
incurred lam fees sad penalties while !waited for my loan check to arrive. At the United States
Studeat Amor:Woo we receive many complaints 'Wit such delays. For example. coe student
from Iowa testified before the Sennslast week Int every semen, be mat coetact Ms lender and
amain that he is enrolled and doss not need to begin repayment on his SLS loan bet.= be col
receive any of his other student loses. Tigs proms geeerally takes months because he must

y contact his lender before the situation is =record. Became he is the fate ciliate
ZedratIthis canna hie family many difffceldes.

*ikons in repayment face similar problems dotty the complexity of the current system. Offen
individuals am not hemmed of thar opens for recayment. students are sometimes gdolargagg
sloolatns (for exam*, many amta call us who have bcon incorrectly told they comet

their loses) and individuall don do rot hnow who owns *air ken or where to send
payment& lbw mistakes often smug in ormecesury defaults due to misinfarreadon rather than
an unwililagneas to pay theme mistakes destroy students' credit incords and their futures.
1 have experienced a lack of isformation regarding,the kw process. For example, afar I left
coilep I west to week for tbe United States Student Antociation which is a very mwarding and
cl!Illessing job, however I am only paid $1_,5 000 a year. Afars 6 months I had to make monthly
loan asparamm of $200, of which over $100 dollen is in interest alone! Duras Ns time I waa
vet)! concerned about my ability to mpay my loos, buy food. Pay MU and balcony live in
Washingtee, DC. Until tweedy, I wu not aware tha it was possible fee mo negotiate the terms of
my repayment with my lender. If my lender had famished this infeematioo to me upon my
graduation hose college, I would have laved many months of undue AMU and worry.

Became of the problems with the mina system I skoery support Direct Lakin. Ilse feekral
government hes shown it can adequately Snafu other ftme at finmncial aid suck as Fell Grants
and tempos band aid. Direct Landing will slow dm Dew:oast ci Educafica to exert more direct
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control over all the (mhos k the system. IlinemcW sid schnientruors will either beady eye out
loans or MI oriy deal with ons slierum originmor as opposed to a multitude of emboli. The
Department will also hme more disect morel over the practices @4thoie who me involved in
atutins kaa MIlltedm

I recognize thuds Deplane:et hu fecal many goblems during the ut 12 ram primarily due to
from the Deosrtment's loaclanhip and put adatiannations. . die NM DIVIIIIPAMS

(impedes, saw Secretary Riley, seems to have bees mini:mated and is ready to hoe tbe
chalbegee bat dim lending poem As lass ace. the new_ Departmem of Hamden has bean more
visibly reading out to solicit infornution from higher educadon orgasizadons, mlvershiss asd

and Woken in oder to forge a better rebdondtip sad to recognbe and malty the
and Isms them groups have raised.

liewovecoo mare that direct leading Will Mei the needs of sedates. I feel thereare a number of
areas ihe Depanment must addreos.

(1) The Department must go through Nome form of public-cometiltative raistualdng
with the hur education commulty and students so that the Implemeshidoss of the

gam is problem-free. The Mira lenthag legislation the House putas.W wouki blow the
Depanmeotto impose them mulattoes without a formal oesseladon process. If them h not
enough time foe a NI mlmsg process, it is necessary that tbe Department atoma mechanism
for formal consultation with all acoted groups.

(2) litudents imeld not be torcod to deal with easholoo mut &Isle whew taking
Gill their loam When Khoola choose alternate originators, dut Depertmcnt should loam that
the &meld aid office is familiar with a ekb must for roloodYNImIllakto This Mara
training end istemnatien. Addidona4, Me opted and the quality of torte Amid be a whence in
the nelection of shames Grisham. audm shoeld undentand the rules and teiptl,adotts of the
proms and they should also know that they can appeal wiling. Too many mits me the
methadon imponemehie and thesefore sive up ter financial ski and thus, often bum,
emir nitste. If we. As coorttrY, are commied to g low income stubms del WorbWty
to teem themselves and thus society dim* a Qui educed= ben wc must be oommkted to
provide adamant' infonnadon about dr, student knit program to studatts before they mum college,
during miler, Ind saw graduation whea they are repaying their loans.

(3) The Deparenset of noes*s mist lake or the task of presidia; sadly
nederalood informatics to rtadents and must strictly enforce its own mho. The
Depeament cuready has a WM minter, but many students don't latow it chits, the rhono line
is enderstalfed modems when dm Depannow Wes the side of the Oaken they do not
intervene. The Deportmem should publicly adverim how bactowtra can omelet them and. mon
male a made* services *pampa that would field tbe calls b a manner din conveys that the

'sr.:log=0one= when a stodem faces a trobiarn with a collection agency.
cares about students' individual altuatlan. The Deportment must also maim its power

(4) Students west be kafenned of the tams of their repayment update. I how
',envisions soder the 1992 Amendments to dm Meer Eduaidon Actnow require /ender aid

zwpa;tzeassooko
to Worm borrowers of their repayment options beginning Iuly 1993. I am

Mt la some hatguage tO this efbct ia the Student Loan Reform Mt of 1993, hot I feel
it needs to be stransihmed I understand that nader the SI1Nittit Lon Reform Mt studeas will
have mold* rammed options. Includins home eardiagent losn npayesect. This type aim
rPaymeint would *AP banitOne like me, woo I work for a low-payins, non-profit crisnixation. I
know many students who would love to work in non-profit organizations, as leachers, or fee other
commuMty smiths fobs, but can not became of be musivo debt they inclined while in college
and will benefit from loser monthly payments. Yet them who choose this option mum be
informed that they will face a longer ripaymest pcsiod end will bc foemd to pay beck much matt
Waseca dun shay would under standard repayment. I would like tosec togukeUm respites the
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Secretary to inform borrowers ot the smonixation schedule, lengthof allayment. wont of
interest and total mount to be regmid for cock repayment option. Additionally, language given for
irrcomecontinprat repayment must inciude sock infonaadon for a range of Wane levels.

(5) Me Department must strictly *afore* its rageladema and allow only those with
exmerplary service lo OdgIII.ts sad WWI elstisat leans. Mon today schools Ind odor
endties do not *We by the 's mks and regulations. Por oxample, cunendy schools am
supposed to give every 'indent an limit interview" to explain their repayment plan. I not only
never received such an intarview, I had never eVen hard of such a thing-. Under asyst of direct
loam the Muckrakes must provide oompeheradve exit interviews so that thestudenetu informed
of their rights. reeponsibilitlea and repayment options. In all steps of the proems students should
have sr instinsiondired role in Milos the quality of novice ol those involved with student low,
and the Department should dray COnItanti to those mitts which violate its regulations.

With these recommendations.I bore that the transition to Direct Lending will be of benefit to
students hem the country, and *oil help 'other low income *Wont* avoid the problems I had to
face when I was in school. Thank you.
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Mr. TOWNS. Thank you very much, Ms. Bloomingdale.
I noticed that you indicated that you did not go to the University

of Michigan or Emory University or University of New Mexico, be-
cause I am certain if you had gone to one of those schools you
would have had an exit interview. I am certain.

But let me say, though, that I think in your testimony you raise
some very interesting points and something that I must admit that
we are struggling with at another level: Allowing a student to go
work for a government agency and work some of the loan off. I
think that that makes a lot of sense because what happens now is,
as we try to reform health care, we are running into a very serious
problem. In most countries, you have 30 percent of the doctors spe-
cializing and 70 percent as general practitioners and primary care.
In the United States, however, we have 70 percent of our doctors
specializing. And when you talk with them, the reason a lot of
them are specializing is because they have to pay back their loans,
since that is the way they make money. And it is like the guy who
robbed the bank. The reason he robbed the bank is because that
is where the money is. The reason they specialize, is because that
is where the money is. That is a very important aspect to consider;
how to get people involved in public service and pay off their loans.
I think your suggestion is one way to do it.

The other thing thatI guess this is directed to you, Mr. Butts,
it seems you feel that there is no reason to phase in direct lending
over a period of time.

I think the reason some of us are very nervous about jumping
into direct lending is the fact that we heard some of these same
arguments about Medicaid that Medicaid would cut costs and Med-
icaid would save this.

Well, Medicaid has messed up New York. As a result of Medic-
aid, doctors will not take Medicaid; and, therefore, patients have to
go to the emergency room to be treated, which costs 10 to 15 times
more than treating them in the emergency room. But doctors will
not take Medicaid.

So those of us who have watched these things before, we are a
little nervous about jumping in. Even though I know you talked
about the possibility of phasing so many colleges in over a period
of time, but we still have some reservations about it.

Mr. Burrs. May I comment on that?
Thank you.
I appreciate your concern. And I would notI would be opposed

to starting this program up for the 1993-94 school year. It couldn't
be done. That is why we are taking 5 years to implement it.

If it stays as a pilot program, quite frankly, the people that have
been trying to kill this thing willby the end of 5 yearskill it,
in my opinion. The demonstration program that Congress passed
last year provides in the 1994-95 school year the same size that
is in this phasein program. The Department of Education will have
to be tooling up for 1994-95, for the same size program that this
new phasein program has. It will grow, then, to 25 percent the next
year and so on, until you are finally into full implementation.

My experience comes from being a student financial aid adminis-
trator who implemented the Pell grant program at the University
of Michigan. Our institution was a lender under the guaranteed
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loan program, and simultaneously managed the Perkins loan pro-
gram and the health professions loan program. You need time to
do those things right.

Also, from the point of view of having managed these programs
within the Department of Education, in my professional opinion,
direct lending can be done.

Mr. TOWNS. Let me just say that the Senate is recommending
that we start out with 30 percent, initially.

Mr. Burrs. I believe the Senate this morning, in the mark up,
called for 5 percent, which is roughly the same volume as the
House bill. That, then, inCreased to, I believe, 30 percent or so. And
then insteadin the third year it is 40 percent rather than the
House version of 60 percent. And they would keep it as a goal of
50 percent of volume for the next 2 years. There is a difference be-
tween the two bills.

Mr. TOWNS. That is not my understanding, but let the record re-
flect that I hope you are right.

Mr. Schiff.
Mr. SCHIFF. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Briefly, one question: Ms. Bloomingdale when I was in college

and I don't want to say when that was exactly, but the President
and I graduated the same year, and we both have done about the
same, don't you think, in those 25 yearswe were affiliated with
something called the National Student Association.

Is that still around? Or is that a predecessor group that is gone
now?

Ms. BLOOMINGDALE. It is a predecessor group, but it is no more.
It merged with the National Student Lobby.

Mr. SCHIFF. SO it is a separate group from yours?
Ms. BLOOMINGDALE. It sort of merged into ours. That was in

1972.
Mr. SCHIFF. Do you represent a successor organization to that or

a different organization?
Ms. BLOOMINGDALE. It is a successor organization.
Mr. SCHIFF. Mr. Chairman, I really have no questions for the

panel because I believe they expressed themselves very well.
Just as I recognized your good faith in accepting recommended

witnesses from the Republican side of the aisle, I would note that
both witnesses testified in support of the administration's plan. I
think that would vouch for our good faith. We didn't .clear in ad-
vance what people might say.

The only other observation I want to make is that it appears to
me, especially since this plan is in the Budget Reconciliation Act
and even though that has problems for other reasonsit sounds
like this is on a fast track.

And I would like to ask out in the audience: Anyone there from
the Department of Education keeping an eye on us here at this
hearing?

Good. I would have been extremely disappointed if someone
hadn't waved back at me.

You know, what all this comes down to is, based upon a paper
model, this should work and save money and be simple and be of
more benefit to the students. If that works, I think that the admin-
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istration is entitled to all due credit for having pushed this through
the Congress.

However, should fortune keep me in the U.S. Congress for a
while and on this committee and in this subcommittee, I would
hope that if this passes and becomes lawand it looks to me that
it willthat we will have another hearing at some point where we
can see if all the paper projections came out to be the case. Because
just as if the administration is entitled to the credit if this works,
I know who is responsible if it doesn't.

And you will back me on that, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Tow Ns. Thank you. Mr. Schiff, we have a statement that

was submitted by Dr. Delores Cross of Chicago, and I would like
to ask that that be included in the record if there is no objection.

[The statement may be found in the appendix.]
Mr. TOWNS. And let me again thank you for coming. I think the

testimony was very powerful.
Also, Sallie Mae also submitted a statement that I would like to

include in the record as well, if there are no objections.
[The statement may be found in the appendix.]
Mr. TOWNS. Again, let me thank all four of you for your testi-

mony, because so often there are those of us who are involved on
this side in terms of creating these situations and always develop-
ing laws who do not talk with people who are involved in imple-
menting theni. It is easy to read something, and then say we think
that this will work. It makes a difference when we talk to people
who are out there, like you, who day in and day out are admin-
istering these programs. So your testimony is extremely important
to us.

And Ms. Bloomingdale, I empathize with you as one who has just
gone through the student lending system and did not get your exit
interview. To hear from you and other students is essential to our
understanding of the system in practice.

Mr. Butts, the fact that you were with the Department at one
time and you were able to see it on their inside evolve in terms of
administering the national student loan program, your testimony,
too, has been very helpful to us.

I would like to reiterate my deep concern over the Department's
ability to manage and implement direct lending. The complexity of
the current GSL program is only one of the factors contributing to
the Department's poor record of administrating student loans.

All student lending programsdirect lending, GSL, or an alter-
nativewill be complex since they are responsible for administer-
ing a $63 billion loan portfolio. I believe that eliminating the com-
plexities of the current system will not improve the system until
the Department corrects its poor management and oversight prob-
lems, which, I think are the root of the Department's failures. And
5 years from now, it really does not matter who is originating or
servicing the student loans if the Department fails to improve its
management structure. The key to the Department's success will
be highly qualified, competent personnel to install effective infor-
mation systems, management planning, and solid oversight.

At, this time, the committee will conclude. The hearing is over.
[Whereupon, at 1:35 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-

vene subject to the call of the Chair.1
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I am pteased to provide written testimony io connection with the House

Government Operatiotg Subcommittee on Intergovernmental Affairs and

Human Resources bearings corwerning the impact of Freaid.int Clinton's

proposal to establish a menpue-bered direct stident loan program as a substitute

for the current bank-bond, federally-guaranwod loan program.

Chicago State University is one of twelve public institutions of higher

education in Illinois. We are a comprehensive university composed of four

colleges Arts and Sciences, Education, amines*, and Nursing and Allied

Health Professions. Ow enrollment is approximately 9,000 undergraduate and

graduate studats. All of the public universities serve African Anwricans and

other people of color but none as fully u Micogo State University.

Approximately one-third of all African American students attending Illinois

public universities we enrolled at Chicago State University.

The majority of our Sakai* come to college under conditions of

economic and academic disadvantage. Many are older, primary caregivers in

their fseglies, low-inmate and often working full-thne and attending oollege

full-time. Three-fourths of our salmi depend on need-bued aid. Our

FFE1P volume is approximately $5.1 million - 1,135 sadents borrow through

that program. In addition, $8.4 million in need-based student aid from other

Title IV programs helps Chicago State University students meet the cost of

attendarre.

Given this level of financial need, it should be clear that any decrease in
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aid or any knpliment to its timely delivery could make the difference between

a student persisting end graduating from college or that student beiag fated to

drop out.

Like many of my colleogues, I have for a loog tine held a strong

commitment to access and equity in postsecondary edneadon and, for that

moon, have over the past several months voiced concurs about the potential

impact of direct lending on Institudons such as Chicago Stale University,

kntinatiorn with little or no experience in direct lending and relatively

unsophinicated in tenna of tectmology.

Of greeter concern to roe, however, is the fact that while manypeople

are looking at a direct low program as a solution to our budautary problems,

in term/ of a $4.3 billion deficit reduction over the next five years, no one

nems to be tali:log about a commitment to maintaining or expanding grant aid,

particularly the Pell Grant program. When the concept of a direct loan

program to replace the Scaffotd Loan program was first outlined dating the

Higher &Nada Act reauthotintion process, a year sad a half ago, a major

selling point was that the savings from not having to pay kiskra sal

guarantors would be put into the Pell program for low-income, high-wed

studem. That appeara to no longer be on the table, and no one is even asking

about iti

I know that moat of the comments to come before this committee relate

to the technical upects of administering a dheet loan program, and I do not
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mean to minimize the importance of considering bow this prognm will wott.

However, there needs to be a voioe for studente and for acmes, a yoke ihet

reminds the tecimicians that they also need to be looking st what's happening

to student aid overall. Direa leading encourages self-help but no one is

looking st the pant side, even though the grant-loan balance already has swung

too far away treat puts, perticulerly for low-income Andrea. In our haste to

examine the technical aspects of a direct loan program, we have moved too far

away from the orithal intent of student 'aid, which is to remove financial

birders to higher edncetion =me.

Yes, we support a direct loan demonantion pmgram, tart Ite also want

to see other things addressed. Ph% and above all, we should be certain tbat

any thew that we make will not dzupt students' lives. Given that one-half

of all need-beeed student aid comes from. loans, it should be vay clear tint we

reed to look at shaman:a, lett we cane a maker disruption in higher

education scam if the direct ion propam fails to meet our. expectations.

Second, while we are moving toward direct loans, we T11.14 be certain

to mahtain the integrity of the other student aid program'. liat undertaxiIng

of the Pall Grant peogram and the cumulative shattell create too many

uncertaiuties for students who depend on grant assitsace to be able to attend

college. The baying power of Peil has eroded ancl appropriation" continue to

fell short of the authorized nimbi= awzd. The reset Ms been that low-

income andente have been forCed to borrow to pay college coals.

14 9
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Third, I am not aka in my comma about the administrative rapacity

of the Department of Education. The Department of Education has never been

administratively sophisticated. For many years, *moose azxl univenky officials

have felt thst the Department needed to strengthen its adMildittallye and

orpnizational capabilides. Title need remains. The appointments of Secretary

Riley and Deputy Secretary Basin, and the nomination of Amistiet Secretary

designate Inspnecker, are good, hopeful sips. But =eh remain to be

dose. Reptiles, of whether or not the Congrese enacts a progmm of direct

lending, the Department of Educmion must inmrove int capacity to idtigniMor

the federal ezdent aid pogroms and emecially the malent lose program on

which so many students depenai .

m we look for keig-term savings, we also reed to plan in the

long-term for grants. If this hill Amid turn out to be a disappointment, either

in terms of imufficlent savings or administrative canplexity, the results couid

be a lots of access for oar most vulnerable students, the poor and the

traditionally underserved. We need to reduce the reliamm on loans foc low-

income students and, at the same time, be able to meure then thst their

financial need will confirm to be met.

If this does mX happen and if the gap between low-income students'

resources sal the com of a college education widens, we could once again,

tragically, Mil ourselves in Me circumstances of tbe 1960's when only those

who could affurd to pay out-of-pocket could have scum to higher education.
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The Student Loan Marketing Association, Sallie Mae, is

pleased to have this opportunity to share with the Subcommittee

some of our experience in building the private-sector capacity to

effectively support America's ever-increasing demand for

education credit, and to offer our perspective on the

technological, human, and administrative challenges inherent in

r.nnually delivering $20 billion of education credit through

10,000 of the Nation's public and private postsecondary

institutions.

Sallie Mae, like Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, is a government-

sponsored enterprise (GSE) -- a private-sector enterprise

established by Congress to address a public policy need. Sallie

Mae was created to provide liquidity and to supply operational

and financial products and services which ultimately support the

five million students and parents who each year rely upon credit

to help finance the costs of higher education. As the Nation's

major intermediary to the education credit market, Sallie Mae has

successfully raised and delivered private capital to increase

dramatically the availability of education credit, and

significantly enhance ac.Iss to it by students and their

families. The corporation also provides financing to meet the

infrastructure needs of many of America's colleges and

universities.
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While we are proud of our operational and financial

performance over the years and the return it has provided to the

many Americans who invest their savings in this business, we are

equally proud of our Ability to employ private-sector

efficiencies to help make the dream of higher education a reality

for millions of Americans. In the twenty years since its

creation, Sallie Mae has funded loans for more than 23 million

students and parents -- or more than $60 billion of education

credit.

In fulfilling its distinct public policy mission, Sallie Mae

has invested millions of dollars in the systems, technology, and

human resources necessary to enhance access to education credit

and strengthen the market's supply of private capital to support

that credit. In the process, we have worked in partnership with

thousands of lenders, thousands of schools, and millions of

students and parents to help support the private capital-based

Federal Family Education Loan program, formerly known as the

Guaranteed Student Loan Program (GSLP).

As you know, the Administration has Proposed phasing out the

GSLP and replacing it with a system of direct federal lending

that would be administered by the Department of Education, funded

through U.S. Treasury borrowing, aided in loan collections by

data supplied through the Internal Revenue Service, and supported

by a range of fee-for-service government contractors %ho would be
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responsible'for executing many of the key direct lending

functions.

As you also are well aware, Sallie Mae questions the public

policy wisdom of the federal government's committing to

dismantling the current, 25-year-old student loan system in favor

of direct lending before assessing the results of a direct loan

pilot program that was just authorized by Congress last sunuer

and yet to be implemented by the Department of Education.

What is perhaps less obvious is that Sallie Mae supports --

and has so stated in numerous public and private forums -- the

Administration's and Congress's desire to streamline the student

loan program, institute a program of national service, reduce

borrower defaults and taxpayer costs, and ease the repayment

burden for students and parents. We supported the reform

measures implemented by Congress last year that are intended to

address many of these same concerns. During the recent student

loan funding debate, we also have provided the Administration and

Congress a set of reform proposals which would achieve many of

these policy objectives quickly, within the existing system, and

within the budget savings targets outlined in the reconciliation

process.

Under direct lending, we believe that significant

programmatic, administrative, and technical issues will represent
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both near-term and long-term obstacles to success. The issues

include:

o Will schools or the government contractors envisioned
in the current legislation be able to originate loans
under the proposed $10 and $20 origination fee? Our
own costs, as an industry leader henefitting from
economies of scale, are nearly $40 per loan. What are
the consequences to student service level and fiscal
control of procedures which are scaled back to tie to
the low level of reimbursement?

o The Department's eight-year inability to implement the
National Student Loan Data System authorized by
Congress in 1986 indicates the complexity of developing
the technological resources necessary for effective
program monitoring and oversight. How will the
Department develop or acquire sufficient systems
capacity for the increased oversight demands that will
result from direct lending?

o Given the investments we have made in hiring, training,
and retaining a national staff to handle complex loan
servicing and other programmatic requirements --
coupled with enormous, ongoing investments in designing
and purchasing state-of-the-art technologies -- we
wonder whether the Department has made realistic
projections of the costs and number of contract
management, systems, data processing, and enforcement
staff needed to implement direct lending.

o Over the past several years, Sallie Mae and others in
the student loan community have made innumerable,
costly improvements to our loan servicing systems to
nhance customer service levels for student and parent
1Jan borrowers and schools. How will the Department
balance the marketplace demand for even further
advances in the provision of customer service with the
federal government's imperative to minimize costs and
the statutory caps on the administrative expenses under
which the government must operate? Further, how will
the Department of Education ensure that customer
service levels do not stagnate for the length of the
contract period? Finally, how can the Department
ensure that inevitable contract modifications will not
dramatically increase federal costs?
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As we understand the Administration's plans, schools
that elect not to act as loan originators will be
assigned an origination agent by the Department of
Education. This differs widely from the current
program, where schools can exercise a good deal of
choice in selecting the private sector lenders from
which their students obtain loans. How does the
Department intend to ensure that all schools receive
the same levels of service quality and what mechanisms
will it have in place to protect schools from
diminished quality levels? And, even if such a
mechanism is in place, how quickly'will the Department
be able to react to complaints from schools and what
sort of leverage will it have over contractors locked
into long-term government agreements?

Finally, mention should be made of a specific provision in

the Administration's bill for a study of pri.vatization of Sallie

Mae. Privatization is not a completely accurate reference since

Sallie Mae at the present time already raises all of its capital

in the private markets and has most of the attributes of a fully

private corporation, including payment of its full share of

federal income taxes. The remaining links to the federal

government and a federal charter nonetheless qualify Sallie Mae

to be among a handful of government-sponsored enterprises, the

so-called GSEs.

Now would be an appropriate time to sever Sallie Mae's

remaining government ties, both for the benefit of the U.S.

government and for the benefit of those who have invested their

capital in Sallie Mae. The benefits which would flow to the

government from such a conversion relate to the removal of the

implicit guarantee which most suggest applies to all GSEs. While

there is no explicit guarantee, an assumption is generally made
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that the federal government implicitly backs GSE indebtedness.

The conversion to a state-chartered corporation would entail a

process by which those implicit guarantees could be removed.

Sallie Mae, on the other hand, would be able, as a result of the

conversion, to participate fully in the education credit field.

We believe that GSEs perform a valuable and useful function

in facilitating important national objectives. Certainly Sallie

Mae over its twenty-year history has provided billions of dollars

of private capital in support of national education objectives,

and in the process has benefitted millions of students. The

corporation is a vital and highly regarded financial institution.

Its resources can be adapted and deployed in continuing to

support education credit and related activities in a non-GSE

setting. Recent proposals to implement a direct lending plan

argue for acceleration of efforts to change Sallie Mae's status

so that it can perform these essential activities.
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